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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

THRRBRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded revenue
from its continuing operations of approximately HK$46 million (2009:
HK$10 million) and profit before income tax from its continuing
operations was approximately HK$531 million (2009: a loss of HK$63
million (re-presented)). The profit before income tax of the Group from
its continuing operations was substantially increased by approximately
HK$594 million as compared to a loss of last year which included the
recognition of a gain on bargain purchase of approximately HK$606
million and impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$49
million. Moreover, the discontinued operations recorded a loss of
HK$349 million (2009: loss of approximately HK$370 million (re-
presented)).

CARPET TRADING BUSINESS

Turnover of the carpet trading operation decreased by 88.3%, or
HK$9.1 million, to HK$1.2 million in 2010, which was attributable to
the global economic downturn and intense market competition and
incurred a loss of HK$2.0 million in trading of carpets business.

ELECTRICITY AND HEAT BUSINESS

In August 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of a total of
60% equity interest in Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat and Power
Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”) which is engaged in
the operation of a combined heat and electricity generation plant in
Jinzhong City of Shanxi Province, the Peoples’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The details are set out in the Company’s circular dated 28
June 2010. During the year ended 31 December 2010, Shanxi Zhong
Kai Lingshi recorded turnover of approximately HK$44.4 million and
a profit of approximately HK$187,000 before impairment of goodwill
and amortisation of intangible assets.

4 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

THARRE

The market price of material costs has increased throughout the
year of 2010, especially the coal gangue price. Despite significant
material costs increased, Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi recorded a profit
of approximately HK$187,000 before impairment of goodwill and
amortisation of intangible assets for the year. As the industry’s tariff is
administered by the PRC government and is relatively stable, the local
government of Lingshi County subsidised Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi to
compensate its loss arising from the rise in material prices for 2010.

In December 2010, Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi acquired a newly
constructed boiler 58MW and ancillary facilities. The details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’'s announcement dated 19
November 2010. The new boiler facilities will generate approximately
200,000GJ) of heat per annum. In order to prompt energy saving
and emission reduction, a new desulphurisation system is installed in
Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi. With the new desulphurisation facilities,
Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi can reduce sulphur dioxide emission by
approximately 180 tons.

OIL BUSINESS

The Company completed the acquisition of China International
Energy Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (“China International”) on
31 December 2010. Pursuant to a cooperation contract entered into
between China Era Energy Power Investment Limited (“China Era”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China International, and China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") dated 13 August 2007, China
International through China Era has been operating the business of
oil exploration, development, production and other related activities
(the “Petroleum Business”) in respect of an oil field of the Lower
Cretaceous System Quantou Formation Third Member Yangdachengzi
Layer which is situated at Liangjing Block of Songliao Basin at Jilin
Province of the PRC (“Target Oil Field”). For further details, please refer
to the Company’s circular dated 11 October 2010.

China Era made great efforts to develop its oil field, organised its
production activities properly, steadily put in efforts to stabilise and
raise the daily production per well and took all practical measures to
lay a firm foundation for oil field development, commenced overall
maintenance projects for water injections wells, took various measures
to stabilise and increase production capacity and to improve the
conditions of wells with low productions.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

THRRBRE

EXPLORATION AND MINING BUSINESS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26 August and
27 August 2010 respectively and the Company’s 2010 interim report,
the Board, to its astonishment, found out that as from 31 January
2010 the exploration licence held by Qinghai Forest Source Mining
Industry Developing Company Limited (“QHFSMI”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the PRC, had been
transferred to a company known as RS H/NLIIERBEBRE LD
7] (in English, for identification purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xian
Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited) (“Yuen Xian
Company”) without the Company’s knowledge, consent or approval.
To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, Yuen Xian Company is wholly-owned by
Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret beneficially through a company known
as Yuenxian Mining Industry Holding Company Limited. Due to the loss
of the exploration licence, it is the Board’s current intention to suspend
the Group's exploration and mining business until the Group regains
control of QHFSMI and the exploration licence.

The Company has obtained advice from its legal advisers and legal
counsel in respect of the above matter and will take further legal
action against Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret in the PRC. The Company
will continue to seek advice from its PRC legal advisers and will issue
further announcement(s) as and when necessary to comply with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS
(i) Electricity and heat business

Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi is closely monitoring the progress of
the urbanisation plan in Lingshi County. It is estimated that
the area of heat supply network in Lingshi County will not
be extended in 2011 and therefore, no further boilers will be
constructed this year. We will continue to work with the Central
Heat Transmit Station of Lingshi County for the provision of
heat supply services in Lingshi County.

The rising coal gangue prices as well as increasingly stringent
environmental requirements may continue to impact on the
growth of the electricity and heat business. The management
will take steps to ensure that Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi will
continue to improve environmental performance and enhance
efficiency and productivity in order to achieve strong operating
performance and maintain high quality electricity and heat
supply services.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

THARRE

(i)

Oil business

In 2011, the global economy is expected to revive more notably
and China’s economy continues to bloom. Despite of numerous
uncertainties including the fluctuations of United States dollars
and regional political uncertainties especially in Northern Africa
and speculative activities, China’s economy is expected to
maintain a rapid growth and demand in crude oil and refined
products markets is expected to rise accordingly.

In the coming year, the Company will continue with a high level
of exploration and production activities, aiming to increase its
production capacity and reserves. The Company will continue to
place great emphasis on its scientific and geological researches,
increase efforts to make breakthroughs on key techniques,
strengthen the meticulous exploration of mature oil field,
actively push forward venture exploration in Target Oil Field.

In the meantime, various measures will be deployed for the
maintenance of wells in Target Oil Field, including stabilising
and controlling the production rate of aged wells, and
implementing the maintenance project for water injections
wells. As the key personnel for the operation of Petroleum
Business will be retained despite the completion of acquisition,
the operation of Petroleum Business shall continue in a
substantially same way.

The Company will drill around 41 more production wells
in the year of 2011. These 41 new wells are expected to
contribute to the estimated increase of annual oil production of
approximately 13,700 metric tonnes during the year of 2011.
Taking into accounts also the production capacity of other
existing wells and facilities, it is estimated that the annual oil
production of the Target Oil Field in 2011 will be approximately
30,000 metric tonnes (equivalent to 219,420 barrels of oil).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
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APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, | would take this opportunity to express my
sincere thanks to all Shareholders for their continuing support, and all

the Directors and staffs of the Group for their loyalty, commitment and
diligence in the past year.

By order of the Board

Law Fei Shing
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
approximately HK$46 million. The administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2010 were approximately HK$22 million, which
represented an increase of 29.9% compared to the administrative
expenses incurred last year.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010 was approximately HK$185 million, as
compared to a loss of HK$432 million in the previous corresponding
year. The profit was mainly resulted from the recognition of a gain
on bargain purchase of approximately HK$606 million which set off
(i) the impairment loss in goodwill approximately HK$49 million and
(i) loss of de-consolidating subsidiaries in discontinued operations of
approximately HK$349 million.

As a significant portion of the Group’s sales and purchases were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the Directors
considered the Group has no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations in view of the stability of the exchange rates of Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
did not use any hedging instrument.

CURRENT AND GEARING RATIOS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$3,176 million (2009: HK$670 million), total liabilities of
approximately HK$883 million (2009: HK$42 million), indicating a
gearing ratio of 0.28 (2009: 0.06) on the basis of total liabilities over
total assets. The current ratio of the Group for the year was 1.16
(2009: 5.09).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximately of HK$33 million and pledged bank deposits
of HK$945,000 (2009: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2009: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed approximately 517
full-time employees (2009: 31). The substantial increase in number
of employees is mainly due to the acquisition of heat and electricity
business and oil business. The details are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements. The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually
in line with industry practice. The Group also provides provident fund
schemes (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the
location of such employees.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

INFORMATION OF OIL RESERVES

The following table sets forth the estimated proved reserves (1P),
proved plus probable reserves (2P) and proved plus probable plus
possible reserves (3P) as at 30 June 2010 by Gaffney, Cline &
Associates. This table is extracted from the Company's circular dated
11 October 2010 and there is no material change between 30 June
2010 and 31 December 2010.

ESTIMATE OF OIL RESERVES
As of 30 June 2010
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Oil Reserves Net Entitlement
Gross (100%) of Field Attributable to China Era
AHkE
HEARE(100%) FEEREGFRE
Proved plus Proved plus
Proved plus Probable Proved plus Probable
Proved Probable  plus Possible Proved Probable  plus Possible
R WE FRER - TR
%H RARTEE REBE #H AR AR REBE
(1P) (2p) (3P) (1P) (2P) (3P)
Field MMTonnes MMTonnes MMTonnes MMTonnes MMTonnes MMTonnes
HH A& aEE & =71 BB A&
Liangjing Block WA ER 1.471 3.807 8.031 1.060 2.428 4.637

Note: Details are set out in Technical Report of the Company's circular dated
11 October 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Fei Shing, aged 51, was appointed as executive Director
and company secretary of the Company in August 2004 and as chief
executive officer of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Law is a
Practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is also a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA),
USA and associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 21 years of experience
in the audit and accounting services. He was an executive director and
a company secretary of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046), a company listed on the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”), for a period from June
2007 to October 2007. Currently, Mr. Law is an executive director and
a company secretary of Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 718) and an executive director of China Boon Holdings Limited
(stock code: 922). Both companies are listed on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Sung Wai, aged 63, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in November 2008. He has extensive experience in
trading, real property and shipping industries. He also has extensive
experience in financial and media business. He was an executive
director of Grand Field Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115), a
company listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange, for a period
from November 2007 to June 2008. Currently, he is an executive
director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 899) and
Karce International Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1159).
Both companies are listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing, aged 53, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in July 2009. He has been working in securities
brokerage and funds management professions. Wholly devoted to
petroleum and natural gas upstream development arena since 2006,
Mr. Chan participated in discussions on various petroleum and natural
gas projects in China and internationally, including Africa, central
Asia and America, accumulating rich and extensive experience in
exploration, exploitation and production. He was an executive director
and chief executive officer of China Energy Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 228), a company listed on the Main board of the
Stock Exchange, for a period from October 2009 to December 2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Wang Donghai, aged 58, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in September 2009. Mr. Wang has extensive
experience in all oil-related areas, including oil production, exploration,
development and investment economics, investment and financial
management, infrastructure and overall operations of oilfields. He has
been acted as the Head of the Gudong Oil Production Centre (one of
the largest oil production centres of the Shengli Qilfield) since 2000;
He also has been a visiting professor at the Nanjing University since
2001, teaching post-graduate and graduate students on subjects
including oil field exploration and development, oil economics and
state security.

Ms. Wang Meiyan, aged 48, was appointed as executive Director of
the Company in January 2011. Ms. Wang graduated from a vocational
education institute. She was a senior officer of the Office of Dongying
Municipal Committee, Shandong Province, Geology Research Institute
of Shengli Qilfield ( #Ff At E# 78kt ) , Huaren Group of Shenyang
Military Area Command O&ZF5 E @ ZE( K E), Chinese Enterprises
Daguan Magazine (Bl {d 3 K #5514t ) |, the Association of Chinese
Enterprises Television Stations (R ElI{R 2 E18 &1 F ), American Pan
Asia Investment Group Corporation (E£B;Z 53 & &£ E 2 7)) and
Kashgar project of Tarim Oilfield in Xinjiang. Ms. Wang has extensive
experience in corporate management and leadership.

Mr. Yang Guangming, aged 63, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in January 2011. Mr. Yang obtained his diploma in
petroleum geology from Jilin Petroleum School (E#& A B ER A
JHHIE ) in September 1983 and his degree or diploma of Petroleum
Exploitation Geology in China University of Geosciences (A B K
B HmFEME ) in 1991. Mr. Yang worked in Oil Extraction Plant No.
2 of Jilin Oil Field Group ( & % HE£RJE — &) from 1970 to 2002, and
he worked in the same group as the head of the geological research
institute in 1983 and as chief geologist in 1994. From December
2002 to July 2007, Mr. Yang worked as deputy general manager in
charge of the production and chief geologist in Jilin Petroleum Natural
Gas Development Limited (EMAEHBXARHEBRETAF) . As
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 11 October 2010, Mr. Yang
currently is a member of the management team of certain subsidiaries
of the Company engaged in the petroleum resources development
and production business. Mr. Yang is responsible for supervising the
operation of production, in particulars to ensure that the operation
complies with the applicable laws, regulations, safety and environment
requirements. He is also responsible for making necessary arrangement
in the production line and planning for production schedule.
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EENEREERBBERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lum Pak Sum, aged 49, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2005. He holds
a master degree in business administration from the University
of Warwick, UK and a LLB (Honor) degree from the University of
Wolverhampton, UK. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. Mr. Lum was an independent
non-executive director of Grand Field Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 115) for a period from July 2004 to May 2008, KH Investment
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8172) for a period from September 2005
to December 2008 and Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code:
8046) for a period from June 2007 to November 2008. Currently, he
is an independent non-executive director of Waytung Global Group
Limited. (stock code: 21), Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 718), Karce International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
1159), Radford Capital Investment Limited (stock code: 901) and Asia
Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 899). These companies are
listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange. He is also a chairman
of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Sun Tak Keung, aged 46, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in April 2007. He is currently a
director of a Hong Kong private limited company which is principally
engaged in marketing and trading of daily consumable goods in Hong
Kong and overseas. Mr. Sun was an executive director of Polyard
Petroleum International Group Limited (stock code: 8011) for a period
from March 2002 to November 2007 and he was an independent
non-executive director of Huscoke Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 704) for a period from April 2008 to January 2010 and Yueshou
Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code: 1191) for a period from
July 2007 to October 2008. These companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEEBE=RE

Mr. Chow Pui Fung, aged 70, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2008. He is a
merchant and has been in the business of securities investments,
shipping and import & export for years. He was an independent non-
executive director of Neptune Group Limited (stock code: 70), a
company listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange, for a period
from March 2003 to June 2007. He is also a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ho Suk Yi, aged 43, is the assistant financial controller of the
Company since February 2010. Ms. Ho holds a bachelor’'s degree and
a master’s degree in accounting and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. She has over 20 years’ experience in
auditing, finance and accounting. Ms. Ho previously worked in several
companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Jinxu, aged 52 is the chief executive officer of PR gl&EE
FEAOHEHFRAF (Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat and Power
Company Limited) (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”), a subsidiary of
the Company, and is a director of Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi. Mr.
Li previously worked in the Lingshi County's local branch of State
Grid since 1980 and was prompted as a general manager and later
promoted to be the vice-general manager of Jinzhong branch of
State Grid in 2000. In relation to Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi, Mr. Li is
responsible for liaison with local authorities in relation to the operation
of Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi and the expansion plan and cooperation,
liaison with major customers and to make major decisions in relation to
the operation of Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi.

Mr. Yuan Li, aged 38, joined China Era in November 2008 and has
been working as the vice geologist in the oil field. Mr. Yuan graduated
from Changchun Geological Institute ( £&FHE 26T ) in the profession
of petroleum geology in 1994. Mr. Yuan worked in (AT f& % 5 R 30 &
T FEAT) as team leader from 1995 to 2002. Mr. Yuan was in charge
of technical for 14 joint venture projects in the period from 2002 to
2008. As geologist, Mr. Yuan will review and further research on the
existing geological materials and reports in relation to the oil field.
Furthermore, he is responsible for reviewing the position of newly-
drilled wells and to plan for the allocation of new wells in the contract
area. He is also responsible for advising the oil production plan in the
oil field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREREE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and
accountability. The Board of directors of the Company considers that
sound corporate management and governance practices are essential
to the Company's healthy growth under all business environments.
Therefore, we continuously review and improve our corporate
governance standards to ensure maximum compliance with the
relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), save for the deviations from Code Provision A.2.1
(chairman and chief executive officer) and Code Provision A.4.1 (tenure
of non-executive directors) of the Code as explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiries made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary
for achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial and
operating performance, formulates appropriate policies, and identifies
and ensures best practices of corporate governance. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good
faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in the long run, and have
aligned the Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic
and market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REREE

The Board comprises a balanced number of executive Directors
and non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) that can ensure there is adequate independent judgment for
the running of the Company’s business. The members of the Board
comprise experts from various professions with extensive experience.
One of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In all corporate communications, the Company
had disclosed the composition of the Board according to the categories
and responsibilities of the directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members, including six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Board members during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Fei Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Sung Wai

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing

Mr. Wang Donghai

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (resigned on 10 November 2010)
Ms. Wang Meiyan (appointed on 25 January 2011)
Mr. Yang Guangming (appointed on 25 January 2011)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Zhenming (resigned on 10 November 2010)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Sun Tak Keung
Mr. Chow Pui Fung
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 11 to 14 of this annual report. None of the Directors
has any financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, 12 full Board meetings HE-_Z—ZF+_A=1+—HLEFE ARQ7A
were held and details of attendance is set out as follows: BRNZAZRESTESR SESCHEEFM
UM
Number of Board meetings
attended/eligible to
attend Board meetings
HHE /& F A
EESEENRH
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Law Fei Shing BRI E 12/12
Mr. Chan Sung Wai PREZIE SR A 12/12
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing B B 48 5 12/12
Mr. Wang Donghai FEREGEE 10/12
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Note) HHE5R & (i) 6/8
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zhang Zhenming (Note) RIRBA A& (H7aE) 6/8
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MIARR L E 12/12
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEELE 12/12
Mr. Chow Pui Fung FEegks 12/12
Note: Hiat -
Resigned on 10 November 2010 RZE-—ZF+—-A+BBE
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Every Board member have full and timely access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required. The company secretary continuously
updates all Directors on the latest development of the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code A.2.1 of CG Code provides, inter alia, that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Following the retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company, Mr. Tam Owen ceased to act as
chairman, executive Director, chairman of remuneration committee
and nomination committee and authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 2 June 2009. The Company is still looking
for a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of chairman and further
announcement will be made by the Company upon fulfillment of this
requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Board will review the management structure of the Group from
time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may be desirable
for future development of the operating activities or business of the
Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has deviated from the requirements of Code Provision
A.4.1 of the Code, which stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Some
existing non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company do not have a specific term of appointment.

As the appointment of non-executive Directors are subject to the
retirement by rotation provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board considers that it is not necessary to appoint the
non-executive Directors for a specific term and it is sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in the Code. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not three or in a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. All Directors, including those appointed for a fixed term,
are subject to the retirement by rotation provision in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, comprises the three independent non-executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Company, is responsible for
reviewing and evaluating the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board of directors from time to time.

Following the retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual general
meeting of the Company, the remuneration committee currently
comprises the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.
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The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision B.1.3 of the Code. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include (but without limitation):

1. To make recommendations to the Directors on our policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such
remuneration.

2. To determine the terms of the specific remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management.

3. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the remuneration
committee held a meeting to review the remuneration package of
the Board members and the senior management. Composition of the
remuneration committee and details of members’ attendance to the
committee are as follows:
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Mr. Lum Pak Sum MIFR T A&
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEEEEA
Mr. Chow Pui Fung FAEE LA
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, comprises the three independent non-executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and management of the Board succession.

Following the retirement of Mr. Tam Owen at the 2009 annual
general meeting of the Company, the nomination committee currently
comprises the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision A.4.5 of the Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no meeting was held by the
nomination committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the suggested terms of reference stated under the Code Provision
C.3 of the Code. The audit committee comprises all three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lum Pak Sum. The
audit committee is responsible for review of the Group's accounting
principles, practices internal control procedures and financial reporting
matters including the review of the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending to the Board for approval. The major
roles and functions of the Group’s audit committee are as follows:

1. To consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit
fees, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor of the Group.

2. To discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit.
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3. To review the interim and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board.

4. To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss.

5. To review the external auditor’'s management letters and

management's response.

6. To review the Group's internal control systems.

7. To consider the major findings of internal investigations and

3. REXRTEEGH BHTPHARFERH
WK -

4. AP HEE N FEER T FEL ZHEM
REBBR  RRBEREA 2 EREIRE
HEA -

5. EHNEZHM o ERBERGRERE
[l f& -

6. WA AEE 2 AEREEIEHIE o

7. ERABBHE T RRRAREEEZE

management’s response. &

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the audit committee held HEZZ—ZFF+-_A=+T—BLFE E&Z
two meetings to review the annual and interim results. Composition BERTTMAER UEHFERPEHES-
of the audit committee and details of members’ attendance to the EREZEEHEKRZESNE 2B RFi

committee are as follows: T~
Number of
meetings attended/
eligible to
attend meetings
HESEER
HEEFEXH
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MAAFR ST E 2/2
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FREEEE 2/2
Mr. Chow Pui Fung FAEE LA 2/2

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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The following table sets forth the type of, and fees for, the principal
audit services and non-audit services provided by BDO Limited to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010:

TREJBE_ZE-FTFT_A=T—HLEFE
BEEBVEREZGAMEBMARDAREM TR
SEFERHBRBLERBURE 2 BE LK
=5

Services rendered
Fees paid/payable

HK$'000

Fr 12 44 AR &%

Bt A E A

FAT

Audit services %R 700
Non-audit services (i.e. consultancy services) I ERTS (BIEE RS FA R AR TS) -
Total FEt 700

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company endeavors to implement a sound risk management and
internal control system. The Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard Shareholder investments
and Company’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system
on an annual basis, as well as through the audit committee. For the
year ended 31 December 2010, the audit committee reported to the
Board on any material issues and inadequate measures and made
recommendations to the Board.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHT AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for them to demand
a poll on resolutions at Shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s Articles of Association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to
Shareholders prior to 31 December 2010 and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. Poll results, if any, will be posted on both
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than 30
minutes before the earlier of the morning session or any pre-opening
session on the next business day of the Shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Our
Directors are available at the Shareholders’ meetings of the Company
to answer questions and provide information which Shareholders may
enquire. The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.
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Taking advantages of various resources, the Company keeps
communicating with its Shareholders regularly and properly to ensure
that Shareholders are adequately aware of any important issues during
the course of the Company's operation, and then exercise their rights
as Shareholders with sufficient knowledge. Investors are welcome to
write directly to the Company at its Hong Kong registered office for
any inquiries.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of financial statements of the Group. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited,
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page 40 of
this annual report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions
set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted by poll.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of Energy International Investments Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the trading of carpets, the
supply of heat and electricity and the development and production of
petroleum resources.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2010
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 43 to 184. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year.

EERRRS RARRA SRR A R RN
BAF ((A%EDBRE-F—FFT-A=1—
ALEE SR RS EREERIBER-

TEXH

ARBZEBEBRREZER -ETEMNBAA
REWHREE REHREROMERZMAERE
7o

ARAR-F—FF+-A=+—A2TEWE
DR Z BN BERA IS -

EERKRE

FEERBEZE T ZEFT_A=+—HIFEZ
M ARARAR EANEBRZ B 2P B RE
REAEF1BAE 2 EHEK - EF R TERIRN
RERZEMBRSE -
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009
and 2010, and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group as at each of the reporting date, prepared on the basis set out

in the notes below.

MBENBRE

TXHEAEREEZE_ZTRF —TT+LF
ZENF —TENFRE-EFT_A=1—
BLEEFEZCTERAREUNRAEER LR
SRHZEE ABNFERRRERZBE
RELEEHN T X 2 Mo

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t+-ALEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
—E-BF —EENE —EENE —EELE ZETRE
FHT FHET FET FET FHT
(igE75)) (&) (&%) (gs5)
Revenue Wz
- Continuing operations* BB 45,620 10,332 12,846 28,851 17,698
- Discontinued operations** —E R AR - - 6,418 26,796 8,825
Operating profit/(loss) from BEREELRRN,/
continuing operations (B#8) 535,778 (56,091)  (291,728) (37,946) (28,390)
Finance costs B B K AR (5,229) (6,455) (22,521) (3,235) (149)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax from FIER BT
continuing operations BRETEBADEF,
(B18) 530,549 (62,546) (314,249 (41,181) (28,539)
Income tax credit FTEBiaT A 1,457 - - - -
Loss for the year from discontinued REFDRIEEEER
operations BiE (348,966) (369,641) (34,233) (37,380) (17,618)
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEERT/ (EE) 183,040 (432,187)  (348,482) (78,561) (46,157)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: FEMLREF (EE) :
Owners of the Company KABHEA A 184,887 (432,187)  (341,321) (79,129) (46,167)
Non-controlling interests BB R ERS (1,847) - (7,161) 568 10
183,040 (432,187) (348,482) (78,561) (46,157)
* Continuing operations for the years ended 31 December 2006, 2007, * BEZZZRF 2T+ ZTZENF =

2008, 2009 and 2010 represent trading of carpets and supply of

electricity and heat.

*x Discontinued operations for the years ended 31 December 2006, 2007,
2008, 2009 and 2010 represent manufacturing of carpets, trading of

goods and exploration of mine.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERFERBRREESR
INTERESTS
At 31 December
BW+=-A=+-R
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-Bf | —TTHAE -TE\F -TELF -BIAF
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,955,357 554,799 747,086 702,176 82,614
Current assets TEEE 220,225 114,775 93,511 168,012 17,903
Total assets EERE 3,175,582 669,574 840,597 870,188 100,517
Current liabilities mEAaE 189,635 22,559 64,123 68,157 36,558
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 693,680 19,279 192,695 177,403 1,158
Total liabilities BERE 883,315 41,838 256,818 245,560 37,716
Net assets BEFE 2,292,267 627,736 583,779 624,628 62,801
Non-controlling interests R R = 142,332 - 1,288 33,581 (217)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME-BERSZE

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the

Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements.

ARBRAEENE BEERBRFAZEZD
I B BRI FE16
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Share capital during the year together
with the reasons therefore, are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the Share
premium account of the Company of approximately HK$2,038 million
as at 31 December 2010, is distributable to the Shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The Share premium account may also be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus Shares.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 82% of the Group's total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 23%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 46% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
11%.

None of the Directors of the Company, any of their associates or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued Share capital), had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Board members during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Law Fei Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Sung Wai

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing

Mr. Wang Donghai

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (resigned on 10 November 2010)
Ms. Wang Meiyan (appointed on 25 January 2011)
Mr. Yang Guangming (appointed on 25 January 2011)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Zhenming (resigned on 10 November 2010)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Mr. Sun Tak Keung
Mr. Chow Pui Fung

TEEFRHEER

FAHETASEERAATFP ZHEGEAEER
FEAHERNS2% EHHEETHRATPZH
FEAIMH23% °

AEERAAHEHRE 2 BEEARNEBERFEE
BIRBENI6%  EFARAHEERE B
AME11% ©

ARARZERZ EZBZEMBEALRR (&
EEMABEARBEBITRABRS%E)  HE
REAEEAREFP R IEEFETHEEENEE

FAMBERAFHRAY E=aXKEWT:

BITES

RS E (TTHAEE)

REBEEE

PR S

EREEE

HEEEE (RZF—FF+—H1HFE)
FRULT (RZF——F—H -+ LHARZHE)
BRARE (R-F——F AT LHEZFT)
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In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Sung Wai, Mr. Wang Donghai, Mr. Sun
Tak Keung and Mr. Chow Pui Fung will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Wang Donghai, Mr. Sun Tak
Keung and Mr. Chow Pui Fung will offer themselves for re-election as
Directors, whereas Mr. Chan Sung Wai will not offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Ms. Wang Meiyan and Mr. Yang Guangming who were
newly appointed as Directors of the Company on 25 January 2011,
shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company following their appointments and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent as defined in the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 11 to 14 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had
a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENT

Particulars of the pension scheme arrangements are set out in note
3(w) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURE

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which had been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by the Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following person other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Interest in Shares

EEBAROGHESZ 2EF

RFERERERE - EAEERERBIART185
ZFHEBBEBRERAEBARRB ZBROBEST
R 2 ERN NETEABEN: KARFRE
EAMEARNER IERRY BUEEETR
BEMEMEABREZ ElgER -

FERRRAQXARDRAEBERD
ZRERERAR

R-ZE-ZTF+_A=+—B HEARREFH
IETHABRM BRARRESTREZITHA
BN UATALTRARA R MBERD T HES
ARBIREESEPERDIE3B6HRATHETZ
BRMP s ERIIAR

Interests in underlying Shares

R &R REBERG 2B

Personal Corporate Personal Corporate Aggregate  Approximate
Name of Shareholders Interests* Interest* Interests* Interest* interest percentage’ Notes
RR#EA BAER" NAgH AER" NREH £y 4 BREA L Mzt
Mr. Liu Ran Bl - 3,078,000,000 - 13,172,000,000 16,250,000,000 120.70% 1
Giant Crystal Limited FRERAF 3,078,000,000 - 13,172,000,000 - 16,250,000,000 120.70% 1
Ms. Ho Mee Kuen Karen fIXELt - 1,210,000,000 - - 1,210,000,000 8.99% 2
Maycrown Capital Limited ERERERAA 1,210,000,000 - - - 1,210,000,000 8.99% 2
Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret 2BHLL - - 2,212,617,599 - 2,212,617,599 16.44% 3
* Beneficial owner * BEHRAA
+ Interests of controlled corporation(s) + TRl EER
# Percentage which the aggregate long position in the Shares or # RO BERD Z2FRREEARAR AR

underlying Shares represents to the issued share capital of the Company
of 13,462,586,614 Shares as at 31 December 2010

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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Notes:

Giant Crystal Limited is a company incorporated under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Ran. Mr. Liu Ran therefore deemed to
be interested in 3,078,000,000 shares and 13,172,000,000 underlying
shares held by Giant Crystal Limited.

13,172,000,000 underlying Shares consist of shares to be issued upon
the conversion of (i) the outstanding Tranche 1 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.08 per Share, can be converted into
6,586,000,000 Shares); and (ii) the Tranche 2 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.08 per Share, can be converted into
6,586,000,000 Shares). However, the Tranche 2 Bonds has not been
issued. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated 11 October 2010
for details of the principal terms of the Tranche 1 Bonds and the
Tranche 2 Bonds.

Maycrown Capital Limited is a company incorporated under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is
legally and beneficially owned by Ms. Ho Mee Kuen Karen. Ms. Ho Mee
Kuen Karen therefore deemed to be interested in 1,210,000,000 shares
held by Maycrown Capital Limited.

2,212,617,599 underlying Shares consist of shares to be issued upon
the conversion of (i) the outstanding Tranche 1 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2007) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.508 per Share (as adjusted), can be
converted into 20,472,441 Shares); (ii) the Tranche 2 Bonds (as defined
in the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2007) (which, based
on the conversion price of HK$0.60 per Share, can be converted into
666,666,667 Shares); (iii) the outstanding Tranche 3 Bonds (as defined
in the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2008) (which, based on the
conversion price of HK$0.212 per Share (as adjusted), can be converted
into 2,358,491 Shares); and (iv) the Tranche 4 Bonds (as defined in
the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2008) (which, based on
the conversion price of HK$0.25 per Share, can be converted into
1,523,120,000 Shares).

The Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds have not been issued. Please
refer to the Company’s circulars dated 15 October 2007 and 6 June
2008 for details of the principal terms of the Tranche 2 Bonds and
Tranche 4 Bonds respectively.

W
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26 August and
27 August 2010 respectively and the Company’s 2010 interim report,
the Board, to its astonishment, found out that as from 31 January 2010
the exploration licence held by Qinghai Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“QHFSMI”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the People's Republic of
China (“PRC"), had been transferred to a company known as A5 & /)r
4T IR FRIEZ ABR 2 A (in English, for identification purpose only, Inner
Mongolia Xian Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited)
("Yuen Xian Company”) without the Company’s knowledge, consent
or approval. To the best of the Director’'s knowledge, information and
belief having made all reasonable enquiries, Yuen Xian Company is
wholly-owned by Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret through a company
known as Yuenxian Mining Industry Holding Company Limited.
However, according to the terms and conditions of the Tranche 2 Bonds
and Tranche 4 Bonds, the Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds will
only be issued if the Mining Licence has been received by the Group.
The Company is seeking legal advice from its legal advisers on whether
the Company still has any obligation to issue the Tranche 2 Bonds and
Tranche 4 Bonds to Ms. Leung Lai Ching Margaret in light of the present
situation, in particular, in these circumstances where Ms. Leung Lai
Ching Margaret has transferred the Group's exploration licence to her
own company without the Company's knowledge, consent or approval.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the ordinary
Shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, no short positions
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, no other
person had an interest or short position in the Company’s shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which was recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group and any minority Shareholder in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme was adopted on 6 June 2002
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised Share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue at
any time.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 8 December
2009, the general scheme limit of the Company’s Share option
scheme has been reset to 736,104,330 Shares, representing 10% of
the Company’s issued Share capital on the date of meeting, with the
passing of ordinary resolution, which allowing the Company to grant
further options carrying the rights to subscribe for a maximum of
736,104,330 Shares. As at the date of this report, no option has been
granted pursuant to the Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under Share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1%, of the Shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of Share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors,
in addition, any Share options granted to a substantial Shareholder or
an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to Shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of Share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the Share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the offer of the Share options or the expiry date
of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the Share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s Shares on
the date of the offer of the Share options;

(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at Shareholders’ meetings.
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

On 15 September 2010, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat and
Power Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a master
agreement with Shanxi Zhongkai Industry Group Company Limited
(“Zhongkai Group”), whereby Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi will supply
and Zhongkai Group and its subsidiaries will purchase such amount
of electricity generated by Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi for a term of
approximately 27 months, expiring on 31 December 2012. Details of
the continuing connected transactions are as stated in the Company's
announcement dated 16 September 2010 and the Company’s circular
dated 13 October 2010.

Due to the significant growth in the sales volume of the electricity
generated by Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi to one of Zhongkai Group's
subsidiaries, the annual caps of continuing connected transactions
were revised. Details of the revised annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions are as stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 January 2011 and the Company's circular dated 22 February
2011.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no transactions required to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been subject to annual
review by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules and confirmation of the
auditor of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2010, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have concluded
that the continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

o in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

o either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

o in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures on the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions. Based on the work performed, the auditor has issued a
confirmation letter to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined by the Listing Rules, other than those businesses of
which the Directors have been appointed as Directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 24 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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LITIGATIONS

Details of the litigations of the Group are set out in note 49 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The audit committee comprises the three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. During the year,
two regular meetings of the audit committee have been held.

AUDITOR

The financial statements in respect of the previous two financial years
were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK"), now known as JBPB & Co.
Due to a merger of the businesses of GTHK and BDO Limited (“BDO")
to practise in the name of BDO as announced on 26 November 2010,
GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as auditor of the Company
effective from 29 November 2010. The financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010 were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

LAW FEI SHING
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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IBDO

EEE : +852 2541 5041
{8H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
BETHEEPI1E
JkEZH251E

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited
BERERKREERER QA

(formerly known as Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
43 to 184, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P0O5018

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEE®EX

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

2010 2009
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
g (Re-presented)
—s-%% —TEAf
FER FHR
(rE5)
Continuing operations: FEREEK:
Revenue & 5 45,620 10,332
Cost of sales HE KA (47,018) (10,020)
Gross (loss)/profit E(#8) 7 (1,398) 312
Other income H A 5 9,035 2,509
Excess of acquirer’s interest in the net WS (R 2
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable AIBREE BERK
assets, liabilities and contingent HABEZRFFE
liabilities over cost HESEBBAR A 2 H5E 40(b) 606,270 -
Administrative expenses TR X (22,350) (17,205)
Other operating expenses Hipg e M= (6,715) (41,707)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  E #E R 2R (E & 18
goodwill 19 (49,064) -
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7 (5,229) (6,455)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax MAETEBEARER (BE) 8 530,549 (62,546)
Income tax credit EIECYIEIWN 9 1,457 -
Profit/(Loss) after income tax BECEEBRAEBHEZ
from continuing operations wH(EBR) 532,006 (62,546)
Discontinued operations: BRIEREE:
Loss for the year REEEE 11 (348,966) (369,641)
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERRN (BE) 183,040 (432,187)
Profit/(Loss) for the year B REERRN
attributable to: (F#8) :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZZE DN 12
— from continuing operations —RFREEEER 533,853 (62,546)
— from discontinued operations —BERIEEEEB (348,966) (369,641)
184,887 (432,187)
Non-controlling interests TR AR R =
— from continuing operations —FREEER (1,847) -
— from discontinued operations —BERIEEEB = -
(1,847) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERFN, (EE) 183,040 (432,187)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF +_A=1+—HILFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
E: —e-%% BT
FER FH
(#e=51)
Earnings/(Loss) per share for profit/ FRAEADREE AEL
(loss) attributable to the owners of B (BE)ZER
the Company during the year BF, (FE) 13
- Basic —&EF
From continuing and discontinued RELEEBR
operations DRIEELER HK cents 2.371ll | (HK cents 8.2 ()
From continuing operations REREETR HK cents 6.6l (HK cent 1.2711)
From discontinued operations BRI B (HK cents 4.371l) | (HK cents 7.0 1ll)
- Diluted —#5
From continuing and discontinued HEKREERN
operations DR PR TS HK cents 2.17&1l N/ATNiE A
From continuing operations FREEEET HK cents 6.2l N/AZ i F
From discontinued operations B4R || 4R 2 g (HK cents 4.1 1l) N/AZR 3 A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEREWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-TF —ETNF
B 5 FHET FHET
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERAN(FE) 183,040 (432,187)
Other comprehensive income Hitr2EBKA
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation REBINEBT B RERZ
of financial statements of foreign &5 ek (&18)
operations 10,553 (146)
Release of exchange reserve upon HEKE QR EE S FE 41(a)
disposals of subsidiaries # (o) and X (c) - (9,272)
Release of exchange reserve upon i) = INCIR RSN
de-consolidating subsidiaries PE H e m 42 (972) -
Other comprehensive AEEHMEEHBA
income/(expense) for the year (Bx%) 9,581 (9,418)
Total comprehensive AEEZERA (FX)
income/(expense) for the year W 192,621 (441,605)
Total comprehensive EaE2EBA (BAX)
income/(expense) attributable to: wma:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ RSN 190,247 (441,605)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 I A R A A 2,374 -
192,621 (441,605)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEBRRR

As at 31 December 2010 A= —ZF+=-A=+—H

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F —ZTTAF
[[hg=3 FEx FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE REE 16(a) 510,460 3,605
Prepaid land lease payments A T A EROE 17 29,569 -
Goodwill Bk 19 274,302 327,632
Deposits for acquisitions of subsidiaries ~ WHEMB AR 21k 4 20 - 185,000
Exploration and evaluation assets R R EE 21 - 38,562
Intangible assets mREE 22 2,127,962 -
Deferred tax assets FEIERIIEE = 36 13,064 -
2,955,357 554,799
Current assets REBEE
Indemnification assets WMEEE 23 5,000 -
Inventories FE 24 4,800 -
Trade receivables BN E 5 BRIA 25 16,617 -
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRIE -ZE2 Rk
receivables H th i SR IR 26 40,614 1,393
Amount due from non-controlling JIE S FE 122 A% IR SR R IR
shareholder 27 6,080 -
Pledged bank deposits BRMIRITER 28 945 -
Cash at banks and in hand RITREERFEES 28 146,135 113,382
Tax prepaid AR HIE 34 -
220,225 114,775
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables JERTE S HRIA 29 18,851 -
Other payables and accruals E A RIE R BT B 30 124,687 22,559
Amount due to non-controlling JEAT IEFE AR IR SR SR IE
shareholder 27 11,570 -
Provision for legal claim SEREBRREE 31 5,000 -
Bank borrowings HRITEK 32 21,133 -
Other borrowings H b fE 33 8,394 -
189,635 22,559
Net current assets REBEEFE 30,590 92,216
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBER 2,985,947 647,015
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings HRITE K 32 11,806 -
Other borrowings H 8 5K 33 87,010 -
Promissory notes KE 34 43,865 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 35 20,292 19,279
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIBEEE 36 530,707 =
693,680 19,279
Net assets EEFE 2,292,267 627,736
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2010 R —Z—ZF+ - A=+—H

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-TF —ETNF
i TERT FET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners of ZA2QATEE AEEES
the Company
Share capital & 7 37 134,626 73,610
Reserves i 38(a) 2,015,309 554,126
2,149,935 627,736
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR AR R A w 142,332 -
Total equity B 2,292,267 627,736
Law Fei Shing Wang Meiyan
EEH TEH
Director Director
s EE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B %R =

As at 31 December 2010 R =T —ZF+ - A=+—H

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F —ZTTAF
[[hg=3 FEx FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 16(b) 7 10
Interests in subsidiaries R B R R 2 = 18 1,585,239 339,340
Deposits for acquisitions of subsidiaries WERB AR ZES 20 - 185,000
1,585,246 524,350
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERNRIE -mE2 Rk
other receivables H th 8 SRR 26 983 629
Cash at banks and in hand WITHEFRFHER® 28 15,564 112,631
16,547 113,260
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals H b JE - 5RIB K FE T FOE 30 3,793 2,567
Net current assets REBEEFE 12,754 110,693
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERRBERE 1,598,000 635,043
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Convertible bonds AR AR 5 35 20,292 19,279
Net assets EEFE 1,577,708 615,764
EQUITY R
Share capital N 37 134,626 73,610
Reserves G 38(b) 1,443,082 542,154
Total equity mER 1,577,708 615,764
Law Fei Shing Wang Meiyan
& FEY
Director Director
EZE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEERSFR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

—EE+-_RA=1+—RLEFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

KAREEAREER
Convertible
bond Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange equity Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRES *ER
R& BB EE EXffE EXfE Bk 2itER @t RRER BER
FiEn TiEn FiEn TR TiEn TR Ti#n TR Ti#n
At 1 January 2009 RZZENF-A—A 30,247 903,048 137,610 10,390 120,372 (619,176) 582,491 1,288 583,779
Disposals of subsidiaries HENRBAR

(note 41(b)) (Fit&E41(b)) - - - - - - - (1,288) (1,288)
Issue of shares upon placing and ~ REE R AREERET

open offer (notes 37(d) and (e)) &in (B E37(d) Rfe)) 32,618 274,454 - - - - 307,072 - 307,072
Issue of shares upon conversion of R R AIAKE %Hﬁé‘ﬂ

convertible bonds F&fn (B 37(a) R (b))

(notes 37(a) and (b)) 10,745 273,501 - - (104,468) - 179,778 - 179,778
Transactions with owners BEBAZRS 43,363 547,955 - - (104,468) - 486,850 (1,288) 485,562
Net loss for the year FEEBRFH - - - - - (432187)  (432,187) - (432,187)
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2EHRA
Exchange loss on translation of BEBNEBRBRRL

financial statements of foreign EHEE

operations - - - (146) - - (146) - (146)
Release of exchange reserve upon L EM B A AR E X B

disposals of subsidiaries BB (MEsEk0O)

(notes 41(a) and (c)) - - - (9,272) - - 9,272) - (9,272)
Total comprehensive expense ~ AEEZHAXAE

for the year - - - (9,418) - (432,187) (441,605) - (441,605)
At 31 December 2009 RZZZhE

+=A=+-H 73,610 1,451,003 137,610 972 15,904  (1,051,363) 627,736 - 627,736
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-Z5-f—A 73,610 1,451,003 137,610 972 15,904 (1,051,363) 627,736 - 627,736
Issue of shares upon acquisition of ~ RUENB A FIB TR

subsidiaries (notes 37(f) and (g)) (W37 R (g)) 45,880 425,640 - - - - 471,520 - 471,520
Issue of convertible bonds upon ~ RUREEMT B A RIE H1T

acquisition of subsidiaries aaRES (f:E35)

(note 35) - - - - 859,292 - 859,292 - 859,292
Acquisition of subsidiaries KEREDR

(note 40(a)) (Fizk40(@) - - - - - - - 139,958 139,958
Issue of shares upon conversion of ~ R A AR EFFET

convertible bonds BR17 (B EE37(a) R (c))

(notes 37(a) and (c)) 15,136 161,126 - - (175,122) - 1,140 - 1,140
Transactions with owners BREAZRS 61,016 586,766 - - 684,170 - 1,331,952 139,958 1,471,910
Net profit for the year REEHA - - - - - 184,887 184,887 (1,847) 183,040
Other comprehensive income ~ Hfi2EKA
Release of exchange reserve upon  RHIBARTBEA AR

de-consolidating subsidiaries B R EERE (FFe2)

(note 42) - - - (972) - - (972) - (972)
Exchange gain on translation of ~ BEGHNEBHERR 2

financial statements of foreign R

operations - - - 6,332 - - 6,332 4,221 10,553
Total comprehensive income rEEXEUALE

for the year - - - 5,360 - 184,887 190,247 2,374 192,621
At 31 December 2010 R-B-%F

+ZB=1+-H 134,626 2,037,769 137,610 6,332 700,074 (866,476) 2,149,935 142,332 2,292,267
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—g-2% —EEnE
B 5% FET FHET
(#&E5)
Cash flows from operating activities SESEEKEREARILLE
of continuing and discontinued Bz REXBRERE
operations
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BAETERANEFR, (&8)
Continuing operations HBEEER 530,549 (62,546)
Discontinued operations BRI T (348,966) (369,641)
181,583 (432,187)
Adjustments for: M TFIIEE (EH %
Depreciation e 9,841 1,021
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE A+ b 70 B FRIE 8
payments 269 _
Amortisation of intangible assets miEEEH 6,406 -
Excess of acquirer’s interest in the net kR BRI ES 2
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable ARREE BER
assets, liabilities and contingent IARBREZ AT FE
liabilities over cost R iR R AN 2 B R (606,270) -
Impairment loss of goodwill E B R EEE 49,064 368,401
Provision for impairment loss of other H fth e W R IBR B B 1R B
receivables 39 30,965
Loss on disposals of property, plant and ~ HE& W BE k& HE B
equipment 269 10
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMEBE AT 2 s - (9,044)
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HEWBARZEE - 10,534
Loss on de-consolidating subsidiaries MEBARTEEGE AKRZ
&8 348,966 -
Interest income 2 WA (121) (1,787)
Interest expenses FEREZ 5,229 7,920
Operating loss before working capital LEECEHA I KEEE
changes (4,725) (24,167)
Increase in inventories FE 238 (2.673) -
Decrease in trade receivables JEWE 5 R1B 2R 7.146 43
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, FERHRIE 'R
deposits and other receivables H W RIEZ
B, () 14,152 (1,847)
Increase in trade payables JERTE S 0RIE 2 & 2,935 -
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables H e
and accruals FRIE K FEFTFIA
CR4) /4 (39,400) 6,463
Cash used in operations AREEZH 2 (22,565) (19,508)
Interest paid AR E (3,065) (1,523)
Net cash used in operating activities MERBEITHZ B2 FE (25,630) (21,031)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & Z —

—EE+-_RA=1+—RLEFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
Er a. Y —zEhE
B 5 FHET FET
(re=E5)
Cash flow from investing activities HEREEBRERLRE
of continuing and discontinued AR eREXEBRERE
operations
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE WEREHE
equipment 16(a) (74,862) (32)
Purchases of exploration and BEMWRETGHEE
evaluation assets - (4,465)
Payments for the deposits for acquisitions W B A A 22 E
of subsidiaries 20 - (185,000)
Net cash inflow arising from disposals of &M B AR FEL 2
subsidiaries REMANFRE 41(qg) = 18,664
Net cash outflow arising from iy NEERS SN
de-consolidating subsidiaries EEXCBRERLFE 42 (75) -
Net cash inflow arising from acquisitions W EEHI B A R IE A 2
of subsidiaries WEMAFEE 40(c) 196,572 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, LEWME BEREREEZ
plant and equipment FriS RE 207 -
Interest received B2 F B 121 1,787
Advances to non-controlling shareholder [ 3E4% Hxﬁxﬁffﬁﬁziﬂ%’( (188) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) e/ (AR)BREEBY
investing activities fﬁfﬁ/?%ﬁ 121,775 (169,046)
Cash flow from financing activities BFEKEERRERIERE
of continuing and discontinued ¥BcEETHRERE
operations
Proceeds from issue of shares upon REREHETRNDZ
placement Fr 858 37(d) - 110,872
Proceeds from issue of shares upon REAQ Eﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁz
open offer Fr 1S 3018 37(e) - 196,200
Repayments of other borrowings 151%%1@%%’( - (5,964)
Capital element of finance lease MEHONR A2 D
payments - (64)
Repayments to non-controlling EESEIER TN
shareholder (64,450) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from (HAR)KEBEZTEH
financing activities 2FE (64,450) 301,044
Net increase in cash and cash ReRhELEEEAZ
equivalents N5 31,695 110,967
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZBEER
at 1 January HEeEEER 113,382 2,387
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes [ER&E) 7 3 & 1,058 28
Cash and cash equivalents RT+-ZA=+—HzHBEER
at 31 December RE%EHEA 146,135 113,382
Analysis of balances of cash and REeERBEELEERBZ
cash equivalents EeRoW
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEFRFERS 28 146,135 113,382
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 SR & M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

52

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Registered office of the
Company is Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies and its principal place of business is Unit 1508,
15th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 September 2010 at
an extraordinary general meeting, the Company’s name was
changed from Xian Yuen Titanium Resources Holdings Limited
to Energy International Investments Holdings Limited.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

- the trading of carpets representing the trading of
carpets of other renowned brand names;

- the supply of electricity and heat representing the
business of generation and supplying of electricity and
heat (newly acquired during the year); and

- the oil production representing the business of oil
production (newly acquired during the year).

On 10 August 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of
the entire equity interests in Sunlight Rise Limited (“Sunlight
Rise”, together with its subsidiaries referred to as the “Sunlight
Group”) (note 40(a)) which is principally engaged in the
generation and supplying of electricity and heat in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Details of the acquisition have
been set out in the Company's circular dated 28 June 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 31 December 2010, the Group also completed
the acquisition of the entire equity interests in China
International Energy Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
International”, together with its subsidiaries referred to as the
“China International Group”) (note 40(b)) which is principally
engaged in the oil production in the PRC. Details of the
acquisition have been set out in the Company’s circular dated
11 October 2010.

During the year, the Group discovered that the exploration
licence held by the Company's subsidiary was transferred
without the Group’s consent, details of which are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 26 August 2010 and
27 August 2010. Presently, the board intends to suspend the
Group's exploration of mine business until the Group can
successfully resume the controls over its subsidiaries, namely
Qinghai Forest Source Mining Industry Developing Company
Limited ("QHFSMI") and Inner Mongolia Forest Source Mining
Industry Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”) and until the
Group repossesses the exploration licence. As a consequence,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group currently
does not have the power to exercise its rights as the sole
shareholder and is unable to exercise the control over the
financial and operating policy decisions of QHFSMI and IMFSMI.
In light of this, the directors of the Company consider that it
is inappropriate to consolidate the financial results of QHFSMI
and IMFSMI into the Group and these two wholly-owned
subsidiaries are de-consolidated and classified as discontinued
operations during the year. Certain comparatives on the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes have been re-presented as a result of
the retrospective application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") 5. Details of the financial impact as a
result of the loss of controls over the assets of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI are set out in notes 3(a)(i), 3(a)(ii) and 42 to the
financial statements.

—BRER (@)

R-E-ZFF+-_A=+—H X&EET
EEREBERPEBERERRE (F8)
BRRAB ([FEBEER]  EZREHMEAQ A
SRR PERRER]) 22K AER
(KI7E40(b)) - HEIBIBR R B = BN B
EERER BHNBERZFBERNA
AT —ZTF+AT—BHZARREK
7 o

FA AEEERARFAMBRARFAEZ
WRERAEASBEREMKREE G5
HBHAABAZT—ZHENA=+A
RZZB-Z2FNAZ+HBZARARRAM
WeBAT EEGRERT EASEZER
BRER BEEAREERID UK E S H T E
AA (AMEBRBRBEXFAEERAR([F
BRR]) RARGRFREXFAEFR DA
(TAREHIR]) ) ZEFEARAEES
MEAYRER - F ARRIEEAR
AEEBRRBEREITERFRE—RR 2%
Ao EEETERREAREHRRZY
BRRERRITEE IR - BERE - AR
RAEERAR TERSERRERAREHR
RZHBEBEEFARNEBZREA
HZMEE2ENB AR T BERA T AKRE
BZzBEER XNBACRIEEEER-
MR EPERAEEMHREER ([FEY
BamEEA ) B NG BER A
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EHZ2N -mRREHFTERERARE
BRRBEEZENEMEL B BREZH
18 B B TS #R R BT RE3(a)(0) ~ 3(a)(ii) Fea2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF +_A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

Other than the acquisitions and the de-consolidating
subsidiaries as described above, there were no significant
changes in the Group's operations during the year. The Group's
principal places of the business are in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 43 to 184 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™). The
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
("HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2011.

54  Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

—RER (@)

B EXFTZ WIEBEERTBEAEAREY
MEBARN NREEBEBRFARNLEEAKR
BE AEEZIEEEMBNRAESR
FR-EWNBARZEZEBEREMFRE
ARG BHREMTI8 -

HNFASE184E 2 MR TIRIBEH
SHMAS ([EASHMAE])FEMR
ZEBMBREER ([EAVBREE
Al ZeEBREmeEn 2 @RIE S
BREREN BB ER ([BAGTE
Al Rk ([2E)]) )R - BHHRERI
BIEEB R RUEH R ATE S LR A
(TEmRAD) ZEBERERE -

MBEBRARRB 2 EE BT (18
T2 BREBERIN MBESEIH
WERELZ TREF ([THET]) -

RE-T—TE+-A=T—AILFEZ
MBHRESR-E——F=A=+/\BE
EFRRER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HHE T —TF + —A=+T—RHILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2010:

2.

R T RSB B R M B ]
EEA

REAFE AEBERAEATIBEES
ARV ARG MM 2 ER BRI R &
FHRABEAEER - —ZF—A—HR
Fia 2 FEMB W B RERBE LHZ
EWBHREBAR:

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial AAGHER A RBIMEBRE
(Revised) Statements F27%
(#1857
Amendments to Share-based Payments — Group BB WS AR D A ER 2
HKFRS 2 Cash-settled Share-based Payment AR 255 NR—EEHRE
Transactions SCEHEN) HEELARMD A
ER 25
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations BEAVB@E ¥4 0
(Revised) AR 5357
(#1857
HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements B MBHRRZZET
— Classification by the Borrower —ZREESH —-BERAHEE
of a Term Loan that Contains a BEREERERZ
Repayment on Demand Clause EHERz
Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs —ETNF —ZEENFRAEM
HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 &S 2 ZIEBR BTG
BN 2 WEER ZEET
HETE B

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs
had no material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared
and presented.

BTXMAEIN RRZEHRT LR R
SRR E AT MR E AR 2 A R SR
MZBENEFN T AL BERFZE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —TF+ - A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. ERAFITIRLIETEBIMER

56

HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations
and HKAS 27 (Revised) — Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

The revised accounting policies are described in note 3(b) to
the financial statements, which are effective prospectively for
business combinations effected in financial periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009. Changes in HKFRS 3 include the
valuation of non-controlling interests the accounting for
transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes impact the
amount of goodwill and the results in the period that an
acquisition occurs and future results. The Group has accounted
for the acquisition of the Sunlight Group and the China
International Group according to the revised standard, details
of which are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

HKAS 17 (Amendments) — Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17
has been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold
land. Before the amendment to HKAS 17, the Group was
required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and
to present leasehold land as prepaid land lease payments
in the statement of financial position. The amendment to
HKAS 17 has removed such a requirement and requires that
the classification of leasehold land should be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
a leased asset have been transferred to the lessee. The Group
concluded that the classification of the land use rights in the
PRC as operating leases continues to be appropriate (see note
3(0)). The adoption of HKAS 17 has had no impact during
the year and the new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HHE T —TF + —A=+T—RHILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HK-Int 5 - Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

The Interpretation is a clarification of an existing standard,
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. It sets out the
conclusion reached by the HKICPA that a term loan which
contains a clause which gives the lender the unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time shall be classified as a
current liability in accordance with paragraph 69(d) of HKAS
1 irrespective of the probability that the lender will invoke the
clause without cause. The issuance of HK-Int 5 has had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements as the
Interpretation’s conclusion has already been consistent with the
policies already adopted by the Group.

Early adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Group early adopted the Amendments to HKFRS 3 —
Business Combinations which was pertinent to its operations.
In accordance with the relevant transitional provisions, business
combination refers exclusively to business combination whose
acquisition date preceded the application of this HKFRS as
issued in 2008. If a business combination agreement provides
for an adjustment to the cost of the combination contingent
on future events, the acquirer shall include the amount of that
adjustment in the cost of the combination at the acquisition
date if the adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.
If the future events do not occur or the estimate needs to be
revised, the cost of the business combination shall be adjusted
accordingly. No adjustment to the cost of the combination
contingent has been made during the year as a result of the
early adoption of the amendment.

R AT RSB B R YK |

SR (@)
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended HKFRSs
that are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting
policies is provided below. Certain other new and amended
HKFRSs have been issued but are not expected to have a
material impact of the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 and addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The new standard reduces the
number of measurement categories of financial assets and all
financial assets will be measured at either amortised cost or fair
value based on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be recognised
in profit or loss except for those on certain equity investments
which will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
directors of the Company are currently assessing the possible
impact of the new standard on the Group's results and financial
position in the first year of application.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS
9 to address financial liabilities. The changes resulting from
the amendments only affect the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities,
the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remainder of the change in fair
value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. All other requirements in HKAS 39 in
respect of liabilities are carried forward into HKFRS 9. However,
the loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of these
additions.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs and the
directors of the Company so far concluded that the application
of these new or revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—TF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’'s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE—ZT—TF + —_A=+T—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

Loss of controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI’s
assets

During the year, the board of directors,
discovered that as from 31 January 2010,
the exploration licence held by QHFSMI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
established in the PRC, had been transferred to
a company known as W5 & /N IR FREE ¥
BRRAF (in English, for identification purpose
only, Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian
Mining Industry Company Limited) (“Yuen Xian
Company”) without the Company’s knowledge,
consent or approval.

Based on the searches conducted by the
Company’s legal advisers, the Company was
advised that:

(a) Yuen Xian Company is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in the PRC
on 21 October 2009 and is wholly owned
by a company, namely Yuenxian Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited (“HK
Yuenxian”). Ms Leung Lai Ching Margaret
(“Ms Leung”) is one of the directors and
the legal representative of Yuen Xian
Company.

(b) HK Yuenxian (formerly known as Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited) is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 29 August 2008 and is
wholly owned by Ms Leung. Ms Leung is
also the sole director of HK Yuenxian.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i

Loss of controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI's
assets (Continued)

Disputes with Ms Leung

In November 2009, a legal proceeding was
commenced by Hong Kong Forest Source
Mining Industry Holding Company Limited
("HKFSMIH"), QHFSMI and IMFSMI, all of which
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group,
against HK Yuenxian, Ms Leung and such other
persons named as co-defendants to such legal
proceedings. The Company sought and obtained,
among other things, an interim injunction order
from the Hong Kong Court in the following
terms:

(a) An injunction restraining, amongst
others, HK Yuenxian and Ms Leung from
carrying on business in Hong Kong and/
or the PRC under the name of Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited (subsequently known as HK
Yuenxian since 7 January 2010); and

(b) An injunction restraining, amongst
others, Ms Leung from acting or
holding out as a director of QHFSMI
or interfering with the business of
QHFSMI, including but not limited to
making any representations, requests,
demands or promises to the Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region Commerce
and Industry Bureau or any other
governmental agencies in the PRC on
behalf of QHFSMI in regard to any affairs
of or relating to QHFSMI.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) Loss of controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI’s
assets (Continued)

Disputes with Ms Leung (Continued)

The interim injunction order was subsequently
discharged on 30 March 2010. Details of the
interim injunction order have been set out in
the 2009 annual financial statements of the
Company dated 14 May 2010 (“2009 Annual
Financial Statements”).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i

Loss of controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI's
assets (Continued)

Ms Leung'’s legal status as director and legal
representative in the PRC subsidiaries remained
unchanged during the year in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative
of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. On 10 September
2009, the sole shareholder of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (i.e. HKFSMIH) had resolved to remove
Ms Leung’'s capacity as director and legal
representative of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI
with immediate effect. As disclosed in the 2009
Annual Financial Statements and the Company’s
circular dated 28 June 2010, the respective
members of the board of directors and legal
representative of QHFSMI and IMFSMI had not
yet been officially changed as the procedures
of changing and updating the official records
at the relevant PRC government authority took
longer than expected as Ms Leung, being the
then legal representative, was not cooperative
and failed to provide the requested documents
and corporate seals. Based on the advices of the
Company's legal advisers as to PRC laws, the
directors of the Company were of the view that
the Company had maintained control on both
QHFSMI and IMFSMI despite the fact that the
respective members of the board of directors
and legal representative of QHFSMI and IMFSMI
had yet been officially changed, although it had
been resolved on 10 September 2009 that the
directors and legal representative of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI were removed with immediate effect.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

Loss of controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI’s
assets (Continued)

Transfer of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in
2007. QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration
licence which conferred QHFSMI the rights
to conduct exploration work for the mineral
resources containing iron, vanadium and
titanium in the titanium mine located at Xiao
Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC. Based
on the search conducted by the Company’s legal
advisers, the exploration licence was transferred,
without the Company’s knowledge, consent or
approval, to Yuen Xian Company on 31 January
2010. Such actions by Ms Leung were not
expected in view of the interim injunction order
obtained by the Company from the Hong Kong
Court, details of which are set out in the sub-
paragraph headed “Disputes with Ms Leung”
above. Without the exploration licence, QHFSMI
no longer has the rights to, among other things,
carry out exploration of the mineral resources of
the titanium mine, access to the titanium mine
and neighboring areas and has no priority in
obtaining the mining rights of the titanium mine.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i

Loss of controls over QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI's
assets (Continued)

Transter of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval
(Continued)

As soon as the Company had discovered the loss
of QHFSMI's exploration licence, the Company
sought advice from its legal advisers. Given the
discovery of the loss of significant assets of
QHFSMI, the board of directors is no longer in
the position of maintaining controls over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI by the Group. As a consequence,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group no longer has the power to exercise its
right as the shareholder and thus has lost its
control over the assets and operations and is
unable to exercise control over the financial
and operating policy decisions of QHFSMI
and IMFSMI. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company consider that it is inappropriate to
consolidate the financial statements of QHFSMI
and IMFSMI into the Group and these two
wholly-owned subsidiaries are de-consolidated
and classified as discontinued operations during
the year.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

Financial impact on de-consolidating
QHFSMI and IMFSMI

The Group has been unable to obtain the
financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI for
the year ended 31 December 2010. The directors
of the Company consider that the Group had lost
its control to govern the financial and operating
policies of QHFSMI and IMFSMI with effect from
1 January 2010. Accordingly, in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010, the financial information of
QHFSMI and IMFSMI was de-consolidated with
effect from 1 January 2010, and the loss arising
from loss of controls over QHFSMI and IMFSMI
amounting to approximately HK$348,966,000
was recognised based on the latest available
financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI
as at 31 December 2009. Details of the de-
consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI are set out in
note 42.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

(i) Business combination from 1 January 2010

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

(i

Business combination from 1 January 2010
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

3.

EX

(b)

EFEBRREZERERAF -

EBEHRGEEREE ®)

(i)

BE-E-—FF-—F-H#EZ
RESOf (HF)

WiE 7T % T 88 2 A
REHRWHEBHZ AFE
e MERKERBER
Rt EHE (REASWER
HifEEEH 121 ) AFTEIS A
BREERR AT EZ
AR EER R EE
R-nBREEXABZX
AREFREEMBERKRAES
RERRER -

REBRHB AR Z HERE
B (LESHREENE)
SR X 5 AR o A& E
Z W B IR R R R s
REES T IAHE AR
HRMB AR AR &
B o SRR R 2 T
BEDOHRIMZRER
FEZENEAZE 95
BN ERER WEBNA
REFEB A

—T-TFEEH 69



70

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combination from 1 January 2010
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combination prior to 1 January
2010

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition
of subsidiaries (other than those under common
control) is accounted for by applying the
purchase method. This involves the estimation of
fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary,
at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition.
On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their fair
values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion
of profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not
owned by the Group and are not the Group’s
financial liabilities.

3.

EX

(b)

EFEBRREZERERAF -

EBEHRGEEEE @®)

(i)

—E-EF-F—-HAiZ¥
BEvf

RERA R ERER A - W HT
BRAE (T REZARES
ZHE AR A REEA
IR o B MR~ FEBFR
WiRE B BB RRZAT
BrAIHREERAE (B
HABE) MTwmAE?
EFBERKRBAEEC
BN BERNE QR 2 B®R
RN BERHERE A RH
BRAZEERABESER
FERAGZAMBRRE
MAREA SR B2 &5 K
NHETBELREZE

% o

R RER RIEAEE
BFERTBAEENEEE
Z M B A E R R 2 B
A B R EEFE L —

5

—T-TEER 71



72

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Business combination prior to 1 January
2010 (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Profit or loss attributable to the non-
controlling interests is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the Group's result.
Where losses applicable to the non-controlling
exceed the non-controlling interests in the
subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses
applicable to the non-controlling are allocated
against the non-controlling interests to the
extent that the non-controlling has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the
losses are charged against the Group's interests.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits,
such profits are allocated to the non-controlling
interests only after the non-controlling’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company's
profit or loss.

Accounting for production sharing
contracts

Production sharing contracts constitute jointly controlled
operations. The Group's interests in production sharing
contracts are accounted for in the financial statements
on the following bases:

(i) the assets that the Group controls and the
liabilities that the Group incurs; and

(ii) the share of expenses that the Group incurs
and its share of income from the production
according to the terms stipulated in these
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at the closing rates.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and the use
by others of the Group's assets yielding interest, and
dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) sale of goods are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
buyers. This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods;

(ii) sale of electricity and heat is recognised upon
the transmission of electricity and heat to the
customer as determined based on the volume
of electricity and heat transmitted and the
applicable fixed tariff rates agreed with the
respective customers annually; and

(iii) interest income is recognised on time proportion
basis using effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when
incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

()

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
Accounting policies for the impairment of goodwill are
set out in note 3(m).

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Exploration and evaluation assets

These are stated at cost less impairment loss.
Exploration and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological survey drilling, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and expenditure incurred for
the technical feasibility studies and incurred to secure
further mineralisation in the mine ore. Expenditure
incurred prior to obtaining the exploration and
evaluation rights to explore an area are written off as
expense as incurred. Once the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting the mineral resource
had been determined and that the project reaches
development phase, exploration and evaluation costs
capitalised are amortised.

If exploration property is abandoned during the
evaluation stage, the total expenditure thereon will be
written off.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for
impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation
assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided as follows.

- Exploration and evaluation assets under oil
production business is amortised on unit of
production method.

- Customers’ contracts is amortised when the
revenue of the related customer contracts is
recognised.

- Interests in oil production sharing contracts
under oil production business is amortised on
unit of production method.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress (“CIP")) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Other than oil properties, depreciation is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual values, if
any, over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

The shorter of the lease
terms and 50 years

Buildings at mining site

Buildings The shorter of lease terms

and 29 years

Plant and machinery 12 to 15 years

Leasehold improvements, 3 to 10 years
furniture, office

equipment and motor

vehicles

Depreciation on oil properties is provided to write
off the cost of the oil properties using the unit of
production method utilising only proved developed oil
reserves as the depletion base.

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & Z —

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

CIP represents property, plant and equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct
costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. CIP is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
and depreciation commences when the construction
work is completed and the asset is ready for use.

Prepaid land lease payments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under
an operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to
be derived by the Group from use of the land.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments, exploration and evaluation assets,
intangible assets and interests in subsidiaries are subject
to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value-
in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflow independently (i.e.
CGUs). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested as CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs that
are expected to benefit from synergies of the related
business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment
loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or
value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group’s business that has been
disposed of, abandoned or is classified as held for sale,
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations of the Group.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Leases (Continued)
Operating lease charges as the lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating lease. Where the Group has the right to use
of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss using
straight-line method over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of coal gangue is determined
using weighted average method. All other cost is
determined using first-in, first-out method, and in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of
business less any applicable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Financial assets

Recognition and measurement

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. At each reporting
date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of
the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

(r)

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of
the statement of cash flows presentation, cash and cash
equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the
issue of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and accruals, amount due to non-controlling
shareholder, bank and other borrowings, promissory
notes and convertible bonds.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3(g)).

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

BEXESFTHBEME @)

(s)

(t)

(u)

RERAEEEER

RekReFEABRERTEF
BRE  RITEHEREREDH
BAR=EARUT AR LIRS
EAREBENEEEHRARKRTK
maBEERRE - 2R
mEXRME ReEMASEFEEAB
PREEBEREEZABKNAEERS
ERAEKE D Z|ITES -

SN

BB WA AR R
EEITRMO 2 EEREE - B3
THERZEMRZRAGR DG
B (IR ERBRBAZHAN )
BOEEALERARERFME
EZIE A -

MBEE

AEEZMBRABEREENEZK
TA K E At B AN SRIB S FEET R - JE
IR B AR R FRIA - R1T R E AR S
R ARERABRRES

MBABEEARERABERIAS
BHEXET K 7 B W SR - FT B A R 7
BRAXBBEAREBERRAZES
BRHER (F2HME3))



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial liabilities (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables and accruals, amount
due to non-controlling shareholder and promissory
notes

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability and an equity
component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
call option for conversion of the bonds into equity, is
included in equity as convertible bond equity reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the bonds.

When the bonds are converted, the convertible bond
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital and share premium as the consideration
for the shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the
convertible bond equity reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (continued)

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

According to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC are
required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments,
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of the basic salaries of their
employees to the scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement benefits
beyond the employer contributions. Contributions under
the scheme are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they are accrued to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognisesd until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included
in liabilities as deferred government grants in the
statement of financial position and are recognised in
profit or loss on straight-line method over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “Other income” in the income statement.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

For other goods or services received by the Group
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation, they are directly measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)

Share-based compensation (cContinued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are later forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Trading of carpets;
° Supply of electricity and heat; and
o Qil production.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service line requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-
segment transfers are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that finance costs, income tax and corporate
income and expenses which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate assets
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group's
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —TF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or is a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

(aa) BEAL

HREMHERERME  ETIER
T EBRALRRASAEE ZRE

At

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ZANTHENEESREB—
& 2% 2 R AP o e 4 ) AR B

E HAEENEREER
BRRBEERTE NS HE
AT HRES AEE 27T
54

REBEZATXHLRE
&

FZATRAEE 2B RE
FR—HEELE A&EE
RERETZ—:

ZALTARERZ TBED
E&%~T%Ai2§§ﬁ

BB EARS
ﬂ%TﬁﬁikwEﬁZ

B

AT ROMAZATZE

BB IR FEAES
HRZEHRAITEEATE

ﬁzﬁg«ﬁ

ZALTRUARERERNE
B(AEAEEZBEAL)
1B B 2 NI MR BER R
@HETE -

RATZERZBB RN HE

E%;‘f

ETRHEFEZANTHRZ
ITREZFKEKE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Depreciation

The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment using
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 50
years. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group's property, plant and
equipment.

Impairment of receivables

The Group's management reviews receivables on a regular
basis to determine if any provision for impairment is necessary.
The impairment loss on receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Allowances for impairment of receivables are determined by
management of the Group based on the repayment history
of its debtors and the current market conditions. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. Management reassesses the impairment
of receivables, if any, at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

98

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests on annual basis whether goodwill is impaired
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3(m).
The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgement and estimates of the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows forecast
and the suitable discount rates in order to calculate the present
value. Details in impairment assessment are set out in note 19
to the financial statements.

Valuation of convertible bonds

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s convertible
bonds which are not quoted in the active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair value of the liability and equity components inside the
convertible bonds are estimated by an independent professional
valuer. The fair value of these components varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in these
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the
fair value of these components.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ =T —TF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Control on QHFSMI and IMFSMI

As described in notes 3(a)(i) and 3(a)(ii) to the financial
statements, as soon as the Company had discovered the loss
of QHFSMI's exploration licence, without the Company’s
knowledge, consent or approval, the Company sought advice
from its legal advisers. Given the discovery of the loss of
significant assets of QHFSMI, the board of directors is no
longer in the position of maintaining the Group’s controls
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI. As a consequence, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group no longer has the
power to exercise its rights as the shareholder and thus has
lost its controls over the assets and operations and is unable
to exercise the control over the financial and operating policy
decisions of QHFSMI and IMFSMI. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company consider that it is inappropriate to consolidate the
financial statements of QHFSMI and IMFSMI into the Group and
these two-wholly owned subsidiaries are de-consolidated and
classified as discontinued operations during the year.

Estimated fair value of the acquired
intangible assets

Fair value of customers’ contracts is determined based on
excess earnings method. These calculations require the use
of estimates about future cash flows, discount rate and
duration of customers’ contracts. In the process of estimation,
management makes assumptions about future cash flow, costs
and duration of customers’ contracts.

Fair value of interests in oil production sharing contract is
determined based on the income approach. These calculations
require the use of estimates about future cash flows, discount
rate and oil reserves. In the process of estimation, management
makes assumptions about future cash flow, costs and oil
reserves.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Provision for legal claim

Provision for legal claim has been assessed by the directors
of the Company with reference to the advice from its legal
advisers, details of which are set out in note 31.

Estimation of oil reserves

Qil reserves are key elements in the Company’s investment
decision-making process. They are also an important element
in testing for impairment. Changes in oil reserves will affect
unit of production depreciation, depletion and amortisation
recorded in the financial statements for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets related to oil production
activities. A reduction in oil reserves will increase depreciation,
depletion and amortisation (assuming constant production) and
reduce net profit. Qil reserve estimates are subject to revision,
either upward or downward, based on new information,
such as from developing drilling and production activities or
from changes in economic factors, including product prices
or development plans. In general, changes in the technical
maturity of oil reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and production activities
have tended to be the most significant cause of annual
revisions.

Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax provisions in the period
in which such final tax liabilities determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WEKEMEA
The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the REEZ FEEBR I BRRM T 145EE -
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from REBEZEERRAZSHERERIEL
these activities on continuing and discontinued operations. EEB W
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities and other income REEFEEL 2 W REBRAMIIA
recognised are as follows: 7l N
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—z-%% —TEf
FERT FHT
(ggE5)
Revenue on continuing operations BEREEK 2 W&
Sale of goods HEEMm 1,207 10,332
Sale of electricity and heat HEE N KRB 44,413 -
45,620 10,332
Other income on continuing BESEERE2HMKA
operations
Bank interest income RITH BUA 121 50
Interest income from loan receivables EREWRRIE 2 T EWA - 1,736
Government grants (note) RAT R BY (BT 3E) 5,561 -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (notes) &I EQ Az Wk (M 7E) = 703
Sundry income FEBA 3,353 20
9,035 2,509
Turnover of the Group for the year is HK$45,620,000 (2009: REBRARNFE 2 & ¥58/545,620,0008
HK$10,332,000). 7T (ZZZ N4 :10,332,0007T) °
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102

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued) 5, WEREMEA @)
Notes: =
Government grants B # By

During the year, the government in the PRC compensated an

unconditional grant to the Group for its low selling price of heat energy.

FA PEBRNEASEERESEREMY AR
SEETEGEHBAEREE-

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEHE AR K
RZZEZNF-—A+TANB AEETKREE

On 16 January 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire
equity interests in a subsidiary, namely Beijing Forest Source Mining
Industry Development Company Limited (“BJFSMI”), for a consideration
of HK$10,000,000. As at the date of disposal, BJFSMI had net assets
of HK$9,332,000. Accordingly, a gain of HK$668,000 was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2009. Details of this

disposal transaction are fully described in note 41(a).

On 30 April 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire
equity interests in its subsidiaries, namely Jackley China Limited
("Jackley China"”) and its subsidiaries, for a consideration of HK$1. As at
the date of disposal, Jackley China and its subsidiaries had net liabilities
of HK$2,000. Accordingly, a gain of HK$2,000 was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2009. Details of this disposal

transaction are fully described in note 41(d).

On 4 May 2009, the Group completed the disposal of the entire equity
interests in its subsidiaries, namely 626 Limited and its subsidiary,
Hong Kong Forest Source Mining Industry Development Company
Limited, ("HKFSMID") for a consideration of HK$1. As at the date of
disposal, 626 Limited and its subsidiary had net liabilities of HK$33,000.
Accordingly, a gain of HK$33,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2009. Details of this disposal transaction

are fully described in note 41(e).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to management of the Group for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and review of these components’ performance.
The business components in the internal reporting to
management of the Group are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines. The Group has
identified the following reportable segments.

(a) the Trading of Carpets segment represents the trading
of carpets of other renowned brand names;

(b) the Supply of Electricity and Heat segment represents
the business of generation and supplying of electricity
and heat (newly acquired during the year); and

() the Oil Production segment represents the business of
oil production (newly acquired during the year).

There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the year
(2009: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. D¥E®R (#®

Supply of Electricity
Trading of Carpets and Heat 0il Production Total
EE#Y BEHE Eh @
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
-2-3% ZZINE —E-Bf ZZENE —E-%f ZZETNE —E2-%f% ZZTNE
FAR TR TAx FATL FARL TEL FAR TFAL
(BE7)) (&E3)) (EmE31) (m=5)
Reportable segment revenue: &S ERE
From external customers RENREF 2 g 1,207 10,332 44,413 - - - 45,620 10,332
Reportable segment profitiloss) #i&% BF/ (F8) (2.022) (1571) | (46,082) - | 606270 - | 558,166 (1,571)
Bank interest income RAFBHA - - 47 - - - 47 -
Depreciation g 3 - 9,723 - - - 9,726 -
Amortisation of prepaid land B L AEFHBEH
lease payments - - 269 - - - 269 -
Amortisation of intangible BVEEEH
assets - - 6,406 - - - 6,406 -
Impairment loss on goodwill  FEEEER - - 49,064 - - - 49,064 -
Gain on disposals of HENBARZ KE
subsidiaries - 33 - - - - - 33
Excess of acquirer's interest WELRERIER 2
in the net fair value of ARREE 8RR
acquiree's identifiable assets, B2 AT EE
liabilities and contingent FBBMRAZ
liabilities over cost - - - - 606,270 - 606,270 -
Reportable segment assets ~ RESEEE 685 958 787,534 - | 2,369,306 - | 3,157,525 958
Additions to non-current FEEERBHREE
segment assets during byl
the year 32 - 757,690 - 2,239,616 - 2,997,338 -
Reportable segment BENEAE
liabilities 109 51 157,404 - 622,372 - 779,885 51
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ =T —TF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as presented in

D EE R (&)

MAEEEEDEMES 28T

> RR LR 7%

BRP 2N AEE T 2UBEHEFOYR

the financial statements as follows: W
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
Group ARE —2-BF —EENF
FET FAT
(g=E5))
Reportable segment revenue WED AR E 45,620 10,332
Consolidated revenue A W 45,620 10,332
Reportable segment profit/(loss) wEDEEF (EE) 558,166 (1,571)
Finance costs B 75 K AR (5,229) (6,455)
Other unallocated income E bR BEIA 73 2,509
Other unallocated expenses Eh R o X (22,461) (57,029)

Profit/(Loss) before income tax and BRETER M BRI EERA

discontinued operations wAL (EE) 530,549 (62,546)
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-ZTF —EENF
FET FAET
(&E75))
Reportable segment assets WMEPHEE 3,157,525 958
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB MR 418 3,605
Deposits for acquisitions of subsidiaries W E AR 2% & - 185,000
Exploration and evaluation assets R R HEE - 38,562
Goodwill [EES - 327,632
Cash at banks and in hand RIOTEFLFERS 16,366 112,757
Other corporate assets HEiRrEE 1,273 1,060
Group assets SEEE 3,175,582 669,574
Reportable segment liabilities mENEEE 779,885 51
Convertible bonds Al E 20,292 19,279
Promissory notes RE 43,865 -
Other corporate liabilities Bt ArlBE 39,273 22,508
Group liabilities SEBE 883,315 41,838
RREBREZRERAT « — T —TFFK
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. D¥E®R (#®
The Group's revenues from external customers are divided into REERBINERE Z WamIZ A T i@ &
the following geographical areas: 7
Hong Kong
(Domicile) PRC Total
EE(BE) HE @zt
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
—E-BF ZZTNE ~2-3% ZZENF —Z-%f ZZTNE
TEL T TR TR TR FHL
(& 55]) (m=51) (8 55)
Reportable segment revenue: BEFBUE:
From external customers RENEEP 2 K% 1,207 10,332 44,413 - 45,620 10,332
Non-current assets *RBEE 448 185,027 2,941,845 369,772 2,942,293 554,799
The geographical location of customers is based on the location BERPAEMRIDRBAZINE G2 E
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of Do EMBEEMEMENRBEEMTE
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the HE 5 o
asset.
Revenue from the major customers is as follows: REFERPZWEEHIIWNT :
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
S i —TEAE
FHERT FHT
(i&E5)
Customer A (note a) EFPA(M&Fa) 1,207 10,332
Customer B (note b) BFB (MiEb) 10,380 -
Customer C (note b) ZEC (KisEb) 10,050 -
Customer D (note b) ZFD (K#Eb) 7,863 -
Customer E (note b) ZPFPE(W3Eb) 5,611 -
35,111 10,332
Notes: P o
(a) Revenue from this customer was derived from the Trading of (a) KEZEBRFZRERENE R D
Carpets segment. 5o
(b) Revenue from these customers was derived from the Supply of (b) REZERP W KRR BEHES
Electricity and Heat segment. $Ho
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAEEA
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
S i —TTAf
FTERT FHET
(rE5)
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest on bank and other borrowings ~ —F R F| i 7 $8 17 & E b & A &
due within one year 3,065 53
Finance leases &4 - 5
Imputed interest on promissory notes REZHENE (H5E34)
(note 34) 11 -
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR E S 2 HEFE (FfFE35)
(note 35) 2,153 6,397
5,229 6,455

HERERREEZRERAT « —T-TF5® 107



108

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —TF+ - A=+—HILFE

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRIEHAER (&BE)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging the BRAIEHAER, (BE)EHNBRATSE
following: 15

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-ZF ZEThF
FHERT FET
(& E5)
Continuing operations HERSEXER
Cost of inventories recognised BRAERAZ ZEEKRAR

as expense 20,500 10,020
Depreciation (note a below) e (Txkiza)

- owned assets —-BEEE 9,841 147

— leased assets —HEEE - 63

9,841 210
Amortisation of prepaid land TE AT+ b FH & FRIE 8

lease payments (note 17) (FBFEE17) 269 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mivEEEH (MF22) **

(note 22)** 6,406 -
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI B 700 480
Exchange loss, net P& i E 185 58 381 -
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 19) PEREEE (H:E19) 49,064 -
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HEMBARZER

(note b below)** (FFisEb ) ** - 10,534
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE HER&EE BB

plant and equipment** 269 10
Operating lease charges on land and T RIEFZLEEHENER

buildings 1,430 1,098
Outgoings in respect of leasing EHEEEME T

properties - 220
Provision for impairment loss of H b U GRIB R BB 1B B~

other receivables** 39 30,965
Staff costs, including directors’ EINA BREEEN

emoluments (note 14) (FF3E14) 8,885 3,344
* Included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of the o Bt ASREEER [EMEERE] -

consolidated income statement.
Notes B 5
(a) Depreciation expenses of HK$9,337,000 (2009: Nil) and (a) ¥r &R 29,337, ooo,%yg(: B
HK$504,000 (2009: HK$210,000 (re-presented)) were included ) 504,000 L (ZEZNEF:
in cost of sales and administrative expenses respectively. 210,000/ 7T (KL EF)) ) » Rzt A&
PR A R ATHER S o
(b) On 21 August 2009, the Group completed the disposal (b) RZZEZAFNAZ+—B 4A&H

of the entire equity interests in its subsidiaries, namely
Aurora International Enterprises Limited (“AIEL") and its
subsidiaries, for a consideration of HK$2,000,000. As at the
date of disposal, AIEL and its subsidiaries had net assets of
HK$12,534,000. Accordingly, a loss of HK$10,534,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2009. Details of this disposal transaction are fully described in
note 41(f).
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LA {Z2,000,0007% T i & HE R Aurora
International Enterprises Limited
((AlELJ)&EIKﬁ% A (HARER
MEBAR) 22HRA#Em RNEER
ﬁﬂwa&ﬁﬂﬁ% ABEEEAETE
12,534,000/ 7L A - A& B2 R EL
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INCOME TAX CREDIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ =T —TF+-_A=+—HILFE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had
no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong

Kong for both years.

Fr&®ist A

HRAEERMEFESBEEEBELME
{5t ERBOE M - MW B E RSN
TR B -

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-ZF —EETAF
FET FET
(&&=%)
Current tax — the PRC & IR —
— Current year —AREE 145 -
Deferred tax — the PRC EERRIE—F
— Current year (note 36) —ARFE (7E36) (1,602) -
Income tax credit Frig®at A (1,457) -

Reconciliation between income tax credit

and the accounting

BERBERAEZMERA ARG S

profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: S (BB ZHERT

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Re-presented)

—z-=% —TThE

FHERT FET

(reE5)

Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETSRATER, (FBiE) 181,583 (432,187)
Tax at the applicable rates to profit/(loss) ¥R ATS R sl AR 2% F,/

in the tax jurisdictions concerned (BR)RERAREAEZHIE 80,985 (72,125)

Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBMWA 2 RFB & (267,589) (474)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TP 2 G2 186,603 71,877
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised REEBHLEFE 2 RERTIA

tax losses utilised this year EREZBEVE (1,792) (83)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIEBEZHBETE 336 805

Income tax credit FRERE A (1,457) -

HREBRREEZRERAR « —F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

10.

11.

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat and Power Company
Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi”) (newly acquired during
the year) is subject to PRC enterprise income tax at the tax rate
of 25% for the year.

China Era Energy Power Investment Limited’s branches in
Beijing and Jilin, the PRC (newly acquired during the year) are
subject to PRC enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 25% for
the year.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors did not recommend any payment of
dividends during the year (2009: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As mentioned in notes 3(a)(i) and 3(a)(ii), exploration of mine
business is presented as discontinued operations in accordance
with HKFRS 5 during the year.

On 20 March 2009, the Group completed the disposal of
the entire equity interests in its subsidiaries, namely Orient
Carpet Manufacturing (HK) Limited (“Orient Carpet”) and its
subsidiary, namely Hui Zhou Orient Carpet Manufacturing Co.,
Limited (“"HZOCM"), for a consideration of HK$19.3 million of
which (a) HK$12.2 million was used to set off against the net
current liabilities of HZOCM and (b) HK$7.1 million was paid in
cash on completion date. Accordingly, a gain of HK$8,341,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2009. Details of this disposal transaction are fully
described in note 41(c).
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10.

11.

FEHFTA @

AT EEEAREFR AR ([ILFEF
JIBA]) (RAFEEFHKRE) AFEEEAER
25% 7 TR MR B EMEH -

TERERERREARARRFEILER R
EMZDRB (RAFEHWE) RFE
JAYR25% 2 TR B PRS-

iz 2

FR EEFFEFVRNEMRE(ZF
ENFE)

CRIEEERK

AR E3(a) (i) M3 (a) (i) AT A - A = EA F A
RIBEEM B REELBSRBREEHR
EB2IRORIERERS-

R-ZZEZAF=ZA_-1+H KEBEZ
REEERRFWBEE (FB)AE
RAaal ([EAwH])REWEB QG
BMNMERABEBEEER DA ([EM
RAwH]) (BAAXRNEENEBERQF)
ZEHBAEZ  KEA19,300,000
v Er(a) 12,200,0008 T E AR
EHEEMNES B B EEFEL
(b) 7,100,000 L E R TR A HALA IR €
BB AEBEREBEE2_ZZTNF
TZA=F+—RAIEFEZERERERKSE
8,341,000 T - ZEX FH 2 BEEHH
R E41(C) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 1. ERLEBEXL @)
An analysis of the results and cash flows of Discontinued IR GERERRMEERERERLE
Operations included in the consolidated income statement and BRIt EXEB 2 EERBE2RES TN
the consolidated statement of cash flows was as follows: Ik
2010 2009
—E-%F —ETNE
The
The Carpet The
Exploration of Manufacturing Exploration of
Mine Business Business Mine Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
BEMFRER MR EER BEORER gt
FET FHT FHET FHET
(L&) (&E5)
Revenue Yz - - - -
Other income H Ao g A - - 6 6
Expenses il % - - (9,587) (9,587)
Impairment loss recognised in ERABHEBRERR
respect of goodwill (note 19) (Ft&£19) = - (368,401) (368,401)
- (377,982)  (377,982)
Income tax expense PriS T X - - - -
- (377,982) (377,982)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERB QR Z ks
(note 41(c)) (M =E41(0)) - 8,341 - 8,341
Loss on de-consolidating subsidiaries KB R A THEAAEZ
(note 42) &iE (Mi5E42) (348,966) - - -
(Loss)/Profit for the year from REFERIEEEBRR
discontinued operations and ZAN/NEIEZ ZS N
attributable to the owners of the e (B518) &R
Company (348,966) 8,341 (377,982) (369,641)
Operating cash inflows KEBWERA = - 3,297 3,297
Investing cash outflows BERE M - - (2,907) (2,907)
Financing cash outflows BMERES RS - - (320) (320)
Net cash inflows REeEmAFE - - 70 70
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

12.

13.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

12.

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$184,887,000 (2009: a loss of HK$432,187,000),
a loss of HK$370,008,000 (2009: HK$669,839,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

13.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share

attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

K?ﬁ%ﬁk@ﬁ%ﬂ/f%
|

KRR AR AELEREEF]184,887,000
B (ZETNF  E18432,187,0008
JT) - B E370,008,0008 T (—EE A
% : 669,839,000/ L) < BIEE N AR F
WS IR R IE o

SREFN(BE)

ARREBEAREERERREERT,/
(B18) DIRBIATERAE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—e-%% “2ThE
FERT FET
(#eE51)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ~ AT ESKREARREF, (EIE)
the owners of the Company for the ZARRNEHEEANEBERFE
purpose of basic earnings/(loss) wHL (R
per share 184,887 (432,187)
Loss for the year attributable to the REEARRFHEE AERELLIE
owners of the Company from KL IR
discontinued operations (348,966) (369,641)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ~ FRIAFESREARREF, (EIE)
the owners of the Company for the ZRFERRREB AEMN
purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per BEREEB R (BE)
share from continuing operations 533,853 (62,546)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary B SRR TR
shares:
— Imputed interest on convertible — AR ES 2 HEEF S
bonds 2,153 -
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to ~ AT EEREEET, (FHiE)
the owners of the Company for the ZRFERRNRES AEMN
purpose of diluted earnings/(loss) per BEEEEB RN (BE)
share from continuing operations 536,006 (62,546)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

13.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

13. BREFN(F#E) &)

2010 2009
'000 '000
(Re-presented)
—E-TF —ETNF
T & T
(ge=E5)
Number of shares R4 8B
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EGREREF, (EBE)
shares for the purpose of basic 2 EBRINE T
earnings/(loss) per share 8,139,726 5,281,679
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BHEEELBAR 2 ZE:
shares:
— Convertible bonds -]k ES 519,097 -
Weighted average number of ordinary ANFTEEREERR, (E8)
shares for the purpose of diluted 2 E RN T8
earnings/(loss) per share 8,658,823 5,281,679

No diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company is presented for the year ended 31 December 2009 as
there were no dilutive potential shares.

From continuing and discontinued
operations:

The calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing
and discontinued operations is based on the profit attributable
to the owners of the Company of HK$184,887,000 and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 8,139,726,000
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
adjusted profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$187,040,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 8,658,823,000 outstanding during the year,
after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The adjusted profit attributable to the owners of the
Company is calculated based on the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010
of HK$184,887,000 as used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share plus interest of HK$2,153,000 on the convertible
bonds.

MR EABREEETE R REE
ZETAFFT A=+ —HIFETESR
SIARBHEE NEIEEBREEER-

REFARCRIEREEEK:

HERERIIEEEBSRERAT T
RIEAR R B HEE ARG R F/184,887,000
BLTRFAEBETEBRRINEFHH
8,139,726,000f% 5+ & -

BREEARFIDBIBEARRRES AEWN
% #187,040,00008 T M F N T E R
P& AN ¥ 15 £48,658,823,000 /8 51 & (453
BRBEABEREVEERRIFE
%) RDNRHEA AL TAERZF TR
BANGESREARAZBEE-_S—F
FH+—AZ+—HLEFERQARHEE AR
% 7 184,887,000/8 7T N kAT A A% (B 55
2 F 82,153,000/ Tt & »

oH]

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

13.

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing and discontinued
operations: (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the weighted average of 8,139,726,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year as used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share plus the weighted average of 519,097,000 ordinary
shares deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the
Company's convertible bonds had been converted.

The denominators and numerators used are the same as those
details above for both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share.

No diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to the owners of the Company is
presented for the year ended 31 December 2009 as there were
no dilutive potential shares.

From continuing operations:

The calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing
operations is based on the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$533,853,000 and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 8,139,726,000 in issue during the
year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
adjusted profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of HK$536,006,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 8,658,823,000 outstanding during the year,
after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The adjusted profit attributable to the owners of the
Company is calculated based on the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010
of HK$533,853,000 as used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share plus interest of HK$2,153,000 on the convertible
bonds.
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13.

EREFN,(FHE) &)

REFBEARCRIELERE:
(%)

FA LA B G IR 8 8 2 F) 2 5 im % hnfE S 15
SKRBEAUAEEREABFZFAD
BT B INRE 1 888,139,726,0000% -
N EBIARR R AR EASD RS ERN
WEBERERTZEBRMETAHH
519,097,000/% 5+ & -

TR & kD FHE ElFESRER
&ﬁ&?ﬁ@ﬁ"J/()Eﬁ?E)ﬁﬁFﬁ%ﬁH"

MAYELBERIZE RN BWEE
“EENFF AT HLEFELES
SIRREHAANRERBERDRIEEEE
BEREEEE-

REFELEXER:

BECEEFEBREARBNTIREAR QA
A A FE{h % #)533,853,000/8 7T & E K
B 21T B R b #E - ¥9 #48,139,726,000
REtE -

BERMDIRBEARRER ABMLK

S F1536,006,00078 7T M F A E%é/‘

J% hn#& ¥ 35 48,658,823 oooﬂx
KRABEMBEABEESLE sz
4 Xt QP N/N Wﬁ*ﬁ/\ﬂﬁ%&uﬂ%&ﬂu
DIRBEAUFESRERBAN 2 HEZT
—ZEFE+ A=+ —BHUEFEARGEHE
AJE{E % 533,853,000/ 7T Hn_E AT #A A%
&% 2 F82,153,000/8 L1 & -

i #T

&
A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

13.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
From continuing operations: (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the weighted average of 8,139,726,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year as used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share plus the weighted average of 519,097,000 ordinary
shares deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the
Company'’s convertible bonds had been converted.

The denominators and numerators used are the same as those
details above for both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share.

No diluted loss per share from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is presented for
the year ended 31 December 2009 as there were no dilutive
potential shares.

From discontinued operations:

The calculation of basic loss per share from discontinued
operations is based on the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$348,966,000 and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 8,139,726,000 in issue during the
year.

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$348,966,000
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
8,658,823,000 outstanding during the year, after adjusting
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The loss
attributable to the owners of the Company is calculated based
on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010 of HK$348,966,000 as used in
the calculation of basic loss per share.

13.

EREN (FE) @
REFELKEER (@)

AUGTESRESERN LR MEFH
HRERAUGTESRERARFZFANE
BT E B AR INE 19 £48,139,726,0004% -
N ERNAR R AR EH O B E IR m
WEABBEBRERTZEBRMETHH
519,097,000/% 51 & o

PAND B8RS FHEERGFESRER
R#ERAN, (BER)MAEER-

HRYELBEEGZE RN BEE
ZETNFFT A=+ —HIFETES
SIRABHEEANREFERLEEESRE
HEE -

RESKRIEEEEK:

ERIEREEBERERNBEBHIRE
AR HEAB AFEALEE348,966,000
BIAERFABBITEBEBRMEF A
8,139,726,000f% 5t & -

BREBEEBEDIBRERARGES AEIL
/518348,966,000/8 7L K F A B 1T ¢ R
B DN 7 15 £18,658,823,00008 5T & (£
BREEBEEEYE ERR v E
%) ANDNEEE AEGEETRERMN
SHEEREABEZEE-T—TF+=
A=+—HALEFERRAGHE ARIGER
348,966,000/ LT & -

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 13.

From discontinued operations: (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted loss per share is calculated based on the
weighted average of 8,139,726,000 ordinary shares in issue
during the year as used in the calculation of basic loss per share
plus the weighted average of 519,097,000 ordinary shares
deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the Company’s
convertible bonds had been converted.

The denominators and numerators used are the same as those
details above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

No diluted loss per share from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is presented for
the year ended 31 December 2009 as there were no dilutive
potential shares.

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 14.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EREAN,(FA) @)
RECOKRIEREEK: (@)

ANGTESREEEIE 2 TR NEFY
FRBEAUGTESREABIEZFAE
BT A% hn#E 19 £48,139,726,000/%
hn RN A B A R AR 5 B R B R M
WREABENREBER{ITZ L BEBRMEFIEH
519,097,000/% 5+ &

FRAM D B Ry FHE G ESRER
NEgEEEmREER -

MR ELBEEETE R D REE
TETAFFT A=t -HIEFELEZR
SIARRHREABBCKRIEREXBER
BEEE-

E%Eﬂﬁi(@ﬁﬁ%%

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-2F —ZZTTAF
FERT FHET
(& E5)
Continuing operations BEKSEER

Wages, salaries and allowances ITE %HekEih 8,656 3,281

Pension costs — defined contribution RARESKA—EEENEE
plans 229 63
8,885 3,344
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

15. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

15. EERAVBRSHFMALHE

Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
Salaries,
allowances  Contribution to
and benefits retirement
Fees in kind  benefit scheme Total
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2R BIRER
He BMEAN sHEIER FohHy
Wi aE FTHEx FTEx FTEx TEx
2010 —E-ZF
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Law Fei Shing BEMEE - 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BREEEE - - - -
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing PBREI S S - = = =
Mr. Wang Donghai TRELEE - - - =
Mr. Zhao Guogiang B 58 5 ) - - - -
Non-executive director ~ FEHITEE
Mr. Zhang Zhenming RIREA K4 (i = - - -
Independent non- BIUFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MHEZELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FrEREE 30 - - 30
Mr. Chow Pui Fung FEE %L - - - -
90 1,800 12 1,902
Note: B 5E
(i) Resigned on 10 November 2010. (i) RZZE—ZTF+—FTHE
Fo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND 15. EERTVESFMALHE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (4&)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME (@)
Salaries,
allowances Contribution
and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind benefit scheme Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
He BMK RKIEF
we EMEF BE 153 et
WisE FET FiET FET FHET
2009 —EETNE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Law Fei Shing BB EE - 1,800 12 1,812
Mr. Chan Sung Wai REERE - - - -
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing BR B0 48 4 A (i) - - - -
Mr. Wang Donghai TRELE (ii) - - - -
Mr. Zhao Guogiang B 38 5 A (iii - - - -
Mr. Fok Po Tin EEMLE (iv - - - -
Mr. Tam Owen B L s (v) - - - -
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Lam Shing Tsun, R 5t 4
Edmond (vi) 8 - - 8
Mr. Zhang Zhenming RIREASEE (vii) - - - -
Independent non- BUKHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lum Pak Sum WHRARLE 60 - - 60
Mr. Sun Tak Keung FEBEE 30 - - 30
Mr. Chow Pui Fung EEEEE - - - -
98 1,800 12 1,910
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Appointed on 3 July 2009. (i) RZZEZNFLtA=ZHEZL
Fo
(ii) Appointed on 10 September 2009. (ii) RZZEZNFNATHEZ
Fo
(iii) Appointed on 23 December 2009. (iii) R_ZEZNF+=-_A=+=H
BEE-
(iv) Resigned on 16 April 2009. (iv) R_ZEZANFWNA+HE
Fo
(v) Retired on 2 June 2009. (v) R-ZEZNFENA-ZBRME-
(vi) Removed on 8 December 2009. (vi) R-ZZEZNFF+_ANBHE
%o
(vii) Appointed on 17 July 2009. (vii) RZZEZNF+LtAT+HHEZ
Fo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

15. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group

to the directors of the Company as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2009: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director
of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2009: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest

in the Group during the year included 1 director (2009:

1) and his emoluments are reflected in the above
analysis. Details of the emoluments of the remaining 4

15. EERAVBRSHFMALHE

()

(a)

(b)

EEME @)

FR AEELERNARBDEERL
MERMSE  (FRMAREELR
B2 BT A RBERME (=
TTNFE) -

FR UEEFAAAREERER
RERREMNMS 2 ZH (ZFF
NFE)

TfusEFMAL

FA - AEBLUSGSFMALE
B—ERE(ZZETAF: —f1)
MeMeFBELELXDT-F
N BTHZAL(ZTEFAE:

individuals (2009: 4) during the year are as follows: i) 2 e 15T
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F —TENF
F&T FAT
Basic salaries, housing benefits, ~ EA#FH & EE205-
other allowances and benefits HA 2B R EMA =
in kind 1,649 1,032
Contribution to retirement RKAE FIFT &) 2 R
benefit scheme 47 40
1,696 1,072
RREBREZRERAT « — T —TFFK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND 15.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The number of the remaining highest paid individuals
whose emoluments fell within the following band is as

EERANVESHFHALHE

(&)

(b)

ENERSHFMAL &)

BE&N T A TEE 2 8% T 5o 5
ALHEHEWT:

follows:
2010 2009
—Z2-ZF —EThF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T, 4 4
FR - AN BN E M il & = &

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the above highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office (2009: Nil).

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. % BERRE
(a) Group (a) *&KHE
Leasehold
improvements,
Buildings furniture, office
at the Oil Plant and equipment and
mining site Buildings properties machinery motor vehicles ar Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BENE
RELY 26 i
8% £ RHEE BEREE  BORBRAZ ERIR it
TER THT THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-B
Cost i 2892 - - - 535 - 8,246
Accumulated depreciation R E - - - - (3537) - (3537)
Net book amount FEEE 2,892 - - - 1817 - 4,709
Year ended HE-ERNFT2R
31 December 2009 “t-HLFE
Opening net book amount I EFE 2,89 - - - 1817 - 4,709
Additions hE - - - - 32 - 32
Disposals e - - - - (10) - (10)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAT
(note 41(7) (H&am) - - - - (85) - (85)
Exchange differences EiZE (13) - - - (1) - (20)
Depreciation Vil (222) - - - (7199) - (1,001)
Closing net book amount ~ FXEEFE 2,657 - - - 948 - 3,605

At 31 December 2009

Cost 2879 - - - 4734 - 7613
Accumulated depreciation R E (22 - - - (3,786) - (4,008)
Net book amount EEEE 2,657 - - - 948 - 3,605
Year ended HZ-3-35125

31 December 2010 Zt-BLEE
Opening net hook amount I EFE 2,657 - - - 948 - 3,605
Additions hE - 58 - 72,409 801 1,594 74,862
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  WEEMIBA

(notes 40(a) and (b)) (HFE40@) R (b)) - 118,120 99,981 183,419 20,199 14,608 436,327
Disposals e - - - (266) (215) - (481)
Disposals due to EHEAATEGANR

de-consolidating e (Kz42)

subsidiaries (note 42) (2,657) - - - (921) - (3,578)
Exchange differences EXZR - 3,733 - 5702 82 49 9,566
Depreciation nE - (1,715) - (7,647) (479) - (9,841)
Closing net book amount ~ FAKEFE - 120,196 99,981 253,617 20,415 16,251 510,460
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-2f

TZB=1-H

Cost A - 121,944 99,981 261,409 21,492 16,251 521,01
Accumulated depreciation  ZifiTE - (1,748) - (7,79) (1,07) - (10,617)
Net book amount BEFE - 120,196 99,981 253,617 20,415 16,251 510,460
Buildings are located on the prepaid land lease EFANARFRE BN L ERE
payments in the PRC (note 17). (FF&E17) °

ERERREERERAT « —T-TFFH 121



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ BERZE @)

(Continued)

(b) Company (b) A21F

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, office
equipment and
motor vehicles

HK$'000
HEWE
15 RM -
WARERRE
FET
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENF—HA—H
Cost B AR 451
Accumulated depreciation RETTE (368)
Net book amount BREFE 83
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZZhF+-_A=+—BHLFE
Opening net book amount FAREFE 83
Depreciation e (73)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 10
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZENF+_A=+—8H
Cost B 451
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (441)
Net book amount IRAEFE 10
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-_Z—ZF+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FYEEFE 10
Depreciation e (3)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 7
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF+-A=+—H
Cost B AR 451
Accumulated depreciation REHInE (444)
Net book amount REFE 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17.
- GROUP

These represented the Group’s interests in leasehold land
and land use rights in the PRC, held without a specific term.
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are summarised as follows:

ANt EERE-AEE

ZEFBERRNEENTERFE BT
A2 F & £ 3t o (s i 2 #E 25 o Y
Fa MBI R 25 2 BREE & E it an
T

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-2F —ETNEF

FHET FHET

Opening net carrying amount FYREFE - -

Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 40(a))  UBEMI B A &) (M 5E40(a)) 28,921 -

Exchange differences N =% 917 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEf L P ERIEE 8 (MI5E8)

payments (note 8) (269) -

Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 29,569 -

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18.

RBARZER-FARQT

2010 2009
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
2= —zEhE
B 5 F&T FAT

Investments B"E
— Unlisted shares, at cost —3E LR B AE (a) = -
Due from subsidiaries JE WS BT /B A B 5K IR 2,632,604 1,031,360
Loans to a subsidiary LY —HERBARIZER - 2,423
(b) 2,632,604 1,033,783
Provision for impairment loss A E B B (1,047,365) (694,443)
1,585,239 339,340
HREBREZRERAR « — T —TFFK



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF +_A=1+—HILFE

18.
(Continued)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

18.

Movement in the provision for impairment of interests in

subsidiaries is as follows:

REBAR2EEZ-ADH

(#)

RMBARZ Rz RERBESHNT

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE2-2F —TTAF
FET FHET
At 1 January Kn—A—H (694,443) (316,929)
Additional impairment during the year FANEINRE (352,922) (652,116)
Reversal of impairment as a result of HEWBAREERE
disposals of subsidiaries - 274,602
At 31 December R+TZA=+—H (1,047,365) (694,443)
Notes: B
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FTEWNERARFBUOT:
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i) RZE—ZTF+=-A=+—8H
December 2010 are as follows: ZEEMBARZFENT
Place of Percentage of Principal
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ equity attributable activities and
Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
ARER AR AL, RS B BRRA SERESR AAREEREAES L TEERREEHY
Directly held
HERF
Smooth Way International British Virgin Ordinary United 100% Investment holding,
Limited Islands (“BVI") States dollars Hong Kong
("US$") 1
I B B i A PR 2 A RBRETEE EEBIET 100% BB BB
Cheerful Dragon Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
1GREARAR EBRUES LmiR1ZET 100% REE - B
Precious New Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
BEFEARRAF REBRZFES EEBIET 100% BB BB
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HHE T —TF + —A=+T—RHILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2010 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Paid-up share/

(4&)

Bst: (4F)

18. RINBARzERZ-—A1QH

(a) TENBRARGFENAT: (4)

(i) i

—ZEE+-A=+—H

ZEBWMBRBZHBOT

(&

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
DRAER SEMRAR LB 37 it B BHRE SRELR ARAEEREFES L TEXBRCE BN
Indirectly held
MERE
Energy Investments (Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Kong) Limited (formerly Hong Kong
known as Energy
International Investments
Holdings Limited)
EREE (BEB)ERRAR BE TER1IET 100% BREER  &E
(ATTE AL IR BRI AR B 1 AR
BIRAA)
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
EWBEBRAF e TER1IET 100% REER B
Ho Fai Carpet Trading Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Trading of carpets,
Limited* Hong Kong
B E S ERAF e TER1IET 100% BEEMB B8
Kanson Development BVI Ordinary US$200 100% Investment holding,
Limited Hong Kong
Kanson Development BEBELES EEA%2003= 7T 100% WEER &5
Limited
Hong Kong Forest Source Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Investment holding,
Mining Industry Holding HK$70,000,000 Hong Kong
Company Limited*
BB ARRIE AR BB % 4m % 70,000,000 100% RERER - &
BRAE* BT

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF +_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. RMBARIZEHZ—AQFH
(Continued) (#4&)
Notes: (Continued) Misk: (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) FEMBRARGFENT : (&)
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i) R-ZE—ZEF+-_A=+—H

ZEEMBARZHBNOT:

December 2010 are as follows: (Continued)

126
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Place of
incorporation/

Paid-up share/

(&

Percentage of
equity attributable

Principal
activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
ARER FEMRAR LB 3L i B BRRA SERESR ARREERFED L TEXBRCE Y
Indirectly held (Continued)

BiERE (&

Sunlight Rise Limited** BVI Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,

Hong Kong

AEHR DR ** ABRARE Tmk2ET 100% BEER FB

Pride Treasure Limited** Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% Investment holding,

Hong Kong
HE AR AT > i L@k 10,000 7T 100% BB BB
Ontop Finance Limited** Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong

REBAEBRRA i EERUET 100% BB BB

Shanxi Zhong Kai Group PRC Renminbi ("RMB") 60% Supply of electricity
Lingshi Heat and Power 185,000,000 and heat, the PRC
Company Limited**

ARSI EEERARE i AR 60% HEHRE FE
AR 185,000,0007T,

China International Energy BVI Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,
Investments (Hong Kong) Hong Kong
Limited***

TREIBERERRE (BE) ABREAHE w2k T 100% BB BB

BRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ =T —TF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 18. RMiB AT 2R — AT

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWMBRARAFBEET: (&)
(Continued)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (i) RZE—ZEF+=-_A=+—8H

December 2010 are as follows: (Continued) ZEEMBARZHBOT:

(#&)
Place of Percentage of Principal
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ equity attributable activities and

Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation

DARB R AL, B 3 3t B BHRA EMELR AAREEREAES L TEEBREE Y

Indirectly held (Continued)

BiEEE (&)

China International Energy Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Investments (Hong Kong) Hong Kong
Limited***

PEBRERRE (F8) FE TRER1ET 100% REER B
ERAF

China Era Energy Power Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% Oil production, the

Investment Limited
("China Era") ***

PREFRERRERR e Lm0 T
RN ([HRBEEFR]) oxr

* Subsidiaries audited by BDO Limited.

** Subsidiaries acquired on 10 August 2010.

ok Subsidiaries acquired on 31 December 2010.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

PRC

100% BHEE FH

* ZEMBRAKLEB
VIERREFAMES
FERRARER -

= REWEARR-E
— B4\ A+ AU -

o ZEWBLRAN-T
—ZTFE+-A=+—
AU -

EREINARAEEBRRAFELHAR
SEZXERERTEREAEEBA
BOBEFEZARBZMBERR K
RAEFERR RUEEMLHELRZF
BHBNITE

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFH
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B3 SR & M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18.

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

(ii) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries de-consolidated
during the year (note 42) are as follows:

REEBLAR ZERE - XD
()

B : ()
(a) TEMBARGRBNOT: (&)

(i) FATBHEEARZIENS
AR (HEE42) SHEWT

Place of Percentage of Principal
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ equity attributable activities and
Name establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
NEAER S AR LB L i B BHRE ZMER ARRAEERFEDL TEEBRQEH
Indirectly held
BERE
QHFSMI PRC HK$40,000,000 100% Exploration of mine,
(notes 3(a)(i) and (ii)) the PRC
TR H 40,000,000 7T, 100% &R #h R - R E
(P FE3(a)() B (i) )
IMFSMI PRC Not yet paid up 100% Not yet commenced
(notes 3(a)(i) and (ii)) business
WS ERIR (HEE3@)0) Y EEN: 100% CENGEF S0
Ke(ii))
(b) These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are not (b) ZETIE B R 8 RTEHRB AR

expected to be repaid within the next twelve months. These
balances are classified as non-current assets accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

19. GOODWILL - GROUP 19. BE-FK&H
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$"000
—z-%% —TThE
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®—A—H
Gross carrying amount REBE 1,021,644 1,021,644
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (694,012) (325,611)
Net carrying amount BREFE 327,632 696,033
Opening net carrying amount FYEEFE 327,632 696,033
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40(a)) W BE BT 8 -~ &) (P 7E40(a)) 323,366 -
Disposals due to de-consolidating WMEBAR T AHsEe ARZHE
subsidiaries (note 42) (FF5E42) (327,632) -
Impairment losses (notes 8 and 11) A ETE (KfsEsfk11) (49,064) (368,401)
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 274,302 327,632
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Gross carrying amount BREBE 323,366 1,021,644
Accumulated impairment 2R E (49,064) (694,012)
Net carrying amount BREFE 274,302 327,632

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

RBREANANS BEIEEUNTRESE

the following CGUs: HEf
2010 2009
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—2-=5 —TEAF
B 5 FHET FAT

Supply of electricity and HEHEER

heat business (a) 323,366 -
Exploration of mine business EE R ER (b) = 696,033
323,366 696,033

EFEBRREZERERAF -

—ZT-ZTFEFR
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B 5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—TF+_A=1+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL - GROUP (Continued)

(a)

Supply of electricity and heat business

Goodwill as at 31 December 2010 arose from the
acquisition of the Sunlight Group in 2010, details
of which are set out in note 40(a). The recoverable
amount for this CGU was determined based on value-
in-use calculations, performed by an independent firm
of professional valuers, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited, covering a detailed 5-year budget plan followed
by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at the
growth rate stated below. The growth rate reflects the

19. BE-X5H#)

(a) BEBHEXH

RZE—ZTF+ZA=+—HZH
BELR_ZT-TFUEAESR
B R BE N E40() o 2B
CELFEMZAIRESERE LR
EHERITERITRIEAR AR
RREREEFE Az
FEEME BERETXAMER
REHBEHRReRE B RERKR
ReELEUZ EERRITISE

long-term average growth rate for the product line of K&
the CGU.
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations ARz EEREEZ FEREN
were as follows: T:
2010

—E-ZF
Discount rate Prig = 17.04%
Growth rate HR*E 3.11%

The key assumptions also include stable profit
margins, which have been determined based on past
performance, and management’s expectations for
market share, after taking into consideration published
market forecast and research. The weighted average
growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rate used is
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to this CGU.

As at 31 December 2010, provision for impairment loss
of HK$49,064,000 (2009: Nil) was recognised in profit
or loss to write down to its recoverable amounts.
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IZRIAEBERENMBEER  MAEE
DIREEAERRNEERE LT RE /M
BB R ERE TS OREL 2 AHE
FE o PTER NP I R EEITERSE N
PRERTEOR — B - PREERATIR R TOERTRAT - I
RERENRSESEMNEBIFERAR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE—ZT—TF + —_A=+T—RHILFE

19. GOODWILL - GROUP (Continued)

(b)

Exploration of mine business

Goodwill as at 31 December 2009 arose from the
acquisitions of Kanson Development Limited (“Kanson”)
and represented the future economic benefits from a
mining project. As at 31 December 2009, QHFSMI, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Kanson, held an exploration
licence for a mine located in Inner Mongolia, the PRC.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December
2009 represented the aggregate of goodwill arising
from the excess of the cost of investment in Kanson
over the Group's interest over the net fair value of
Kanson's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities for the acquisition of 51% equity interest in
Kanson made in 2007 and goodwill arising from the
excess of the additional cost of investment in Kanson
over the Group’s interest over the related net carrying
value of Kanson's identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities for the acquisition of the remaining
49% equity interest in Kanson made in 2008.

The carrying amount of goodwill was tested for
impairment and its recoverable amount was determined
based on value-in-use calculations, performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers, LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, covering a detailed thirteen-
year forecast, as approved and considered suitable for
the mining industry by the directors of the Company.
The key assumptions adopted include the mine reserve
based on a technical assessment report by consulting
geologists and engineers and the expectations for the
market development and that the Group is able to
obtain the mining rights of the underlying mine from
the relevant authorities in the PRC in future and is able
to raise fund to finance and develop the mining project.
The discount rate on which management has based is
determined with reference to specific risks relating to
the mining industry and the mining project.

19. BE-X&EEH (&)

(b)

EFREBRREZERERAAF -

U R

RZZEZAF+ZA=+—
H 2 & 2 E £ 8 K B
Kanson Development Limited
(TKanson]) - 48 8 — B 1B
BZBHELEND R_TZTNEF
+=-B=+—H Kansonz 2 &M
BRARSERRFALNTEANR
o —EEE B RER -

RZZEZENEFT_A=+—HzZ
2 7 R\ E K PKansonZ &
BRABHR T EFRUWEE
Kanson 51% % 7N # &5 52 Ak i AN &
E R Kansonz A REE B &
R ARBEC AT FECERM
B4 2 i E KA KansonZ B8 MY
ERANBHR TN FRUWE
Kanson&: T49 % % 75 1 # ¢ Ak I
AEERKansonZ Al HREE - B
BERSIABEZEBAEEFEE
wmmMEEZEE 2

R ZETEDERERD  E7
Yol & 50 i B T B ER A BT
RERER AR LIREREE
HWRRET=F 7@ -
RRAREBFCHME LMFTEITE
W R R % E T EE G RIESE R
ZEERRBELERMEMET
TRRD Z ST R &5 H 2 AR
EREMGER ZHEARKEE
REESIN KR ENG H B BRI th
ZARIER 2 FARENEERRE
FHERMENMERRERRD -BEEE
RIBZFRETHESERFEERIK
TEIHE 2 ERREE -

—ZT-ZTFEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued) 19. BE-X5H#
(b) Exploration of mine business (continued) (b) BEBKEREXK &)
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the discount HE-ZZNF+-_A=+—HL
rates and parameters used in determining the discount FE - BENMBREEACHBEERR
rate are shown as below: LHE2HMOT
2009
—ETNF
Discount rate IR E 30.5%
Inflation rate BIR=E 3%
Initial life of the project BBz H 8 13 years
134
For the year ended 31 December 2009, provision for HE-ZZNF+-_A=1+—H
impairment loss of HK$368,401,000 was recognised LHFE RREBEED ZBE
in profit or loss to write down the carrying amounts of 368,401,000/ ;. B A B & K T
goodwill to their recoverable amounts. R AMOREEZ REEEE K
Bl 558
During the year, due to the loss of controls over FRN HRKREHFTERRRAR
QHFSMI’s and IMFSMI's assets (notes 3(a)(i) and 3(a) oARORE E 2 HI R (Y EE3()3)
(i), all carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to this K3@)i)) DR EZEBIEHEZ
business was de-consolidated accordingly. 2HEMERALTBEES AR
Management of the Company is not aware of any other ARAEREYAAEEMNEERHAFE
probable changes that would necessitate changes in its key HET IR E &) 2 (] E b n] gE & &) - B(h
estimates which will result in the carrying amount of goodwill HEZEAERRETKRESEE-
exceeding its recoverable amount.
20. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF 200 WEBHEBARZRE -FKE

SUBSIDIARIES — GROUP AND COMPANY

On 25 September 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with the vendor, Greater Finance Limited (”Greater Finance”)
to acquire the entire equity interests in China International for
a consideration of HK$1,500,000,000 (subject to adjustments).
The China International Group is principally investing in oil
business. As at 31 December 2009, the refundable deposit of
HK$150,000,000 was paid to the vendor by the Company.
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RAERF

RZEZNAFAA-+HRB AEEHA
& 75 Greater Finance Limited ([ Greater
Finance J) 5] S &k AU A P BU B BR 2
2R AR {8 /1,500,000,0007 7T
(AIFAE) HHBEBREEEZZEREAMH
EB-R_TENF+_A=+—H &
R A B[ E X 1150,000,0007% 7T 2 7]
BRERS -
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LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

20.

21.

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

On 5 November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with the vendor, Maycrown Capital Limited (“Maycrown
Capital”) to acquire the entire equity interests in Sunlight Rise
for a consideration of HK$350,860,000. The Sunlight Group is
engaged in the business of generating and supplying electricity
and heat in the PRC. As at 31 December 2009, the refundable
deposit of HK$35,000,000 was paid to the vendor by the
Company.

As at 31 December 2010, acquisitions of the China
International Group and the Sunlight Group have been
completed, details of which are set out in note 40. The
balances are thus transferred to interests in subsidiaries.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
- GROUP

20.

21.

WEEHBARIZZE - &XEH
) S& NYNCIRE ),

R_ZETNF+—ARB ASEHEEH
EHEABR AR ([EEER])FT LI
HAMBRAE 2 2R AR RE
/350,860,000 JT ° 57 1F & [E A 2 B 7
=T HEREAXEB R_ZZNEF
+ZA=+—HB AXRARAEMBEAFXN
35,000,000/ 7T 2 AJiREE © o

R-Z—ZF+-A=+—B KEHE
BB EERAEEELT RN AHEE
BRI 40 - B EHEBERHE AT
2%

HAREFLEE-AEH

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

—s-%% —TTAF

FHET FAT

At 1 January R—HA—H 38,562 34,253

Additions during the year FARE — 4,465
Disposals due to de-consolidating A B AR THBEE AR

subsidiaries (note 42) HE (MaE42) (38,562) -

Exchange differences PEH =% - (156)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H = 38,562

HREBREZRERAR « — T —TFFK
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B3 SR & M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

22.

—EEFT A=t —RALEFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 22, BREE-—FKH
Exploration Interests in
and oil production
evaluation Customers’ sharing
assets contracts contract Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note i) (note ii) (note iii)
BHRR EREBI A
AEEE BFEHN ERZER @zt
FTERT FTERT FTET FERT
(M) (W3 (B =Eiii)
At 1 January 2009, RZZTEZENF—A—8"
31 December 2009 and —ETNF
1 January 2010 +ZA=+—HK
—E-TF—-H—H - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui B [T &8 2 A
(notes 40(a) and 40(b)) (Bt 5E40(a) }240(b) ) 5,133 25,235 2,104,000 2,134,368
Amortisation for the year (note 8) ZAN4E & #5484 (Ffi5E8) - (6,406) - (6,406)
At 31 December 2010 R-T—FF
+=—A=+—H 5,133 18,829 2,104,000 2,127,962
Notes: B

(i)

(iii)

These are mainly classified from exploration and evaluation
assets arising from the Oil Production segment when the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the
oil resource had been determined and that the commercial
production commences are recognised initially at cost.

Customers’ contracts acquired from the business combination
are recognised at fair value on business combination and are
charged to profit or loss when customers’ contracts complete.

Interests in oil production sharing contract acquired from
the business combination are recognised at fair value on
business combination and are charged to profit or loss on unit
of production method. Details of the oil production sharing
contract are set out in note 43.
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(i)

(iii)

ZEAENEERROBERZ R &
BRI EEEER  TEN
REERDBZ RN EEES
o MP R ATER

ETHD

BEBEHIMBIEPANREBAH
ZAFEER UNEFAKNTKER
IBE R -

BEBEHMBIEREBOKREHZ
RSREBAHIATERR LAE
ERMEBRAaRNG -EREBE DK
BHZFIGHNI L3 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

23.

24.

25.

INDEMNIFICATION ASSETS - GROUP 23.

This is the undertaking of the indemnification of the litigation
by the Greater Finance (i.e. vendor of the China International
Group). Details of the litigation are set out in note 49(c)).

INVENTORIES - GROUP 24.
As at 31 December 2010, all inventories are raw materials.
TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 25.

The Group normally allows trading credit terms ranging from
30 to 120 days to its established customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. Trade debtors with balances aged
over 120 days are required to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. In view of this, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,

WEEE-AEE

It 75 Greater Finance (PR B EEZ &
F)RMFABEE 2 AE - EEAFAFISE
AT 5E49(c) °

FE-AEE

R-ZE—ZF+-A=+—H FIEFE
BHEREME -

EHREZRE-ARH

AEB-—MBAETERELHEZEF30E
0B E S EEH -BATFRBREE
FR-BREA1I20BA L Z2EKE 5RE
ik BERERMWE—SEEBERN
BEREEZB ALTEEXEEEPE
ko FEUE BIRBI & E

FEWE 5 PR IAR B3R A B 2 Bk it 0 1 40

is as follows: N
2010 2009
HK$"000 HK$'000
g% —EThF
FET FHET
1 - 90 days 1-90H 16,158 -
121 - 365 days 121 - 365H 459 -
16,617 -

At 31 December 2009 and 2010, there were no trade
receivables that were individually determined to be impaired.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

RZZEZNFR_ZTE—ZFF+_A=+—
A WEEWE ZREMERETRE- K
SEVENZEEHREFEAETER-

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued) 25. ERESRE-X&EE (&)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired are as WA BB 2 EWE 5 RIE 2 Rk 5
follows: T

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ZF —ZTTAF
FHERT FHT
210 — 240 days past due but BEA210E 2408 B I R RBE

not impaired 459 -
As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$16,158,000 RZZE-—ZEF+_HA=+—H"
(2009: Nil) were neither past due nor impaired. These related 16,158,000 THEWE 5 KIBE (=TT 1
to different customers for whom there was no recent history of F ) WS A RORE - 5% F BRI Jh B

default. HEENRErEZREPE#-

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. AMNRE REeRHEMEKRX
RECEIVABLES — GROUP AND COMPANY H-ZXAEERARF

Group Company
rEHE N
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Y Y —TEAE SF 3 —EERE
FER FHET FET FHT
Prepayments FA R 2,608 700 983 629
Deposits e 474 622 = -
Other receivables (note) Hh e W E (M 3E) 37,532 71 = -
40,614 1,393 983 629
Note: P&

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2010
were loan receivables of HK$37,095,000 due from the independent
third parties. The loan receivables of HK$2,952,000 were unsecured,
interest-bearing at 12% per annum and repayable in April 2011. The
remaining loan receivables of HK$34,143,000 were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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R-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—B A&£EHM
BRFBEREERBIE A 2REKER
37,095,000/ 7T ° 2,952,000/ L2 EWE K A
ERFER REFR12%HB - HEARE
—— &0 A{EIE - £ 734,143,0008 L 2 FEWE
RAEER RO RIRERER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS - GROUP

27. FEU (HEAT) 32 AR AR K
B - A

Maximum
amount
outstanding
2010 2009 during the year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRARE
—E-ZF —ETRF REELE
FTET FET FExT
Amount due from non-controlling & U 3E 42 i% I 3R 7018
shareholder 6,080 - 6,080

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AT BANKS AND IN HAND - GROUP AND
COMPANY

Pledged bank deposits earn interest of 0.326% per annum.
Cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates based on the
daily bank deposits rates.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, included in the cash
and bank balances of the Group were HK$71,972,000 and
HK$1,000 respectively of bank balances denominated in RMB
placed with the banks in the PRC.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

FEHFEREER 28 RIRERIER-

28. CEMBITERURBITES
RIEFBERS - AEBMRAADT

BRI R T I R FI%0.326% 318 88
FHFRES BRI FRNER IR E
e

RZE—ZEFER_FTZNF+_A=+—
A AEERSRBRTESRD I RE
71,972,000/ 7T & 1,000/8 7t - EH iR 1T
HEHBRAARETE  FTHREMRPE IR

7

ARBTEEE AR RINE - RIBH B
GMNEBE R K (KEIE - & IE M E
EEBRE)  AKEAEBERELETI
MEEBZRTHARELIBAINE -

HERERREEZRERAT « — T -TFFH 137
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—ZF+_A=1+—HILFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 29. ERNESRE-FEE
Trade payables related to the subsidiaries acquired during the JERE 5 RRIBENARFEE W 2 K E AT
year and are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on Bl AR ERBERCORNIEH -
60-day terms.
Ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is ENESERBREBEEZEABZERRS T
as follows: ™
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
S —EThE
FET FET
1 - 90 days 1-90H 12,679 -
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 3,324 -
121 - 365 days 121 - 365H 626 -
Over 1 year 1A £ 2,222 -
18,851 -
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HMfENREREGFRE X
- GROUP AND COMPANY EERART
Group Company
rERE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ZF —EENE —E-FF —ETNE
FTEx FET FET FHET
Other payables H & < FRIE 109,140 13,887 70 70
Accruals [E&FA 15,547 8,672 3,723 2,497
124,687 22,559 3,793 2,567

Other payables as at 31 December 2010 are mainly
construction cost payables of HK$50,055,000, staff accruals
and other levies.

Included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December
2009 were the advances from staff of HK$14,931,000, of
which amounts of HK$1,014,000 and HK$560,000 bore
interests at the fixed rates of 10% and 7% per month
respectively and the remaining advances were interest
free. These advances were de-consolidated due to the de-
consolidation of the subsidiaries (note 42).
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RZE—ZEFF+_A=+—HZEME
NRIBEE BENEZENKZA50,055,000/%8
ToBIEAERAMEMER-

R_ZEZAFE+_A=+—H Hihk
NRIBREFHREREREEIZEN
14,931,000/ 7T - £ #1,014,0007% 7T &
560,000/ 7T 7 Bl iE & A E E F E10% &
T%sHE B TRERARE - ARHE R F
THEEAR WZERRIATBEEA
iR (MI7E42) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —_A=+T—RHILFEZ

31.

32.

33.

PROVISION FOR LEGAL CLAIM - GROUP 31. ZEHREBHE-IT£H
The balance as at 31 December 2010 represented the provision RZE—ZTF+_A=+—HZ&®BRZE
for legal claims, details of which are set out in note 49(c). BERREE FEFBEHRHEL) -
BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP 32. RITER-FEHE
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: HITERERATEREE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-=% —eEas
FHET FHET
Within one year —F KN 21,133 -
In the second year FF 11,806 -
32,939 -
The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings are denominated FrBEHRITERZEEBEEAAREE-
in RMB. Short-term and long-term bank borrowings are HHMRBARITERIRZDFBFFNE6.48%
charged at floating interest rates ranged from 6.48% to 19.5% F195% (ZZEZNF:E)GHE WUE
(2009: Nil) per annum and are secured by a related company of B IEEIRAR R 2 B E R RIEE AR
one of the non-controlling shareholders.
OTHER BORROWINGS - GROUP 33. HttfER—F&KH
As at 31 December 2010, all borrowings were obtained from RZE—ZEF+_A=+—8 FIEER
the independent third parties and are analysed as follows: HRBBIE=F ST
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—z-2% —TEAs
FHET FHET
Repayable on demand or within one year #ZEk{EE—FREE
Loan A, unsecured BRA EIKE 5,903 -
Loan B, unsecured BB EiKF 2,125 -
Loan C, unsecured BRC EIKF 366 -
8,394 -
Repayable after 1 year but within 5 years —* {418 A F REE
Loan D, unsecured ERD - fEmiE A 35,414 -
Loan E, unsecured BIRE - S 23,613 -
Loans F and G, unsecured BERFRG - EEIF 22,778 -
Loan H, unsecured BHH EiKEF 4,024 -
Loan I, unsecured B EiK 1,181 -
87,010 -
HREBRREERERAT « T —TFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

33.

34.

—EFEF+ A=t —RALEFE

OTHER BORROWINGS - GROUP (continued)

Loan A bears the interest at the rate of 9.72% per annum and
repayable in February 2011.

Loan B bears the interest at the rate of 24% per annum and
repayable in January 2011.

Loan C is interest-free and repayable on demand.

Loan D bears the interest at the rate of 3% per annum and
repayable in January 2012.

Loan E bears the interest at the rate of 5.31% per annum and
repayable in December 2012.

Loans F and G are interest-free and repayable in April 2012.

Loan H is interest-free and repayable by instalment of
RMB200,000 per month from March 2012.

Loan I is interest-free and repayable in July 2013.
PROMISSORY NOTES - GROUP

As described in note 40(b), as a part of the consideration of the
acquisition of the China International Group, the Group issued
promissory notes with a principal amount of HK$50,000,000.
The promissory notes are unsecured,
per annum and are repayable on 31 December 2012. The fair
value at the date of issue amounting to HK$43,854,000 was
calculated at the discounted borrowing rate of 8.99% per
annum.

interest bearing at 2%

Movement of promissory notes is as follows:

33.

34.

HiER—A&EE (&)

EHARENKR 2% E R AR -
——F_AEE-

BB F M E24%t B A
F-AEE-

ERCHARRBRIRENRER

HDEFFEI%FTERBENRE—ZF
_)EJTE}&"
ERERENES 1% ERBAR -Z

——Ft-_HAfEE-

HFERGRAEBRER-_E—_FAE
iﬁo

EFHARBEREA T ——F= A
& A ANE®200,000T 0 HIEE -

ERIRR B RARZ

~KEH

—=FtAEE-

W HE FEA0(b)Fr it - AR B EHIT RS
50,000,000 7T 2 NEE AU EF b
EEZEHHRE- $?T‘i7i%4ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ « LA A=
2%ET B RBR-_ZE——F+=-R=+—
AEE R8T Elﬁﬁz@$1§43,854,ooo
BT IR AR IR B RFE N E-8.99% T & -

Z’STZ """"" @JQD_F

2010 2009

HK$000 HK$'000

—E2-ZF —ETNF

FERT FET

At the beginning of the year RE ) - -
Issue of promissory notes (note 40(b)) BATARE (MiFE40(b)) 43,854 -
Imputed interest expenses (note 7) HEMSER (M7) 11 -
At the end of the year RER 43,865 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

35.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS — GROUP AND
COMPANY

In November 2007, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (“CB1”) in the principal amount of
HK$365,000,000 as a part of the consideration for the
acquisition of 51% equity interests in Kanson. CB1 bear no
interest with a maturity date on 4 November 2012 and are
convertible into shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.60 per share (subject to the standard adjustment
clauses relating to share sub-division, share consolidation,
capitalisation issues and rights issues) at any time after the issue
date. Details of CB1 are set out in the Company’s circular dated
15 October 2007.

In July 2008, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds (“CB3") in the principal amount of HK$580,000,000
as the consideration for the acquisition of the remaining 49%
equity interests in Kanson. CB3 bear no interest with maturity
date on 2 July 2013 and are convertible into shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.25 per share (subject
to the standard adjustment clauses relating to share sub-
division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights
issues) at any time after the issue date. Details of CB3 are set
out in the Company's circular dated 6 June 2008.

According to the sale and purchase agreements dated 5
November 2007 and 8 April 2008, another zero-coupon
convertible bonds with face value of HK$400,000,000 (“CB2")
and HK$380,780,000 (“CB4") will be issued on the fifth
business day following the date of receipt of mining licence in
respect of the underlying mine. CB2 and CB4 are convertible
into shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.60
and HK$0.25 per share respectively. As the mining licence
has not been obtained, CB2 and CB4 have not been issued
and have not been recognised in the financial statements. As
mentioned in notes 3(a)(i) and 3(a)(ii), the exploration licence
was transferred without the Company’s knowledge, consent or
approval. The Company is now seeking for the legal opinion on
this.

35.

TRRES -FAKEREQT

RZZEZELHF+— A ARAETEAS
%6365,000,0008 L2 TR B A MR EH
([ ESHFE—HEHR]) EAKE
Kanson 51%AR Az 2 HH R E - Al
REHFE—WESHFAEE R_T—=F
+— A BB B R ] E1T B HAA () B
R BB T H20.60/8 T i AR QT
D (BERBOFE BROEH EX{bE
TRERABRE 2 ZEF R ER) - TR
BEFE—MESFZAFBFRRARNAEZTE
+tF+A+RBZEARREEK-

RZEENFLA ARBETASHE
580,000,000 L v T E B A KR EFH
(AT ESE=-MESR]) EAIKRE
Kanson®: 49 %% A %5 2 ({8 o Al 2 f%
BEFF-HEFAEE RZT—=F+
RAZAEE R AR & 1T B Hl1& o] B
RHEBRETRO2SETEBRABARRRKNG
(HBREROIFA - RO EH  BEAMLEIT
I Bl B A B 2 1R 2R BAR R o AR (B
FE-HEFIHABHRBHAZZTEN
FRANBZAEARRBEK -

BEBHA-ZTZT+F+—ARBR=ZF
TNFLNANBZEEwE 5 —HtHE
2 Bl /400,000,000 7T ([ AR EH SF
—HbE% 1) }380,780,00058 5T ([ A # A%
EHEEORESF] ) 2 SEZBARBRES
BREEERRERE - HRREREABRZE
TEEERET - JRBESFS -_HES
LA RESHENIES DRI AT E K iaE
ER%0.60/8 T }0.258 T H R AR QAR
Do AR MAMBHAEER  AJRRES
FEREFRATBRBRESFFEOIESRHR
1T BWERIEHRE NER - M 5
3(a)(i) K3(a)(i) i - 4 i BB 7 AN 2 A
HMERAEARA BRI E S 2 1B R T
R ARNRRERUSIEEZER -

HEREBRREZERERAR « —T - TFFH

141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 35. ARKRES -FEERELQT
COMPANY (continued) (#&)
The fair value of the liability components, included in CB1 AMRESE —HESFRATBRESFE=
and CB3, was calculated using a market interest rate for HEHFAESH ZAFEDIZRRER A
an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount, REHzMIGHEAE R TR EARE
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is mERE Y 2 EE Wi AEB AERZ
included in the convertible bond equity reserve in the owners’ AR AR (B A an s o
equity.
In August 2010, the Company issued zero coupon convertible RZZE-—ZFFN\A ARAETAESE
bonds (“CB5") in the principal amount of HK$140,430,000 as 140,430,000 T 2 ER S AT MK EH
a part of the consideration for the acquisition of the Sunlight (TR ESFERESR]) EFAKESR
Group. CB5 bear no interest with maturity date on 9 August BEEZHBHORE - ATRRESFFE RIS
2020 and are convertible into shares of the Company at the FREE -RZEZEFNANBIEK
conversion price of HK$0.093 per share (subject to the standard ARBTAREEMNKFERLBRESR
adjustment clauses relating to share sub-division, share 0.093 BT HM AR R ARG (BEIRN
consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights issues) at any time il & 0F B AL BT RELAR A7
after the issue date. Any CB5 which remains outstanding on the ZIZEPFRAGH) MR B R IRE
maturity date shall be converted automatically into the shares Hiaz i REHFFRAHEFKEIH IR
of the Company. Details of CB5 are set out in the Company's RARARGD - MREFEAMESRTZ
circular dated 28 June 2010. HEHNEBHR-_Z-ZFA=-T/\H

Z AR ALK

In December 2010, the Company issued zero coupon RZZE-—ZTF+ A ARAETEAS
convertible bonds (“CB6"”) in the principal amount of #1526,880,000/8 T 2 TR B A R EFHF
HK$526,880,000 as a part of the consideration for the ([ATMBEESFEAAMES]) ERIE
acquisition of the China International Group. CB6 bear no FREEEEE 2 BHNE ATRRESFE
interest with maturity date on 31 December 2015 and are AEFREE R_ZE—DF+_A
convertible into shares of the Company at the conversion price =+ — B3 RARETT B EE E TR
of HK$0.08 per share (subject to the standard adjustment 1% 5 BB ERR0.088 L K AR DRI G
clauses relating to share sub-division, share consolidation, (ZEERBROFE  RHEH - ERNMEET
capitalisation issues and rights issues) at any time after the N ER & #E B 2 1R SE S BARER) o (R B
issue date. Any CB6 which remains outstanding on the maturity R R R ]2 A MR E S S N E S
date shall be converted automatically into the shares of the HEBRRARABIRG AT RKRESF
Company. Details of CB6 are set out in the Company’s circular AEFZHBEENBRAR T —ZF+
dated 11 October 2010. A+—BZARRA@EHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

35.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)

As a part of the consideration for the acquisition of the
China International Group, a zero coupon convertible bonds
("CB7") in the principal amount of HK$526,880,000 shall
be issued upon the final and absolute dismissal, striking-out,
withdrawal, discharge, release, settlement or discontinuance
of the litigation mentioned in note 49(c), details of which
are set out in note 40(b). CB7 bear no interest with maturity
date on 31 December 2015 and are convertible into shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.08 per share
(subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating to share
sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and
rights issues) at any time after the issue date. Any CB7 which
remains outstanding on the maturity date shall be converted
automatically into the shares of the Company.

The fair values of CB5, CB6 and CB7 were calculated using
the income approach and are included in the convertible bond
equity reserve in the owners’ equity.

CB1, CB3, CB5, CB6 and CB7 recognised in the statement of
financial position are calculated as follows:

35.

THRRES -FAKERE2F
()

KRB R M 49Tt 2 SF A (FF1E
B FE40(b) ) A R T 2 EBR
B BT BB BARKIEBRETR
% %8526,880,0008 L« EE B A MR (E
F([ABEHFELHES]) ERK
BHRREEREBE 2B RE-AIRRES
EFLMESFAEE RZZE—RAF+=A
=+— AR R RETT B EE E R
RHRIBEFR0.08EBTHBRAEARDRK NG
(BEBRBMOIFE RGO BT
I Bl B 4B A 2 1R SR B AR R o (E ] B 5
HBNAREL B JRERESFELHES
BEESHRAEARNARG, -

IR RS R BE S TR ESE A
B8 25 T T R 24 S8 E AR TS A
A E W AT A TR
24 G -

R BARRKR AR Z AT RRESSE 1
Br AMEREFE=MHES TRRE
FELHES THREREFEAMESFR
AMBRESFEEHESFTENT

CB1 (B3 (85 (B6 87 Total
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TRARES TRIRES TRIRES TRRES TRARES
E-HEs E=hES FENES EARES EHiES it
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Face value of convertible bonds issued 2 (AR ES 2
AfE 365,000 580,000 140,430 526,880 526,880 2,139,190
Proceeds of issue (fair value on initial ~ E{7U% (HRER
recognition) ATE) 365,467 363,506 174,178 342,557 342,557 1,588,265
Equity component Eudn (189,421) (103,438) (174,178) (342,557) (342,557) (1,152,151)
Liability component BESH 176,046 260,068 - - - 436,114
RREBRREEZRERAT  —T—TFFH 143



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE =T —TF+ - A=+—HILFE
35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND 35. ATARES - FEEREAQF
COMPANY (continued) (##)
Movement of liability component EER,EH
Movement of liability component for the years ended 31 REEZZT—ZTFR-_ZETNF+ZA
December 2010 and 2009 is as follows: ST —HEFEZBGEHLI>EHWT
2010 2009
“E-ZF “ETNF
CB1 (B3 Total CB1 (B3 Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TRRES THRES ThkES nHRES
F-HES F=HES @it F-HER FoHER it
TER T T TR T T
At the beginning of the year REA 19,001 278 19,279 88,414 104,248 192,662
Exercise of convertible bonds IRAERES (1,140) - (1,140) (73,243) (106,537) (179,780)
Imputed interest expenses (note 7) EEFISEA (H3HT) 2,114 39 2,153 3,830 2,567 6,397
At the end of the year RER 19,975 317 20,292 19,001 278 19,279
Movement of equity component Eaflorgs
Movement of equity component for the years ended 31 REBEEZZT—ZFR-TETNF+ZA
December 2010 and 2009 is as follows: =tT-HIEFEzRERBHEESHWT
CB1 83 €85 (86 cB7 Total
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THRES THERES TERES TRRES TRRES
E-HES EoHES SAMES ERMES FLHES @zt
TERL TR TiER TR TR TERx
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE—-A—H 81,872 38,500 - - - 120,372
Issue of shares upon conversion REABETRG (66,023) (38,445) - - - (104,468)
At 31 December 2009 and RZETNE
1 January 2010 +ZA=1-H
RZE-%%
—-A—H 15,849 55 - - - 15,904
Equity component upon initial BERERNERS D
recognition (notes 40(a) and (b)) (Pi7E40(@) R (b)) - - 174,178 342,557 342,557 859,292
Issue of shares upon conversion R BREETRR (944) - (174,178) - - (175,122)
At 31 December 2010 RZB-FE+-R
=t+-H 14,905 55 - 342,557 342,557 700,074
The fair value of the liability components of CB1 and CB3 at the RETH AIBRRESE —#HEFRAR
dates of issue amounted to approximately HK$176 million and BREFE=MHEFEELD 2ATFED
HK$260 million respectively. BI1%) /176,000,000/% 7T £2260,000,0007%
TTo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

35.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS - GROUP AND
COMPANY (Continued)

Interest expense on the bonds is calculated using effective
interest method by applying interest rate of 15.7% and
17.4% per annum to the liability components of CB1 and CB3
respectively.

During the year, none (2009: 209,000,000) and 3,543,000
(2009: 3,543,000) new ordinary shares in aggregate were
issued, at the conversion price of HK$0.60 and HK$0.508 (as
adjusted) per share respectively, to the bond holders upon
the conversion of CB1. The conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.508 as a result of the open offer in 2009. As a result,
there was an increase in share capital and share premium
of HK$36,000 (2009: HK$2,125,000) (note 37(a)) and
HK$2,048,000 (2009: HK$137,140,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, 862,000,000 new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB3. As a result, there was an increase in share
capital and share premium of HK$8,620,000 (note 37(b)) and
HK$136,361,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2009. As a result of the open offer in 2009, the conversion
price was adjusted to HK$0.212 subsequently.

During the year, 1,510,000,000 new ordinary shares in
aggregate were issued, at the conversion price of HK$0.093
per share, to the bond holders upon the conversion of CB5
(note 37(c)). As a result, there was an increase in share capital
and share premium of HK$15,100,000 and HK$159,078,000
respectively.

35.

TRRES -FAKEREF QT
()

BEHZHEE A TIRE R F R R FF &
15.7% K 17.4% 5 Bt Al AR E 5 5 —#t
BERAMRESE=HELREL DT

s
B o
Eaul

RAFERN ARBRATBRKRESS —
HEHFETHBRNIEZSR X KE0.60
BT KR0.508B L (AR )MEHF
BADRBETERER(ZZEZTNF:
209,000,0000% ) %3,543,000f (=& =
JUEF £ 3,543,0000) T @k - K EE
ZETNFHETLAFAEE M E0.508
BT AL B AR AR R AR 15 5 B 5 Bl 1
36,0008 L (Z T N4 :2,125,000%
7t) (MisE37(a)) %2,048,0008 L (=
TN 137,140,000 70 ) ©

HE-ZZANE+-_A=+—RHILEE-
RABIRABRBRESFE - HEFETH
SR S IR B025 B TREHFIEA A
174 862,000,000 8% 5 L @AY o It -
HE-_ZZNFEF+-_A=+—RHILEE"
H IR A K B 0 i@ (8 5 Bl 38 118,620,000
7t (Bf3E37(b) ) %136,361,000/8 7T ° i, 4
BRZZETNFETAABREMARSR
0.212%8 7T

RAFEER ARARRABRRESER

TLREHFEE AEITA ££1,510,000,000
% X5 (M 5E37(c)) » A itk - E g AR
KI5 5 B 5 53 515,100,000 7T &
159,078,000/ T °

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

36. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

EERE-FKH

FRRLERBEEENBEZESNT

is as follows:

Fair value
adjustment on
business
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE combination
HK$'000
MELESHELZ
AFERE
FHERT

At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and RZTENF—A—B ZTTNF
1 January 2010 +-—A=+—BR=-Z—ZF—HF—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes 40(a) and (b)) W BB B A 7] (B 5E40(a) & (b)) 532,309
Credited to profit or loss (note 9) sPAERERK (K (1,602)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H 530,707
Accelerated capital
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE allowances
HK$'000
MEEARRBEE
FET

At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and RZZEZTN —ETNEF
1 January 2010 +=-A= —ET-FEF—A—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40(b)) Uiz B — fi Bf 7£40(b) ) 13,064
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+-A=+—H 13,064

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$3,017,000 (2009:
HK$776,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
tax losses as these were incurred by the companies that have
been loss-making for some time. These tax losses do not expire
under current legislation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. BAK
2010 2009
—g-%F —TERE
Number of Number of
shares shares
Notes 000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
RAEE 17 & B
B Tk TET T FHET
Authorised: ETE R -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREENOETZ
LiEk
At 1 January R—A—H 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised AL ARG M
ordinary shares (h) 30,000,000 300,000 - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 50,000,000 500,000 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRBERA:
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—H SREE
HK$0.01 each 0.0VBTLZ LBk 7,361,043 73,610 3,024,720 30,247
Exercise of convertible bonds and TEABRRES R (@) (b)
issue of shares Bl K (o) 1,513,543 15,136 1,074,543 10,745
Shares issued in August 2009 RZFENEF
NRETZBRH (d) = - 809,280 8,093
Shares issued in October 2009 RZZTNE
TREBTZRG (e) = - 2,452,500 24,525
Shares issued in August 2010 R-_TB—Z&
NRAETZBRA (f) 1,510,000 15,100 - -
Shares issued in December 2010 RZZ—ZF
TZRBITZBRNR (9) 3,078,000 30,780 - -
At 31 December, ordinary shares of ®R+ZA=+—H"
HK$0.01 each BhREE
0.01BTZERBR 13,462,586 134,626 7,361,043 73,610
Notes: =

(a) During the year, none (2009: 209,000,000) and 3,543,000
(2009: 3,543,000) new ordinary shares in aggregate were
issued, at the conversion price of HK$0.60 and HK$0.508 (as
adjusted) per share respectively, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB1 (note 35). As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$36,000 (2009:
HK$2,125,000) and HK$2,048,000 (2009: HK$137,140,000)
respectively.

FR - AXARARARRKRESFE —HE
FHEIT R IR D BIR G IR X #E0.60
BT R0.5088 T (KFE)MESH
BREABTEHATZR(ZZEZTNE:
209,000,0000% ) %3,543,0000% (= F
T N ¢ 3,543,0000% ) 37 & A% (B &
35) cA L ERA RS R E D FIE
hn36,000/%8 7T (Z=Z N9 ¢ 2,125,000
HBIT) }%2,048,0008 T (ZEZ A
4F:137,140,00058 7T ) °

HEREBRREZERERAR « —T - TFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2009, 862,000,000 new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB3 (note 35). As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$8,620,000 and
HK$136,361,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2009. During the year, no such share was issued.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, 1,510,000,000 new
ordinary shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion
price of HK$0.093 per share, to the bond holders upon the
conversion of CB5 (note 35). As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$15,100,000 and
HK$159,078,000 respectively.

On 6 August 2009 and 10 August 2009, the Company
entered into a placement agreement and a supplemental
agreement respectively with Mayfair Securities Limited
(“Mayfair Securities”) as placing agent, pursuant to which an
aggregate of 809,280,000 new ordinary shares were placed by
Mayfair Securities on behalf of the Company, at the price of
HK$0.137 per placing share with the independent investors.
As a result, the Company issued 809,280,000 new ordinary
shares at HK$0.137 per share on 20 August 2009. As a result,
there was an increase in share capital and share premium of
HK$8,093,000 and HK$102,779,000 respectively. Details of the
placing are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 7
August, 10 August and 20 August 2009.
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HE-_ZTZAF+-_A=Z+—RALSF
B ARARRABRBRELAE=HESH
HEITHRREZERAERE.258 TR
BEH A AEITE £862,000,0008% 1
L@ (M35 A HE-TZF
NFE+_AZ+—BLEFE EBRE
K %15 @ 1B 5 5l 3 1n8,620,0005% T &
136,361,000/ 7T ° RAFE - AR AL
mEITHEBERND -

BE_Z-ZTF+_A=Z+—HLF
B ARBRABMBESFEDIES
BT RBRIRE R REC.093B LM

EH B AEIT4E $£1,510,000,0008%
LB (MRE35) cEH i ERA R
[i& 17 & (& 53 Bl # HN15,100,000/% 7T K&
159,078,000 7T °

TSANENARBRZZTASF
)\HJrEl RARBREEREEEE
HHEBAT ([EEZFEH]) DRI —
mRREHRER —HRETHE Bk
EBBFSFREARAUERESKRN
01378 T2 BRABIREERES
$£809,280,000% 7 & @ AR o A 1t - B
ZETNFENAZTH ARFAER
0.1377 JT 2 (B 1% ¥ 77809,280,000%
MEBR At ERARBRDEED
713 008,093,000/% 7T 12 102,779,000/%8
ToBEEFBHRABA-ZTZTAEN
AtB -NATARNAZTHZAR
EIFAGE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(e)

®)

(9)

(h)

On 25 August 2009, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with Kingston Securities Limited relating to the open
offer at the subscription price of HK$0.08 per offer share to
its shareholders on the basis of one offer share for every two
shares of the Company recorded on the register of members of
the Company on 15 September 2009. As a result, the Company
issued 2,452,500,000 new ordinary shares at HK$0.08 per
share in October 2009. As a result, there was an increase
in share capital and share premium of HK$24,525,000 and
HK$171,675,000 respectively. Details of the open offer are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 26 August 2009
and 7 October 2009 and the Company’s prospectus dated 16
September 2009.

On 10 August 2010, 1,510,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of entire interests of Sunlight Rise, as detailed in
note 40(a). As a result, there was an increase in share capital
and share premium of HK$15,100,000 and HK$194,790,000
respectively.

On 31 December 2010, 3,078,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of entire interests of China International, as detailed
in note 40(b). As a result, there was an increase in share capital
and share premium of HK$30,780,000 and HK$230,850,000
respectively.

By a special resolution dated 28 October 2010, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each to HK$500,000,000 by the creation of a
further 30,000,000,000 of HK$0.01 each ranking pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

All issued new ordinary shares in 2009 and 2010 rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

37.

NI )

(e)

46 o |1

>t

HEREBRREZRERDAF « — T —

TNER=ZF—
@ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmaﬁﬁkﬁ=ﬁﬂ

Al

L

RZZEZAFNAZ+HAB ARAHE
CHLEFLFERARARER =TT L
FAA+TRABARRBRERMZ 28
BRHAEMREARARIRMHESR —REE
Rz BEE EZRBETREERH
0.088 T HR &R 2 ﬁﬁﬁk@ﬂi
— M BeHERE Bl AR —ZE=T
ﬂ¢+ﬁbxﬂx008/9ém2{§$§§§f17
2,452,500,0000% 1 & @Ak - At - £
N R &5 5 (8 5 Bl 124,525,000 7T
§171,675,0008 7cc A EE 2515
aﬂaﬁﬁ,§§ﬂ¢AH—+ﬁE&
ZETAFTALAZARRRMHUK
E%%,ggniﬂﬂ+AEZ$An

ERER-

RZZ—FTFNA+AB RQEIET
1,510,000,000% & & T {H0.0178 7T 2
*ﬁ CERCIERBIBAB 2 HER 22
KRB (R K FE40)) - Bt HiE
K&k@ﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁMw1wom%n
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R-ZE-ZTF+-_A=+—B XA
7] %%173,078,000,0004% % 1% ®E {£0.01
BB ERUIER EERE 2
i 2 5B RE (FF R IEE40(b) ) ©
Ak R ARG & E 5 RS 0
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

38. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein during the year are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The share premium account includes

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefore;

the premium arising from the capitalisation issue
in the previous years;

issue of shares of the Company at a premium net
of the transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares; and

amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—TF+ —_A=+T—RHILFE

38. RESERVES (continued) 38. f##E (@)

(b) Company (b) A2 F
Convertible
Share Capital bond equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARRES
B4 EE R G BEfE BNy it ] @t
TET TET TET TER TET
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—FA—H 903,048 140,667 120,372 (395,581) 768,506
Issue of shares upon REERAHAEERET
placing and open offer Befn (B E37(d) K (e))
(notes 37(d) and (e)) 274,454 - - - 274,454
Issue of shares upon RERTRRES BT
conversion of Bn (H5E37@K0)
convertible bonds
(notes 37(a) and (b)) 273,501 - (104,468) - 169,033
Net loss for the year AEEBEFE - - - (669,839) (669,839)
At 31 December 2009 and ~ R-ZZTAF
1 January 2010 +ZA=+-8k
—“Z2-2%—-H—H 1,451,003 140,667 15,904 (1,065,420) 542,154
Issue of shares upon RUEER B A R BT
acquisition of subsidiaries &% (HI5E37(f) R (g))
(notes 37(f) and (g)) 425,640 - - - 425,640
Issue of convertible bonds ~ RUREEN B A AIE 31T
upon acquisition of AARES (MFE35)
subsidiaries (note 35) - - 859,292 - 859,292
Issue of shares upon RAB AR EREET
conversion of Bfn (H3E37@)K(0)
convertible bonds
(notes 37(a) and (c)) 161,126 - (175,122) - (13,996)
Net loss for the year AEEBBEE - - - (370,008) (370,008)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-2F
+=ZA=+-H 2,037,769 140,667 700,074 (1,435,428) 1,443,082

Details of the share premium account of the Company

are set out in note 38(a) above.

AR AR i B AR A BB LAt Bt

5T38(a) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

39.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
on 6 June 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date (the “Scheme”),
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, independent non-executive directors,
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group and any non-controlling shareholder in
the Company’s subsidiaries.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is equivalent to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 8
December 2009, the general scheme limit of the Company's
share option scheme has been reset to 736,104,000 shares,
representing 10% of the Company’s issued share capital on the
date of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution, which
allows the Company to grant further options carrying the rights
to subscribe for a maximum of 736,104,000 shares. As at the
date of the approval of these financial statements, no option
has been granted pursuant to the Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

39.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors, in addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors of the Company, but may not be less than the higher
of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and

(o) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There was no share option granted or exercised in 2010 and
2009. As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group has no
outstanding share option.

Subsequent to the reporting date and up to the date of the
approval of these financial statements, no additional share
options were granted.

39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZE —Z—TF+_A=+—HILFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

40. ¥EKEHt

(a) The Sunlight Group () AE£H
As described in note 1 to the financial statements, on M EHREMEIRM R —
10 August 2010, the Group completed the acquisition TENRTH AEEZTKBIER
of 100% equity interest in Sunlight Rise, in which A7 2ERAER Bh AE
Sunlight Rise holds 100% equity interest in both Pride FEBRARNE 2 2EMBRTFEM
Treasure Limited and Ontop Finance Limited and 60% FERABIREREMERR QA
equity interest in Shanxi Zhong Kai Lingshi (i.e. the ZEMBAERD  ARFEE LR
Sunlight Group) through the wholly-owned subsidiary of YLEA (BIAEEE) Z60%M A&
the Company, at the consideration comprising of cash #Em - RE®IER$70,000,000/
of HK$70,000,000, the consideration shares with fair 7t~ A {E A209,890,0007%8 T 2
value of HK$209,890,000 and the convertible bonds RERD XA FER174,178,000
with fair value of HK$174,178,000 (i.e. CB5 (note 35)). Bz AR E S (BRI #A (E %5
The principal activity of the Sunlight Group is the supply FRMES (HFE35) ) - AEEE
of electricity and heat in the PRC. The acquisition was CEEXEBRINPBINERE M
made as the Group intended to expand its existing fE- RIBWEERASEEEERE
business to generating and supplying electricity and RAREEE HERERZRE
heat in the PRC. Eie
Details of net identifiable assets acquired and goodwill W IH#REEFERPEZHF
are as follows: BT
2010
HK$'000
—E2-2F
FET
Purchase consideration: EERE:
- Cash -\ 70,000
— Fair value of shares issued (note 37(f)) —BETRO 2 AFE (KFE37(1) 209,890
— Fair value of convertible bonds issued —BETABRRES 2 ATE
(note 35) (H3E35) 174,178
Total purchase consideration BEERE 454,068
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired WEZ AJ R EEFEZ A FE (130,702)
Goodwill (note 19) EE (MHE19) 323,366
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & Z —

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

The Sunlight Group (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

40.

EY 3= )

(a) FEEE @)

WEEEMEL ZAIHRREERA

arising from the acquisition as at the date of acquisition ERREBR A TFEUREER
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately BEEIBR2HEREBENT
prior to the acquisition are as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
HK$"000 HK$'000
WEEL 2
ATE R B
FERT FERT
Property, plant and equipment Y R B kR (MiEeG))

(note 16(a)) 305,844 305,844
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT i ERIE (MEE17)

(note 17) 28,921 28,921
Intangible assets (note 22) | EE (HiE22) 25,235 =
Prepayments, deposits, other TERTFRIE 11 E -~ H At R URIE

receivables and other assets R EAE E 40,781 40,781
Inventories "E 2,127 2,127
Trade receivables JEWE 5 8RIE 11,024 11,024
Pledged bank deposits EHEMBITER 915 915
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGFELFERS 116,455 116,455
Trade payables BNE SRR (15,916) (15,916)
Bank borrowings RITHE K (31,922) (31,922)
Amounts due to non-controlling &1 JE4% A% A% 3R 7k 18

shareholder (75,448) (75,448)
Other payables, accruals and H o FE A FRIE - FERTRUA R

other liabilities Huad (131,047) (131,047)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 36)  EIEF3IE & & (M 5E36) (6,309) =
Net assets BEFE 270,660 251,734
Non-controlling interests FEIERAR R (139,958)

Net identified assets acquired W2 B HREEFE 130,702
Purchase consideration settled RZZEZNFUREE

in cash in 2009 BERE (35,000)
Cash at banks and in hand WM B AR ZIRITET R

in the subsidiaries acquired FHERE 116,455
Cash inflow on acquisition WEEIBERERA 81,455
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

The Sunlight Group (continued)

The goodwill arose in the acquisition because the cost of
the business combination included intangible assets that
do not qualify for separate recognition. No goodwill is
expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

The fair value and the gross amount of trade and other
receivables amount to HK$21,010,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and it is expected that
the full contractual amounts can be collected.

Transaction costs of HK$3,468,000 have been expensed
and are included in administrative expenses.

The fair value of the shares issued was based on the
published share price on the acquisition date. The fair
value of convertible bonds was determined by the
income approach.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in this acquisition at proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Since the acquisition, the Sunlight Group contributed
revenue and the loss of HK$44,413,000 and
HK$55,290,000 respectively to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Had the acquisition been taken place at 1 January
2010, the revenue and the loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 would have been
approximately HK$105,006,000 and HK$3,726,000
respectively. The pro forma information was for
illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily
indicative of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2010 nor are they
intended to be projection of future results.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

40. ¥B50t@)

(a)

FSEEE @)

HREFAFRABRINTEEL
MRERZBEE HEBAWE
ELABHE-BHYERESNNR-

EWE 5 RE R EMERFRIBEZ A
S {E K 4858 421,010,000 7T © 7%
ZRYGRIBYEEE BFEREL
FRIE A2 HU e -

3,468,000/ 7T Z R 5 B AR 1T
FSZ Ao

BETRG 2 AFETRENE A
Mz AHBREEE - AT BEES
ZRFEABAEEE -

AEBEREREREBEREET 2T
BREEFELVFERBREZ
IR R M

BRBEBEAR REE-_F—F
FH-A=T—BLLFE FEE
[ AN 52 B B B U as 1 & 98 9 Al
#%44,413,00078 7T }255,290,000/%
JTo

WEEEER_E—EF— A —
AaEE Hz2_2—ZF+ -8
=t+—BULEFE FEBZREK
B89 Bl 41 /4105,006,00078 JT &
3,726,0008 Lo 5 E EBHEH
Bz A WIEHB Mz KEEED
R_E—ZTF—A—BxR2BER
T AEEAERES RS RE
BT BERRREE 2 TEA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

The China International Group

As described in note 1 to the financial statements,
on 31 December 2010, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in China
International through the wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at the consideration comprising of
cash of HK$150,000,000, the promissory notes with
fair value of HK$43,854,000, the consideration shares
with fair value of HK$261,630,000 and the convertible
bonds with fair value of HK$685,114,000 (i.e. CB6
and CB7 (note 35)). The principal activity of the China
International Group is oil production in the PRC. Details
of the operations are set out in note 43. The acquisition
was made as the Group took initiative in identifying
investment opportunities that will broaden the Group's
revenue sources.

Details of net identifiable assets acquired and excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

40. ¥B56ta@

(b)

HEEREE

BTSSR 1T N - T —
TFE+_A=+—H AEEEB
Kpdlzz2EWB AT T KE
RAPBIERZ 2B A R E
£ #5384 150,000,0005% 7T« A F
{8 /543,854,000 T2 AE - AF
{8 5261,630,00058 7T 2 R (B REH
N A F1{E A685,114,000/8 7T 2 Al
B ES (BN AR EH i
FRABKRESFFECIES (KM
35)) hEABBREE Y FBEK
ABRTENYEEHR BRAEB
BEERHTEE43 - RIBUEE Jh R A
EEBAOMBKERHE  NIEFHE
W 25 IR ©

Wis 2 AT R E EFHE LB T E
HRRBT ZAIHREE BER
HARBBEZ R FFERDBENA

over cost are as follows: ZHREFBOT
HK$°000
FHET
Purchase consideration: fBEMNRE:
— Cash paid —BfRE 150,000
— Fair value of promissory notes issued —BEITAZZAFE (H:F34)
(note 34) 43,854
— Fair value of shares issued (note 37(g)) —B#8TRMDZAFE (E37()) 261,630
— Fair value of convertible bonds issued —BBTABRERES (ATBRERES
(i.e. CB6) (note 35) FERMES) 22T E (HFE35) 342,557
— Fair value of convertible bonds (i.e. — AR ES (RRRESFECHES)
CB7) (note 35 and note (i) below) ZAF{E (MFE355% T XM FEG)) 342,557
Total purchase consideration WEERKE 1,140,598
Fair value of net identifiable assets Wiz AT REEFEBELAFE
acquired (1,746,868)
Excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair WA EEWUWE S 2 Al HREE -
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, BREEXABEZATFEER
liabilities and contingent liabilities FRIAAK AN 2 BREE
over cost 606,270
RREBREZRERAT « — T —TFFK




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &% —

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

—REF+ A=t —RLEFE

The China International Group

(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
arising from the acquisition as at the date of acquisition
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately
prior to the acquisition are as follows:

40.

E¥XSot
(b) HEEEREE @)

WEEEMEL ZAIHREERE

EREERRZA

NSRS 33014

BEEA ZEEREEST

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
HK$'000 HK$'000
WREE 2
ATE REE
FHERT FET
Property, plant and equipment % /5 & & E (HrE16(a))

(note 16(a)) 130,483 130,483
Intangible assets (note 22) M AEE (MHik22) 2,109,133 5,133
Prepayments, deposits, other FENFIE - ZE -

receivables and other assets HAb U RIE R B b & B 18,769 18,769
Indemnification assets (note 23) JBEEE (MizF23) 5,000 =
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 12,739 12,739
Cash at banks and in hand WITHEFRFHEEAES 80,117 80,117
Deferred tax assets (note 36) REBIRE E (KI5E36) 13,064 13,064
Other payables, accruals and H e SRIE - FERTRUA K

other liabilities HEHmalE (96,437) (96,437)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 36) iEEFIEE (& (H7%36) (526,000) =
Net identified assets WHE 2 BEREEFE

acquired/Net assets BEFE 1,746,868 163,868
Purchase consideration settled RZ-ZZZTAFURSHEE Y

in cash in 2009 BERE (150,000)
Cash at banks and in hand WEZHMB AR ZIRITET R

in the subsidiaries acquired FHEES 80,117
Cash outflow on acquisition WEEEIFR ML (69.883)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

The China International Group
(Continued)

Note:

(i) Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, CB7
shall be issued upon the final and absolute dismissal,
striking-out, withdrawal, discharge, release, settlement
or discontinuance of the litigation mentioned in
note 49(c). As there is the undertaking of the
indemnification of the litigation by the vendor (note
23), the whole CB7 is expected to be issued upon the
final and absolute dismissal, striking-out, withdrawal,
discharge, release, settlement or discontinuance of the
litigation.

The excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost arose in the acquisition because the
Group obtained some intangible assets arising from the
business combination.

Indemnification assets of HK$5,000,000 were
recognised as there is the undertaking of the
indemnification of the litigation by the vendor. The
amount was calculated based on the possible outcome
of the litigation (note 49(c)).

The fair value and the gross amount of trade and other
receivables amount to HK$30,233,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and it is expected that
the full contractual amounts can be collected.

Transaction costs of HK$3,517,000 have been expensed
and are included in administrative expenses.

The fair value of the shares issued was based on the
published share price on the acquisition date. The fair
value of convertible bonds was determined by the
income approach. The fair value of promissory notes
was calculated at the discounted borrowing rate of
8.99% per annum.

40. ¥B56ta@

(b)

HEFREBRREZERERAF -

FEERESE &)

B3E

(i) RIEEEHH AR A RH
AT 2 SR A R AR T
2R OB BEE BT
B R OR AR E 1R AT AT
EHFELIESF -ARETH
FAELMERZ AR (M
23)  ATRRERECIESTE
B R RZE RTE2HEE
HER U BT ARRR AR OR
AL LR 2 AREETT -

MR AEBESEBAHMELZ
ETEVAE SURRBRBERR
BIROEBKET ZAHREE
BERSABBZ AT HERRE
BRA

AR EH R E L R ERE R
0 i B ¥ 25,000,0005% JT i (&
BE -ZoBNRBFAZ I
RMEE (MiFE49(0)) °

FEME 5 BRIA K K A FEWRTA 2 &
1B N #8%8 /530,233,00008 7T © %
FReU IR ER(E - BEAA R
MIEA 22 E -

3,517,000 7T 2 X 5 B A A 1T IR
X A8 e

BTG 2 AFEIDRBEWER
HZ B RMERERETE - AT RRES
ZRFENBANEEE - AFEZ R
FETIREEREREREFE.99%
B

—ZT-ZTFEFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

The China International Group
(Continued)

Since the acquisition, no revenue and results was
contributed by the China International Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 as the acquisition was
completed on 31 December 2010.

Had the acquisition been taken place at 1 January
2010, the revenue and the profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010 would have been
approximately HK$51,717,000 and HK$4,058,000
respectively. The pro forma information was for
illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily
indicative of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2010 nor are they
intended to be projection of future results.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisitions of the above
subsidiaries is as follows:

40. ¥B50t@)

(b)

(o)

FEERESR &)

HAKEBEEER T —ZTF+=
A=+—HB=xK -HakESHE
R RE&EZT—FTF+=A
=+—HBLEFE FEHEEEIL
EENETEMI AR ELS-

WK EEER - —FF— A —
R#E HE2_FT—ZTF+_A
Z+t—HBLEFE KAEBEZHEK
i ) 9 Bl 49 &51,717,00008 7T &
4,058,000 Lo 5 E ERHE R
BHzA WIFHAMZKESED
R-_E—ZTF—A—HBERZER
T AEBEAERES 2 WaskE
BN EERRIRELE 2B -

FENE EANBARZRE KRR
EEEBRBRAFESTET:

HK$'000

FE T

Total consideration in cash paid in 2010 RIE—ZEFINMNzEEREBRAE -

Cash at bank and in hand acquired WEzRTEFLRFERES

— The Sunlight Group —FIEEHE 116,455

— The China International Group —HEHEREER 80,117
Net cash inflows in respect of FHANEMRBARZRERAERE

the acquisitions of subsidiaries 196,572

There was no business combination occurred for the year ended

31 December 2009.

RE-TTAET-A=+—HLFE

ARBILEBEEERETE G
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

41.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(a)

BJFSMI

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements, on

41. HEWEB QT

BE-_ZEAFt+-A=1+—H
LLFE

(a) ARFHE

A0 B 75 ¥R 2R MY SESPR AL - AN & E R

29 October 2008, the Group entered into a sale and —EEN\F+AZTNBEI %
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share EEWHE Bt ERRIRZ 2 E
capital of BJFSMI was sold to an independent third party EBETRABEET —RBILE=

for a consideration of HK$10,000,000. The disposal was
subsequently completed on 16 January 2009. Particulars

J R 1B 510,000,000/ T H &
HER-_ZTZAFE— A+ ~HBH%

of the disposal transaction are as follows: Ko BERSZEIBIT
2009
HK$'000
—ETNE
FHET
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and other TETFRIE ~ ik R E A FEUGRIA
receivables 10,027
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER 160
Deposits received, other payables and B - B A BT FRIE R EFTFKIB
accruals (187)
10,000
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal i & 5 & 5, 3 % 18] (668)
9,332
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 5) HE M B A Az Yas (FiEEs) 668
Total consideration wRE 10,000
Satisfied by cash PAIR & S A+ 10,000

HERERREEZRERAT « —T-TFFH 161



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

41. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41.

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Continued)

(b) Wise Mount Management Limited (“Wise Mount”)
and its subsidiaries

On 4 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement such that the entire issued
share capital of Wise Mount was sold to an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$30,000. The
disposal of Wise Mount and its subsidiaries, namely
Win Alliance Development Limited and Tang Shan Win
Alliance Wealthy Unit Carpet Limited was subsequently
completed on 23 February 2009. Particulars of the
disposal transaction are as follows:

HEM B QA (&)
BEz-_ZEEThFE+=-A=+—H

WFE#)
(b) EBBEEERAIGT([H])RE
HE AT

REERZZTENF+ZAMAF]
S—HEERE B BEzE
HEBRTRABDHETF —RBUSE
=7 HKR{EA30,0008 T - HER
&R EHH B ARBEEREGRAR
MELBBEYXTHEHERAT
CRA-EZAF-_A-+=H%
RoHERSZFHIBOT

2009
HK$'000
—ETNF
FHR
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 6,281
Prepaid land lease payments AN A E IR 8,640
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEEEAR 6
Trade payables e 5 8R1E (11,521)
Amount due to a non-controlling FE A 45 AR AR 3R K18
shareholder (1,288)
Deposits received, other payables and B iR S - B b FEA 5B R ERT5RIE
accruals (2,088)
30
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE -
Total consideration BRE 30
Satisfied by cash AR & 2 30
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LU R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

41.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HENB2T &)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZEENAF+=-A=+—H
(Continued) WEFE @)
(c) Orient Carpet and its subsidiary () RIiMBEREMNBALA
On 4 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale and AEERZFTZENF+ZRAMBEZ]
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share N EEmE B RAMB
capital of Orient Carpet was sold to an independent ZEHEBTRAEHET &
third party for a consideration of HK$19.3 million of BB =7 1X{8/19,300,000/%
which (a) HK$12.2 million was used to set off against 7T H #(a) 12,200,000/ 7T E A
the net current liabilities of HZOCM being a subsidiary REEEM R T (BRI
of Orient Carpet and assumed by the independent ZHBAR) 2B B EFHE (%
third party and (b) HK$7.1 million was paid in cash WY E=ZFEEAEZERE) &
on completion date. The disposal of Orient Carpet (b) 7,100,000/ 7T 2 A FE A H AR
and its subsidiary, namely HZOCM was subsequently XM HERATHBEANEAR
completed on 20 March 2009. Particulars of the disposal AEMEFMHBEEER_ZZTN
transaction are as follows: FZAZTHEK - HERFHZFHF
BT
2009
HK$'000
—TEAF
FHET
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 20,455
Prepaid land lease payments T 17 E IR 5,422
Prepayments, deposits and other TETFRIE -~ k& K CE b FEUGRIA
receivables 86
Inventories FE 7,321
Trade receivables JEWE 5 HR1B 1,851
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEIEE 294
Trade payables JERE SRR (6,061)
Deposits received, other payables and Bk & - H b FE A FOE R EET R
accruals (22,005)
7,363
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal 1 &K IE i (& & (8,604)
(1,241)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMB ARG 2 Was (MEE1) 8,341
Total consideration @wRE 7,100
Satisfied by cash PAIR & S A+ 7,100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M3 SR M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

41. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEMB LT (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_EZENF+=-A=+—H
(Continued) IEFE (@)
(d)  Jackley China and its subsidiaries (d)  Jackley ChinaR & /& 4 &

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements,
on 30 April 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of Jackley China was sold to an independent
third party for a cash consideration of HK$1. The
disposal of Jackley China and its subsidiaries, namely
Orient Finance (Hong Kong) Limited, Charvix Concrete
Company Limited, Jackley Macao Commercial Offshore
Limited and Jackley Carpet Limited was completed on

LN BE 7 SRR M RS AT A A EE R
—EEAFMNA=ZFTHBIZ—H
BB e B Jackley Chinaz
E2HEHTRAEHLET 28
NE=H - BReRERIEIT NG
Jackley China X E /& 2 515 75 8F
B (BB)ARAR  BEZMER
AR EFMRPIBFEERSESE
RARRERMERRAFRREAB

the same date. Particulars of the disposal transaction are TR EERGZEFIBEWT
as follows:
2009
HK$'000
—EThE
T
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZaEFRE:
Deposits received, other payables and B Uiz ® - H At fE A 5RIE K JE 5T B
accruals (2)
(2)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) HEMB AT 2 W (MEEs) 2

Total consideration BRE

Satisfied by cash AR & 32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—ZT—ZF + —A=+—RHILFE

41. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41.

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Continued)

(e) 626 Limited and its subsidiary

As mentioned in note 5 to the financial statements,
on 30 April 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of 626 Limited was sold to an independent
third party for a consideration of HK$1. The disposal
of 626 Limited and its subsidiary, namely HKFSMID was
completed on 4 May 2009. Particulars of the disposal

HEMEB QT (&)

BE-_ZEZhE+=ZA=+—H
WEE (@)

(e) 626ERAFRANEBAA

a0 B 75 3R 3% B RES P - AN £ @ R
—EEHEMA=+HIYNE
EWE o B 626BRAFIZE
HMEBRTRABHETF —RBUSE
= RERMBIT -LE2ER
RAREWB AR BSHRREER
BER_ZETNFRAWBETER

transaction are as follows: HEXGZFERT:
2009
HK$'000
—ETNEF
FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: HEZBEFE:
Deposits received, other payables and Bk & - B Ab FEA FIE R ERTRIE
accruals (33)
(33)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 5) HEME ARz W (KsEs) 33
Total consideration @R ME -
Satisfied by cash LAZR & 2 15 -

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ —Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

41. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. HEWE 2 (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Continued)

() AIEL and its subsidiaries

On 21 August 2009, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement such that the entire issued share
capital of AIEL was sold to an independent third party
for a consideration of HK$2,000,000. The disposal of
AIEL and its subsidiaries, namely Wellspark Holdings

WFEE (@)

) AIELR B} B 2 &

RIS — 1

BE-_ZEAF+ZA=1+—H

REBPBR-_ZZTAFNA=+—H
EWaE B AIELZ
2HBBETRABLE T —RBL
F£=7 R {EA2,000,000/57C  H
BAELRENBARREESEESR

Limited and Go On Foundate Company Limited was NCIDSE AR ARIRREAT
completed on the same date. Particulars of the disposal PR RERSZEFIBIT
transaction are as follows:
2009
HK$'000
—ETNF
FET
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 16(a)) #1% - W5 &a&# (HiE16(a)) 85
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEMBEE 12,091
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE 28 Jo 2t JE YR IE
receivables 487
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIHEEB 6
Finance lease payables JE 1< B & AR ) (66)
Deposits received, other payables and B Uiz & - H b FE S 5B R FEET RUA
accruals (69)
12,534
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 8) HEMB AR ZERE (Ks) (10,534)
Total consideration BRE 2,000
Satisfied by cash IR & X 2,000
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41.

42.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Continued)

(9) An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposals of the above
subsidiaries is as follows:

41.

HEMEB QT (&)

BE-_ZEZhE+=ZA=+—H
WEE (@)

(99 FRLELAMBARZAS MR
EHFEBEB ZRAFESFTAT

2009

HK$'000

—ETNE

FHET

Total consideration in cash REeERELE 19,130

Cash at bank and in hand disposed of HEZRITHEFRFHERS (466)
Net cash inflows in respect of the disposals BT EHBARZRE R AFHE

of subsidiaries 18,664

There were no disposals of subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2010.

DE-CONSOLIDATING SUBSIDIARIES

As described in notes 3(a)(i), 3(a)(ii) and 11, the board of
directors of the Company considers that the Group no longer
has the power to exercise its rights as the shareholder and
thus has lost control over the assets and operations and is
unable to exercise control over the financial and operating
policy decisions of QHFSMI and IMFSMI. As a consequence, the
Group has been unable to obtain the financial information of
QHFSMI and IMFSMI for the year ended 31 December 2010.
The directors of the Company consider that the Group had
lost its control to govern the financial and operating policies
of QHFSMI and IMFSMI with effect from 1 January 2010.
Accordingly, in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010, the financial statements of
QHFSMI and IMFSMI was de-consolidated with effect from 1
January 2010, and the loss arising from loss of controls over
QHFSMI's and IMFSMI’s assets amounting to HK$348,966,000
was recognised based on the latest available financial
information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI as at 31 December 2009.

RE-T—TF+-A=+—HILER AAF
A 451 E E M B A A

42.

MEARARBHEE AR

AN EE3(@)3)  3(a)(i) R 1 1Pt - AR & E

ERA AEBTHAERTELERAR
RN TARKEHEIRBERAR
ORRZEERCE 2 H#E  WEAY
SHEHRBREARERREZ IS RECERE
TEEGE A AEEDEEREE
BHRBEERAREHREHEE-_T—ZTF+=
A=+—RIEFEZHBEER - AARIE
ERA _T-TE—A—Bi KXEH
BERAERETBRERAZTaRETH R
MERRZESIE -Al REBEEZF—
TE+ A=+ BHUEFEZRAMER
ER BERBERAREHRRZ M HEER
TEHZAAE R-_Z—ZF—F—A#
ER-REFTERBEAAEERFEEEZ
I FTEE A 2 5 18.348,966,000/8 7T ¢+ Th
BER-_ZEZAF+_A=+—HBZIIH
ARz EERBERATaHRE L B HER
HEITHER

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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42. DE-CONSOLIDATING SUBSIDIARIES 42. MIEARIABEE AR @
(Continued)
Details of net assets attributable to QHFSMI and IMFSMI as at 1 R-E—ZEF—A—HEBRREEREG
January 2010 are set out below: RREEEEFEZFBIHINOT
2010
HK$'000
e
FHERT
Net assets de-consolidated of: THBEAEARZEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 16(a)) Y- BB RERE (MiE1eG)) 3,578
Exploration and evaluation assets (note 21) R R EE (H3E21) 38,562
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERT IR - 12 & J H fth JE U FUIR 71
Cash and cash equivalents HekHa%EER 75
Deposits received, other payables and accruals BUiR e « E b e 58 & EET FRIE (19,980)
22,306
Goodwill (note 19) EE (MsE19) 327,632
349,938
Release of exchange reserve on TBEHEEAENBRARZER FEED
de-consolidating subsidiaries (972)
Loss on de-consolidating subsidiaries (note 11) WEARTBLEAE AR ZEE (BE11) 348,966
Cash outflow on de-consolidating subsidiaries MEBARTHEEE ARZEEME (75)
43. OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT - 43. EHEBEIREN-—REERN

SONGLIAO CONTRACT

On 13 August 2007, China Era entered into an oil production
sharing contract (the “Songliao Contract”) with China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") to develop and produce crude
oil in Liangjing Block on Songliao Basin in Jilin, the PRC. CNPC
is a stated-owned company established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Songliao Contract signed in August 2007,
China Era agrees to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil in Liangjing
Block on Songliao Basin in lJilin, the PRC. The maximum term
of the Songliao Contract is 30 years from 1 December 2007,
unless extended due to the production period.
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43,

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -
SONGLIAO CONTRACT (Continued)

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation operations
and development operations. The operating costs incurred
shall be paid by CNPC and China Era in accordance with 51%
and 49% respectively. However, CNPC's portion of operating
costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered from the
production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Songliao Contract, the evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and investment
recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all applicable
taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is share oil,
which is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and 49% by
China Era.

In December 2009, the approval of Overall Development
Program from National Development and Reform Commission
has been obtained. The technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting oil are demonstrate. CNPC is the holder of
oil exploitation licence.

43,

EHEBIHEN -—NRESN
()

FREFRAENEEENARLENTZ
BRRACAS - EAE 2 E B A A i o B A
AAREBRREPHRERDRIIZ51% K
49% 2 LE P2 A5t o AT - R B AR RAR,
SERREYEZ S ERAR D A h T EF
RN WA EEH UK -

IRIBEANE G ) 2 B FEAE R A ~ B B RK
IR R & 1 XA AR SR U B AR AN i e i ]
& & A i ) U] o 7E 0 BR U B K AN - BT
BRI gEE R B ER 2 AT I8 RIERE E A
B B THOHMABEZRE B9 5
1251 % K49% 2 L1 73 B T B A iR R A
REBMAB RFPHFK-

RZZEZNF+_A BERERNEZE
GHEE RS FRAOH Z X R
BERITIER IARE - PEARAARE
B ARFH A HFERER -

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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43,

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -

SONGLIAO CONTRACT (Continued)

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results for

the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the Group's interest in the Songliao Contract:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Result for the year

As the Group acquired the China International Group

on 31 December 2010, there is no result recognised in
the consolidated income statement in relation to the
Group's interest in the Songliao Contract.

43.

EREBIREN -NESH
()

T HIINERA M B RRPUARERR
BANIEGRRZAFEZEE AR
REEZHE:

(a) HEZR#E&

HRAKER_-_F-FTF+_A
=t—AKETERERER 81
BERNGABERPUAEERNE
B 2 ek RERMT ] 26 4R

Assets and liabilities (b) EEREE
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000
—z-2% —TEAF
FHET FHT
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB R 127,360 -
Intangible assets mEE 5,133 -
Other non-current assets HMIERESERE 13,064 -
Current assets B E 46,125 -
Current liabilities mBEE (67,830) -
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (22,778) -
Net assets BEFE 101,074 -
Commitments () A
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000
—%-2% —TThE
FHET FHT
Capital commitments: BARAE:
Contracted but not provided BRI AV B R R BT IR
for in respect of equipment 3,395 -
Other commitments: b A
Contracted but not provided EEIAERREREE RIFI
for in respect of administrative BT IR EHE
fee and training fee 62,897 -
66,292 -
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44. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 44, FEBHRIE
At 31 December 2010, the Group had total future minimum RZE—TF+A=+—H XEER
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease falling TRFEHAER 2 PRI BELERO 2R
due as follows: K DHEMNFREERT
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$"000
—z-%% e
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 2,006 1,355
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF (REEEMSE) 1,768 1,875
After five years hFi& 1,128 -
4,902 3,230
The Group leased certain leasehold land and buildings under REERBEEMEPHERETHEHE TR
operating leases. The leases ran for an initial period of two BF ZEMANVTREME+=4 "7
to thirteen years, with an option to renew the lease and REB A AEEEFEEE HHEAL
renegotiate the terms at expiry date or at dates as mutually FPE < HEEZEMERETHLOMBRK -
agreed between the Group and respective landlords/lessors. ZEROTRESIAES -
None of the leases included contingent rentals.
The Company did not have any significant lease commitments KRR ZBETZNFR T —FF+ A
as at 31 December 2009 and 2010. =+t —HBUEEAMERBLRE-
45. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 45. EXR R HApEIE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$"000
—E-ZF —ETNEF
Group REE FTER FHET
Capital commitments: B A FGE
Contracted but not provided BETRME RS T3 & B EE
for in respect of
- Equipment — & B 4,965 -
- Exploration and evaluation — R RFE A
expenditures - 1,048
— Acquisition of subsidiaries — Y EE T B A7) - 1,665,860
Other commitments: B A
Contracted but not provided ERIRNERREEE RIFIE
for in respect of administrative MR
fee and training fee 62,897 -
67,862 1,666,908

The Company does not have any significant capital and other
commitments.

RRBWEEABERER R EAMAYE -

HEREBRREZERERAA « —T - TFFR
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46.

47.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. FAEALRS
Apart from the balances and transactions with related parties RIS MARPAE 2 AR EEA LY
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had RGN FR-AEEHEFEATHE
the following transactions with its related parties during the MR 5:
year:
Compensation of key management FTEEBABZHE
personnel
Included in staff costs are key management personnel FTEEBABZHE (BRERESH2)D
compensation (including directors’ emoluments) and comprises FTABIRA  BIEATHEA:
the following categories:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-%% e
FERx FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEE R 3,539 2,930
Contribution to retirement benefit RIKTEFIET B 2 3R
scheme 59 52
3,598 2,982
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. M EREE

The Group does not have written financial risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
the Group's exposure to credit risk, market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group’s exposure to market risk is kept at a
minimum level. The Group has not used any derivatives or other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
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47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group's
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its operations
and its investing activities. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk.

The carrying amounts of indemnification assets, trade
and other receivables and amount due from non-
controlling shareholder represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The carrying amounts of these financial assets
presented in the statement of financial position are net
of impairment losses, if any. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances on
a ongoing basis. In addition, management monitors
and reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables
individually or collectively at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, is also limited because almost all the
Group's cash and cash equivalents are deposited with
major banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

As the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy counterparties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk
to a desirable level.

47.

BRERERE &)

(a)

HEFREBRREZERERAF -

FERR

EERRESMIAZH T ITRE
BITEREBESRTAKRZEEM
SIBAKERRUMBERZEAR -
AEBEZEERBREIERANER
FEBEEBRETRTEFPZEE
REREXRB AEBEITEERSE
RIEERR-

FWEBE RUEBESKRANEME
WO IR A K 8 Y SRR R AR SRR IR 2
FEHERTEEMENTEEEMA
EeeaEERR RFUHEE
RUBRRER 25 2 FREED K
HEBE (WA AEEEERE
BERBEHFT HHEHEBAZHB
RRETHBEEEFE ARER
ERRBIALZ Rk RKAEER
EEMAEZEERR - ARBEIX
B A R O 5 8 A [ 380 B A ko Ut
S EREER S WS B @Rk
HFI B Mt FE MR IR 2 AT YR [El
SR BRBRTATKRESEELR
W2 BAERE

AEBEZHMERE RS EEERR
BI2HERREBRTEZER
RIT WAEEEMBUBEE (B
ROEMROTERMRSIESS
BEHEB)ZEERRITAR-

MR AEER BERA MEERLT
ZHFITETRS  BWBAER

AEERBEFEEHTEER
R-AEERBEEBRRS AR
AR B2 = E R R =R ARK

-
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47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly
in US$, RMB and HK$. Exposures to currency exchange
rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and bank
balances, other receivables and other payables which
are denominated in US$ and RMB respectively. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews
its foreign currency exposures regularly and does not
consider its foreign exchange risk to be significant.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to foreign currency risk from the above
stated items denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of relevant group companies.

47.

BREMRERE &)

(b)

SN L B

AEEZEERFERUET A
RERETTYIE - SMNE R R A K
SEDHINETRARBIIEZE
THRERRTET  EMEERIEA
Ko Eo A JE AN SR IE © N S (B 30 K (8
TEZ R T A N EIMNERKR - &
SETERRIEIMNERR W RS
HOMNERBR I NEKX -

TRFAFVNNEE A HAEE LR
BiREBEB AR 2 EE LS
Z B HE 2 SNE E R

2010 2009
HK$"000 HK$'000
o i —EThE
FET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents EETIEz2RE MRS EBEIEE
denominated in US$ 422 -

By assessing foreign currency risk on other receivables
and payables, the effect arising from a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of HK$ against
US$ and RMB in the next twelve months was not
material to the profit for the year and accumulated
losses at each of the reporting date, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

174 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

ST E M RN R ER B2
SMNERR - WIRERAA EMEER
AR KRR+ —EABTHET
RARBZIEXTREABHESHES
FTEHENHMNREwE B S
ZRFEBRLTEK-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

47.

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating
interest rate borrowings. The Group has not used any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is exposed to changes in market interest

rates through its cash at banks and bank borrowings,
which are subject to variable interest rates.

47. BERRERE &)

(c)

AR EkR

AER B A ) R BB RS 2 F R
RIREAEE T SMEREM-
REBIW RERBEROITES L
ﬁﬂfﬂﬁ“o%ﬁﬁ'%ﬁ%ﬂ%
R\l 1T BR Y WA B E B
Aﬂikﬂfﬂfﬁm °

BBED T
REEZRITRE MRITEFTIATD

RF RS EmEgETSHRE
By -

The following table indicates the approximate change TRINEARER 2 ffﬁé/ﬁnﬂ
in the Group’s profit/(loss) after income tax and /(Eﬂﬁ)&i"ﬁaﬂéﬂﬁlﬂ e
accumulated losses in response to reasonably possible Al gL & & (Z’KEIEA#&‘HZHHHEKX
changes in the interest rate, to which the Group has B|ARRER) i E &£ 2 A&
significant exposure at the reporting date.
2010 2009
—g-%% B
Effect on profit Effect on loss
Increase/ after income Increase/ after income
decrease) tax and decrease) tax and
in interest accumulated in interest accumulated
rate losses rate losses
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HIRFBHE HERFER%
P54 EEX
MEEH/ 4l i FE LA ES
(FF&) ¥ (FR&) RE
FTET FET
Cash at banks RITH 2 0.1% 89 0.1% 94
Cash at banks RITHE 2 (0.1%) (89) (0.1%) (94)
Bank borrowings RITIE K 0.1% (25) - -
Bank borrowings RITIE N (0.1%) 25 - -
HRERREERERAT « T —TFFR
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47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rate had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 0.1%
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the immediate or short-
term maturity. The fair values of non-current liabilities
were not disclosed because their carrying value is not
materially different from their fair value.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of its financial obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents assessed as adequate by management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on internally generated funding and borrowings as
significant sources of liquidity.
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47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

47. BERRERE &)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBELREMR &)
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company's REERARRIRIEES L MEEALR
financial liabilities as at the reporting dates, based RERMEBR 2B BEER A
on the contractual undiscounted payments, were as BRI -
follows:
2010
—s-%f
Group AEE Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1 to 5 years
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$"000
NE A A RNET=@EA —ZRF
FET FERT FERT
Trade payables ERE SRIA 18,851 - -
Other payables and H At & - 5R0E K
accruals FE ST IR 124,687 - -
Amount due to non- JE A IR 45 AR IR R SR8
controlling shareholder 11,570 - -
Bank borrowings RITHER 21,243 - 12,910
Other borrowings HER 8,485 - 90,655
Promissory notes = - - 52,000
Convertible bonds AR E - - 24,344
184,836 - 179,909
2009
—ETNEF
Group rEE Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1 to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
78 A AR NETZ@EA —ZEhEF
FET FET FET
Other payables and H A FE A 5RI8 I JERT FIE
accruals 22,559 - -
Convertible bonds AR E S - - 29,295
22,559 - 29,295

HEFREBRREZERERAF -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

47. BHERAKRER &)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) RBELRA (&)
2010
—g-%%

Company NG| Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1 to 5 years
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$"000
ANEA A RE+=@EA —ZELF
FHET FERT FERT

Other payables and E & <R8I e SRR
accruals 3,793 - -
Convertible bonds BRI TS - = 24,344
3,793 - 24,344
2009
—ZEENF

Company ViN/NES) Within 6 to
6 months 12 months 1to 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NEA A NETZEA —ZEhF
FET FHET FHET

Other payables and H th &3R8 R B S RIE

accruals 2,567 - -
Convertible bonds Al AR 55 - - 29,295
2,567 - 29,295
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47.

—EE+-RA=1+—RLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

Summary of financial assets and
liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities as recognised as at 31 December 2010
and 2009 are categorised as follows. See notes 3(q)
and 3(u) for explanations about how the categorisation
of financial instruments affects their subsequent

47. B RARERE &)
(f) B2 EEI2HEEER
BEHME
AEER T BER-TTHE
A=t ARRIHBEER
EEEEELSMT AWM T

ENBNEERERFERME
3(q)&3( )2 B RE o

measurement.
Group Company
rEE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
—E-ZF —ETNF —E-Z5F —EENEF
FET FET TET FET
Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables EXRKEWRIE
- Cash at banks and in hand ~ —R{TEFLFEES 146,135 113,382 15,564 112,631
- Pledged bank deposits —BEARITER 945 - - -
— Trade receivables —EWE SRR 16,617 - = -
- Amount due from non- — JE WS4 AR AR 3R R
controlling shareholder 6,080 - - -
— Other receivables — H A fE M RE 37,532 71 = -
— Indemnification assets —WEEE 5,000 - = -
- Due from subsidiaries - PNSE - - 1,585,239 339,340
212,309 113,453 1,600,803 451,971
Group Company
rEE AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ZF —ETNEF —E-ZF —ETNEF
FET FAT TET FAT
Financial liabilities MEERE
Current TE
Trade payables [E B H8RE 18,851 - - -
Other payables and H At &~ FRIE &
accruals fEt A 124,687 22,559 3,793 2,567
Amount due to non- ﬁ?H H% % 3R I8
controlling shareholder 11,570 - - -
Bank borrowings RITER 21,133 - - -
Other borrowings At &3 8,394 - - -
Non-current kR E
Bank borrowings RITER 11,806 - - -
Other borrowings HAth & 3R 87,010 - - -
Promissory notes ES 43,865 - - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 20,292 19,279 20,292 19,279
347,608 41,838 24,085 21,846
RREBREZRERAT « — T —TFFK
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48. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 48. EXEH

The Group's objectives when managing capital are: REEZERERERS:

(a) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going (a) REREEERNBEEIERFEL
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and ENR IFERRRTIREI R
benefits for stakeholders; g

(b)  To support the Group's stability and growth; and (b) XEAEEREEERER: &

(c) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the () AAREBIRHEANZERLRKBRE
Group's risk management capability. g

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its AEBTHEBRRITILEBELE XL

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and B HEREAGEERRREHRERRE

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital M ZEEEREAEERKRELRT

requirements of the Group. The Group currently does not ko B AT 2N 5 B 3 AR B AN A ] 1 Z0AR B

adopt any formal dividend policy. Management regards total RE-RERERENME - MEJEH"

equity less equity component of convertible bond as capital, for %5 R P] #R BR (E 25 BB ) 3R T’Eﬁﬁ

capital management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31 RZE—ZEF+A=+—RHzZELS

December 2010 amounted to approximately HK$1,592,193,000 BE49/41,592,193,0008 7L (ZEZENF ¢

(2009: HK$611,832,000), which management considers as 611,832,000 7T) &£ E EIEF E AR X

optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures REAXREEKs EREERLREHES

and the forecast strategic investment opportunities. BEEREKT
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49,

LITIGATIONS

There are litigations being undertaken against and for the
Group in 2010, details of which are set out as follows:

(a)

Capital contribution to IMFSMI

The Group's subsidiary, namely IMFSMI was established
since 2007 and its capital had not yet been fully paid up
since then. IMFSMI (acted under the legal representative
and the director of IMFSMI, Ms Leung) required its
immediate holding company, namely HKFSMIH to make
capital contribution of HK$30 million to IMFSMI (the
“Capital Contribution”), in accordance with IMFSMI’s
articles of association. In September 2009, IMFSMI
acted as plaintiff and undertook legal action against
HKFSMIH for the Capital Contribution. In March 2010,
the Company’s PRC counsel replied to the court in Inner
Mongolia that

(i) The plaintiff (i.e. IMFSMI) does not possess the
litigation capacity as the business license of
IMFSMI had already expired on 30 April 2009.

(ii) The plaintiff does not have any rights to
undertake the litigation as there are no laws
in the PRC to enable a company to sue its
equity holders who have not made their capital
contribution.

(iii) The certificate of approval for IMFSMI was invalid
and the 2009 annual statutory examination in
the PRC had not been fulfilled.

(iv) After taking into account the above

considerations, the PRC counsel advised that

the business license of IMFSMI should be firstly
cancelled. As such, the Capital Contribution may
not be necessary.

The court in Inner Mongolia had dismissed the litigation
in April 2010 and subsequently the plaintiff appealed
against the decision. In February 2011, the Group
received a letter from the court in Inner Mongolia that
IMFSMI has withdrawn the litigation.

49,

%—ﬁ

REH
sl

ojp

k

(a)

HEFREBRREZERERAF -

R-T-TFEFFRAFEE FBH

HREEARARZIE

AEBCHBARIANRHERERE Z
TEELFERN LB —ERARE
K-NETHRFRE(ARAETHEREFEZ
FEARKRRESREZLIAR)EK
HEEZERARNBSRREEITR
BEASHEHREZERMAUNHAR
HFRRIEH30,000,0008 T2 &
([FE]) - R—ZZTEZThFHhA K
SHRRERBREREIE —FHE
BRRBELERFEEVERTEH R
—E-ZFZR ARAFZHEE
REBERARGEREDATE
=

(i) MR AR EREZ LENRB
ERZZEZANFHIA=T
BE®R RE(MAREH
TR WA T REEAR o

(if) A B A A A A
TE RS A ARELE
B RRKE  RETET
] I B2 AR R AR ©

(iii) NEHHRRZHAEBFTEE X
o NARRERB -_TTNEF
ZHRBAEFE®-

(iv) KEBALEZE PEDEE
BRRRARAHRRZEE
LR A T 5 S 3 S A E B o
Euith N AEHEE ©

BENFEERER -2 T4H
BGHERA  HER A R R
P ORZB——F=f AEHE
BRNREEREE Y R S5
P AR E B -

—ZT-ZTFEFR
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49, LITIGATIONS (Continued) 49,

182

(b)

Injunction order

HK Yuenxian (formerly known as Forest Source Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited) is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong and owned by Ms Leung.
This company is not related to the Group. The Group
has requested Ms Leung to change the name of this
company on the basis that similarity between the
name of this company and the Company’s subsidiaries
might cause confusions to the shareholders and
business partners of the Group. On 30 November
2009, HKFSMIH, IMFSMI and QHFSMI successfully
requested the High Court of Hong Kong to issue an
interim injunction orders against Forest Source Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited, Ms Leung and
other three independent persons restraining them
from carrying on the business in Hong Kong and/
or the PRC under the name of “Forest Source Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited” or under any style
or name comprising the words “Forest Source Mining
Industry” in form likely to mislead or deceive the public.
On 31 December 2009, the High Court of Hong Kong
continued the interim injunction order against Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company Limited,
Ms Leung and other two independent persons and
discharged the interim injunction order against other
one independent person. On 31 March 2010, upon

yld

<

BEERR (AIBRRBEEZERER
RNAE) Ty —RERE BT &
REUTHEBEZIARA EAREE
R E o REEAZ AR EAR
AlZWB ARz B BEAEL &
SLAEERREREBRHRER
Bl ZRRLLERZRFZE
B-R_ZEZENF+—A=+H8"
BERERBREEER ARHRRR
SHERREXNERBESEE
R RREEERAERAR  RL
AR H A = 2B T A2 R
22 R E A [FRREEE
B AT 2% AF(T AT e R
B BHFRRZEAURE [RR
BEIFR2FALEBREER
SERRBETEE R ZETNF
TZA=+—B -@%a%ihi
BUHRRBEIERERLDF BX
4 DA R EAth R A2 08 7 A B R
Bl WHHE S —RBILA
TR BHENS R —F
FZA=Z1+—H RRELZLEER
B A I % = B R R AR R SR 15 ARG
FHREAA HRREEZRERD

Ms Leung on oath saying that she was not intending AT EEEREBRIRBEITR
to compete with HKFSMIH at the moment or to pass & BEERFERHMEYRIRESE
herself/Forest Source Mining Industry Holding Company TRAR QA %@ﬁi%&ﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Limited off as HKFSMIH, the High Court of Hong Kong
discharged the interim injunction order against Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company Limited, Ms
Leung and other two independent persons.
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49,

LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(c)

Tarim Basin

In September 2009, an independent party (the
“Plaintiff”) undertook a legal action against and filed
a claim to a group of three parties. These three parties
are referred to as the “First Defendant”, the “Second
Defendant” (i.e. China Era) and the “Third Defendant”
(Collectively referred to as the “Defendants”). The First
Defendant was an ex-director of China Era and the Third
Defendant was a related company of First Defendant as
the First Defendant was a director of both China Era and
the Third Defendant at that time.

Based on the statement of claims, the Plaintiff alleged
that China Era entered into an agreement in May
2007 with the Plaintiff relating to a production sharing
agreement for an exploration and exploitation project
that related to an oilfield located at the North and
South Kashi Blocks on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the
PRC. The Plaintiff further alleged that a tender was
submitted in June 2007 for the North and South Kashi
Blocks on Tarim Basin (the “Tender”) but was rejected
by PetroChina Company Limited for political reason
only. The contract for the North Kashi Block on Tarim
Basin was subsequently awarded to the Third Defendant
in December 2008 (the “Kashi Contract”). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Tender contained confidential
information beneficially belonging to the Plaintiff which
was disclosed by China Era to the Third Defendant
to secure the Kashi Contract to the exclusion of the
Plaintiff, in breach of its duty of confidence and/or
fiduciary duties owed to the Plaintiff.

49,

FEA (&)

(c)

HEFREBRREZERERAF -

BEARAM

R-ZBEAFHA —RBILA
(TREDH =7 WEBUEETE
VRHAR-BE=TBRIE—
W&l [BoE] (APEFR)
RIF=wE] (BB THE]) -
F-RER/TEERZ-—2HE
EF MEE-WEER/TEFAK
RE-ZREZEE AUFE=KE
RE-—WEZ—RBERF-

REFRRELE REEBETESF
KR _ZELFRARRERL—
Hipe AR BN P EHE
EEARAMZ R R N AR
ZMAMRT 2 — IR B B R K B
RIEBZEEDKE - REHE—
FHEER _ZZTLFNAREER
Bz RTtRENERRZZE
E(MRE]D) HEEEBCAEHRM
W B HRARBNDBERAFE
BXIE-BERIEBEARAM 2L
BRAOR_ZFZENFFT_AET
F=wE([RAEH]) - REHE
WMREEREREERHACHEER
B-mPBEFRAE=REREZ
SWEER UWEBIBRREZER
TRER{TAEH BEREREZR
BEERSREEE

—ZT-ZTFEFR
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49, LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(c)

Tarim Basin (Continued)

The Defendants filed defence on 14 December 2009
where the Defendants denied the claim made by the
Plaintiff.

Had the Defendants lost the legal claim, based on the
advices of the legal representatives of the Defendants
in November 2009, January 2010 and December 2010,
the amount to be claimed by the Plaintiff will be
determined with reference to the amount that would
have been charged by a consultant who can secure
the same information in relation to the Kashi Contract.
Accordingly, the legal representatives of the Defendants
advised China Era that the amount to be claimed is no
more than HK$5,000,000.

As at the date of the approval of the financial
statements, the litigation is still in progress.
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RECR_ZFETAF T+ A +HA
RIXAFE REEETERRE
PrEH 2 BRZR »
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